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A mysterious sclentist by the name of David Anderson

made an eventful trip to Romania in 1999, Dr. Anderson,
whao 15 credited by the LS. government as having developed

advanced Hme-warp fleld technology, established
diplomatic conmections on this trip (o Romania where he
also set up an advanced rescarch facility dedicated to

studying the mathematics of time travel,
Upon his return to the United States, Dr. Anderson

visited Preston Nichols and Peter Moon, Internatlonally
known authors of “The Montauk Project: Experlments in
Time.” and introduced himsell. At Dr. Anderson’s suggestion,
a collaboration with Peter Moon began which

wis brlef, tenuous and eventually aborted due to security
considerations as a result of a logistical attack on a similar

lime research center that had been set up on Long [sland.
Dr. Anderson's continued journeys to Romania eventually
resulted In connecting Peter Moon with a Romanian
publisher and Radu Clnamar, a member of the Eomantan
Inielligence Service's occull depariment. The purpose of
this collaboratlon has o do with what |s arguably the most

slgnificant archaeologlcal discovery In the history of
MankInd: a mysterious holographic hall of records thal

utllzes technology far beyond the concepts of modern
sclence. “Transylvanian Sunrise” 15 the story of this
mysterious discovery and the political intrigue surrounding
It, all capably told by Radu Clnamar.

After a five year hiatus In thelr relatlonship and afler

Peter Moon secured e publishing rights to this remarkable
story. Dr. Anderson invited him to Romania where he

has pursued these mysteries one step further, The story 15
Inskie this book and walting to be read.
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Pater Moon at the Eomandan Sphinx in the Buceg] Mountains tn 2009 8
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Introduction — By Peter Moon -

It was after four o'clock in the morning that I found myself In the back seal
of a van that was not only ascending the alps of Transylvania but was doing
50 al a very rapdd pace. The date was July 289th, 2008, and all 1 could
s were deeply forested hills to either side and a short span of a ruggedly

paved road that lay ahead. The higher the elevation and the more precarious
the road conditions

became, the more the Romanian driver seemed to push on the accelerator
It was only then that | began to fully reallize that 1 had just flown halfway
around the world and was in a very strange country. Not only that, [ was In

the backyard of Dracula’s famous realm. Looking at my two companlons, [
sensed they might be having simdlar thoughts.

My two compandons were Tantra Bensko and Dr. Joel Casiellanos. Tanira Is
a multi-alented ariist who [ asked o accompany me for the purpose of
taking video footagne, Joel 18 & professor of mathematics at the University of
Mew Mexico and speclalizes In a branch of chaos theory that 1s

known as fractals.

Earller during our journey from the airport in Bucharest, we had joked about
Joel being likened to the chaos scientist In the movie Jurassic Park. Now, as
we travelled at a rapld clip up the alps of Transylvanla, the atmosphere was a
litle more tenslon packed. The |oke was revislied but It was a liile less
funmy and a lttle more serious. Mone of us knew exactly where in the hell
we weore really going. If there was anvone who had less reason to be
frightened or concemed, It was me because [ was the only one who actually
knew the man who had arranged for us (o fly to Romanda In the first place.
This mysterlous and unexpected trip to the alps was actually the result of a
mistake. Our midnight accommodations in Sinala. a quaint mountain (own
known as the gateway to Transylvanla, had fallen through, When this was

discovered, the driver put me In touch with our Romanian sponsor by cell?
phone. He explained the problem and asked If it would be all rght iF we

went 0 a mountain resort for the evening instead. [ accepled.

Thus it was thal the three of us ended up on a wild mountain ride in the wee
hours of the morning, Cuer rowtine travel plans having fallen through, it was
mw  clear that our visit had tomed Into an adventure with - some
very unpredictable elements.

Mow that I have told you of our mysterious clrcumstances on the oulskints of
Transylvania, it 15 tme to tell you how | ended up in that very unbjue area
which has fostered so many legends.
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The story begins on August 11th, 1999, On that evening. a man by the name
af Dr. David Anderson showed up at a monthly mesting on Long [sland that
used o be hosted by Preston Michols and mysell. David was already a
subscriber to my quarterly newsletter, The Montauk Pulse, and he found out

about our meetings through a computer chat forum. After listening to a
lecture by Preston that evening, David introduced himsell (o me whereapon

he mentloned to me that he had a ime travel research center on Long Island.
When David told me this. [ had some fdea of what he was talking about. As
he had been a subscriber to The Montauk Pulse for a year. 1 had seen his
stattonery  fromthe Time Travel Research Center. Desplte 3

professlional looking logo, 1 simply assumed 1t was from a wanna-he or some
kld who decided to expend some money on statlonery. Upon meeting David,
however, | could see thal I wasdead wrong. He was obviously an
accomplishedperson and was far from an amateur. Afler a shorl chat,
David sugeested we got together soon for lunch, T agreed,

Although 1 did not reallze it at the time, David had visited us shorthy after
returning from Romanda himself. Later, 1 would leam that be had also
established a Time Travel Research Center In that country,

Within a week's time, David invited me to lunch. He was not only interested
In the Montauk research bul was partlcularly interested In learning mosd’
aboul the human spirilt.  According o hMm. the culing edge of
physics research kept pointing more and more (o the existence of spirituality.
This was at a time when the old paradigms of classical physics were giving

way o the more cogent and modern theores of quantum physles, Davld's
sclentlfic credentlals were Impeccable. Besldes having a doctor’s mdegree In

physics, he had been involved in highly sophdsticated space-iime research al
the prestipious Adr Force Flight Test Center In the Mojave Desert. In

particular, David mentioned that he was Interested in my experiences in
Sclentology, a subject which 1 have since wrltlen  about somewhal
extensively In The Montauk Book of the Dead.

While in the Adr Force, David was assigned (0 help oul on a problem Lhe
military was having with satellites in outer space. Every vear. the orbits of
satellites would drift several meters and this created all sorts of chaos. If
this problem was not corrected, I would resull In expensive satelllies
becoming useless. David's approach to this problem was o create a space-
Ume module based upon Eilnstein’s theories. I was very advanced stufl, bul
he actually worked out a paradigm whereby space-time could literally be
warped so as to maintain the orbits of satellites,

When he left the Alr Force, David was clever enough to patent the necessary
algorithms for accomplishing this mandpulation of space-time. He then
parlayved this into the creaton of the Time Travel Research Center. a
corporation which was essentlally a security company. One of 1ts functions .
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was o llcense this advanced III.'!III'II'LCIl-DE_}' 10 the Lrovermrment and bo lI'.II:ll.Ii-iI.I'_','
for thedr sated Hies.

The Time Travel Hesearch Cenier was a [inancial success. Besldes Lhe
facilities on Long Island and Komania, there was also one in Albugquerque,
Mew Mexico. David was Intent on further research into space-time, Besides
the satelllies, David was using laser beams to create a self-confalned fleld,
approximately the stze of a soccer ball, in which Hme could be slowed deol ?
or speeded up. This was and is of great inlerest (o the medical feld because
it means that transplantable organs could have a much longer shelf life.

The Time Travel Research Center was taken very serlously and attracted
considerable Investment dollars from the medical seclor, Cautlousabout
having his ressarch compromised or stolen, Davld was always very careful
o comparimentalize his researchers. They often did not know each other or
what one another were doing. This explains. in part. why there were (roe
separate centers. The center in Romanla, he sald, was theoretical, Romania
was chosenas a location because Ithas the best mathematicians in the
world and thelr economy was such that they were also very affordable.

As [e continued, David and | would perlodically get logether, He was also

kind enough to put up the Hrst website for Sky Books, Une day, afier a

considerable span of Ume when | had not heard from him, he asked me

to come o his home at King's Park. Long Island. There were two Lhings on

his mind. First, he spoke o me about planning a large event on the subject of
tfime travel. One of the agendas of this event was to bring together

major physicists, particularly those on the East Coast, and feature the Jatest

breakthroughs on time travel technology. The Montauk Project was o be

[eatured and David wanted to glve this subvect as much publicity as possible.

When we lnished the initial stages of the event planning, David then shared

something that he found rather disturbing, He had recently been informed by

the military that he was to report to Moscow with only his passport

and alrline tlicket. Concerned that he might ned possibly retum, he wanted me
o creale as much publicity as possible In the event that he did not return

within two weeks. When he did not return in three weeks. I began to make

noise on the phone, Almost immediately after T began to create a ruckus, [

recelved an emall saying he was okay and would 13
be home shortly. He was fine but did not actually return for another month. [

had the email traced (o an Internel server in Pakistan, To this day. however,

Dravid s not able to discuss that he was in Paklstan or anywhere else.

Upon his return, the Time Travel Research Center began to have serlous

securlty problems. 1t was broken Into and he was forced o move at least

tedce. Eventually, the Government assured him that they would take care

of s securlty problems If he would only make them a pariner in his

operations, With his back apainst the wall, David took the most
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acoommuodaling position he could. He gave up controlling Interest In the
Time Travel Research Center and went to work in private indusiry. The
center on Long lsland was shul down, but the one in Romania was lefl
untouched. The Albugquerque center continued to operate but with Dravid as a

maostly silent partner,
[ dicl nod hear much from David at all -|:|u.11n_g thi= Perlul:l umtll Aprjl nf AD03.

As the Time Travel Research Center was defunct by that ime, he wanted o
glve me his rather extensive Hbrary. We agreed 10 meel on Easter
Sunday near his new home in Rochester, New York. Preston Nichols
accompanied me. and we ended up meeting with David on the Saturday

before Easter in the early evening, After loading up Preston’s van, David
visited with us For about twenty minutes. At the end of our visit, he sald

he would nol be able to work with us for fve years. II was all rather
mystertous as he was nod at Hberty o reveal all of his preblems or plans.
It was disappolnting to lose a friend. particularly one as Intriguing as David

Andersan. [, however, had plenty of writing and basiness to take care of, On
very rare occasions, [ would recelve a postcard from him, always from a

forelpgn country, or a [riendly email. He always signs his communications 1o
me as "Your friend In Hme."

Several months afler saving good-bye to Davld in Rochester, 1 recelved a
manuscript from Sorin Hurmuz, a Romandan publisher who has published”
The Montauk Project in the Romantan language. He wanted o know if1
wnild be interested in publishing a very special book, It Is more than a

speclal book to hlm because It Nierally catapulted his publishing company
Into reality. In Romanlan, this book s called The Enemy Within and 15 by

Radu Cinamar. It begins with two mystertous [ealures,
The first of these mysteries 1s an anomalous area in the Buceg] Mountains of

Romania which Is located not too far from the enlgmatic Eomanian Sphinx,
This anomalous area Is the focus of the book you are aboul o read. I

came to the attention of the Romanlan government when American satellite
technology revealed a hidden and inaccessible chamber within a mountain
under the Sphinx.

The second mysterious feature in the Book concerns a baby born with an
abnormally large umbdlical cord. This baby was beavlly monltored by a

secret department of Romanlan Intelligence which Includes a lHalson with
a mysterious doctor [rom Hed China. As the baby grew up, he demonsirated
remarkable abilittes and was eventually selected o work as the head of a
secret department in Romanian  Intelligence. His  primary  duties  are
concerned with monlioring this anomalous area In the Bucegl Mounlalns as
well as other anomalous areas.

The Romanian book senl 0 me was already translated into Englsh. It was
pretty well written and an easy read, [, however, was oo busy to read 15, The
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!'I'IEII'IIJS.IZI]P'[ IEHEIJIEIIEU an my desk, unread. Four ears later, 1| had a honse
guost visiting me who was also a fan of my work. Having some fime on his
hands, | suggested he read the book and tell me if 1t was any good. He
finished it In a fowdays and was extremely enthusiastic about me
publishing it, When he left, 1 found myself with an opportunity to read it
The heater In my car had gone bad and needed extensive repalr. 1ilook 1t to a
frlend In Brooklyn and read the mamnuescript while his crew worked on my car
for many hours. 1 finally finished reading the book. i3
At the beginning of 2008, I began negotiations with my Romanian publisher
to secure the English translation rights to the book. By spring time, we had
resched an agreement, Mentloning the clroumstances, negotlathons and
tming of the agreement as well as how [ came to read a book might seem (o
be irrelevant in most cases. In this particular instance, however, the Eming
WS UnCanmy.

Almost iImmediately after completing the agreement to publish this book, 1
recelved an emall from my friend, Dr. David Anderson, He was inviting me
to Homania, all expenses pald, to visit an annual conference known
as Atlantykron, This 15 a gathering of sclentisis, writers, and artists which 1s
dedicated to educating and providing opporfunity for Komanian vouth, Part
of the package was that 1 would also recelve a three-day cultural tour
of Romamda. Of urther frony was the Tact that David's emall arrived almost
exactly five years afler our last face-to-face meating. He was nol only true to
his word, it was as If hewas aware of some mysterlous time clock
concerming certain events,

You now have some of the perspective that 1 had when I came o finish
reading the book you are about 10 read. Most importantly, thds book informs
us of evenis that are occurring in the world which extend far beyond

the consciousness of ordinary citizens, 1 was not only being made aware of
them through my contacts In Romanta, 1 was also belng pulled onto the stage
myself,

The drama you are aboul (o read apparently reaches [ar beyond my own
personal involvement which seems to berather minimal but not
Inslgnificant. Tt Is presented by the author as nonfiction and there 1s
conslderable reason oaccept his story as such. These reasons will be
presented at the end of the book [n the epllogue where [ will also Include a
synopsis of my trip to Romania and my eventual reunion with Dr. David
Anderson,

Pater Moon

Long Island, New Yark

Movember 23, 2008
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Chapter 1 — Under the Hawk's =
Eye

I will not make the story in this book any longer nor more dramatic than it
really is. T will naot adorn it with stylish literary embellishments and because
of that I do not expect acknowledgment of any hypothetcal artistic value of
the text. Instead, [ will render as simply and conclsely as possible events of
an overwhaelming significance (o Romanda and its peaple, aganst the
backpround of numerous signs and plenty of evidence already pointing Lo a
hidden canker now gnawing at the very heart and soul of the Romanian
peopla with growing depth and speed. In fact, a great many high officials in
the administrative, economic, religlous and cultural structures of the country
uphold this view.

1 for one could see for mysell part of what. at present, 1s considered to be the
higpest stato secrot In Romanda and, givon the nature of relatlons and
meetings with high representatives of the main state power in the waorld,
perhaps the most terrible secred on this planel Iis implications are huge, but
Intuiton tells me that knowledge of the facts to be conveyed in this book
will in time lead to a remarkable leap in the quality of human existence that
will eventually bring down the thick wall of disslmulatlon, concealment, and
lylng which has been put up by those In power and by the occult Interests of
some organdzations and persons in and oulside the country. That Is why my
telling of this story may be at times almost blunt and unpolished like a
roughly hewn diamond or even as regimented as 1ife in the barracks. Bur 1
find this to be the most appropriate cholce of style for making known (o the
reader certain undque and even secrel aspects ol the workd of polities, of the
former Securitate and of today's Bomanian Intelligence Service (R15). My
aim 1s thus ta unfold in chronological order a complex string of events, facts,
realities and correlations that, in my view and that of other competent
people, are of great importance to the future of the country.

The story is in fact a blography (updated to the year 2003) of a character
whi 15 real but whom many will think to be the hero of a legend or a sclence
fiction adventure book, T shall take the Nberty of alerting the reader from the
viry beginning to the danger of R@HINe Into te cheap trap of doobt and
distrust. The facts and truths [ shall convey should first be pondered over and
only (hen should conclusions be drawn as the reader may deem appropriate.
1 had the extracrdinary opportunily of actually meeting the hero of the story,
and T must confess in all honesty that T would not have made the decision of

2
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writing this book If he himself had not spurred me to It on many occaslons. LY
The long talks he and | had in some secrel locations convineed me of the
existence of unsuspected realitles which [ could then check for mysell In
various situations. But what convinced me the most in making the decision
to tell this story was the shocking discovery of August 2003 in the Bucegi
Mountalns to which I mysell had partlal access owlng to an extraordinary
comidnation of clreumstances that the hero of this book had facilltated for
me. In s0 dolng, he may have wanled to shatter even the falntest race of
reticence I may still have had. But now I know. I witnessed it. I touched it I
can now say I have a hird’s eve view — and an accurate one for that matter
— of true history since the davwn of Hme, of Eomanla and even of this entire
planet.

1t wiill be quite difficult for me to render the accurate picture of the awe,
bewllderment and even pandc on the face of the few people who had access
to the place. What 1 can say now Is that that was only the beginning of the
discovery since 1 did not have access to all of its elements nor was T allowesd
to really see everything up there. Nevertheless, the person who steered all the
investigations and offered me the unhoped-for chance of actually seeing the
slte of that momentous discovery also told me abowt that mysteriows part of
the place to which my access had been denled for reasons of maximum
sacurity. Bul one should not rush or anticipate. 1 shall describe everything at
the right tme exactly as it happened. However, [ have no reservations about
saying that that was undoubiedly a landmark moment In reshaping bath my
views of the world and the career | was pursulng, 1 am asking the reader (o
bear with me and allow me first o follow the path that led to the
extracrdinary events in the Bucegl Mountalns.

In essence, this path 1s the very profoundly mysterbous and troubling
existence of the hero of the book by whose side the complicated texture of
destiny brought and kepd me In a strange manner, (o say the least. For
reasons thal are easy lo understand, an allas, Cezar Brad, wlll be used as far
as he Is concerned.

I have known Cezar Brad for almost five years., As we met and talked
during these times, [ became fully aware of his strength and extraordinary
character. His entirely special positlon In the complicated machinery of state
power makes him all the more credible In the fractured and yel very conclse
and coherent stories he told me during the few meetings we had, despite the
fact that, for varipus reasons. our meetings sometimes teok place in a hurry.,
Tt remains a mystory why, of all people, he chose me to tel] the story, Toa 18
large extent. that may have been because of the serlousness and keen Interest
with which [ have always listened to his account of the events. There are
things that the mind of ordinary people may [ind difficult to digest. But (he
times we are 1Iving In are very speclal so that what once seemed to be a

10
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dream or an &t of rampant Imagination now proves to be perfectly possible.
Al the end of our last meeting, Cezar made it clear ina calm and detached
rmanner thal the decision w write and publish the information he had given
me was entirely mine. My whole belng was struggling under the welght of

that responsibility and I confess It took me almost one vear from that
moment untll I eventoally succeeded in clarlfying and putting events In the
order In which they had been presented to me and particularly In deplciing
thern as clearly as possible. I wanted to render the chaln of events and Cezar
Brad's explanations with the highest possible fidelity, using almost the same
wirds he himself had used In telling the story.

I was encouraged (o publish thls book Ina simple and natural manner, 1 then
had the clear Impression that even If, from fear or for other reasons, 1 had nat
done what | had been asked to do and had not written the book, Cezar would
have considered the decision with perfect detachment and would
undoubtedly have found another way of fulfilling his intention,

A BIRTH UNLIKE OTHERS

Adter a long night gave way to dawn, a young woman of stmple but pleasant
roeans was brought to the operating room as her contractions had started.
=he was not screaming but was rather scared.

Falrly tired and somewhat bored by the routine of thelr job, the two nurses
on duty were nod really mindful of the woman. In the Seventies. we were in
the Tull swing of Communist “multilateral development” when everything
was “with the people” and *for the people™ and so demapogically “equal”

amd “fair” that ome could no longer really tell the difference between a chalr
amd a human.

When called In at last. after several hours of labor thal seemed ke never-
ending centuries (0 the mind of the would-be mother, Doctor Nenu ook a
tired look at his patient’s medical record: reason for admission, breaking of
the amniotle Hguld sac; general condltion, good, blood pressure, normal,
uteringe contractions, rare; dilation, small. Everything seemed (o follow the
natural course of a normal child brth.

Upon realizing that he was spending more time looking at the record than a:'®

his patient, the doctor approached the table shaking his head at the thought
that fatigue was playing tricks on him and thus making him Inattentive. Not

VRN A 5light susplcion did he have that any frace ui'!.lue]:nlnrlﬁs and apath}'
wiould soon be shattered. He took a quick look and immediately clarilied the
stage of the birth process; It was Imminent. Dilatlons weore growing in size as

was normal, and deep down Doctor Nenu was glad he would not have to use
the scalpel. The last and most painful of contractbons brought to the waorld

Hrst the head of the child and then his tender and submissive body. The
doctor carefully got hold of the child's hands, helping him oul.
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The first problem was the length of the umbilical cord. Nenu had seen a lot
them In his life ved, for a few seconds, he stood in awe at the sight of the
cord, the length of which, almost 1.5 meters, was way in excess of usual
standards. Time was precious and the birth process had to be completed
successfully. When awe loosened its grip on him, he took the sclssors from
the nurse’s hands and cul the cord; or he atempted to cut It as he had done
hundreds of Hmes before In his career, but the blades of the sclssors were
sliding as if against metal! The doctor was staring in disbelie! while the
nurses stood motionless. In the few seconds that followed, he changed two
palrs of scissors bat 1o no avail: the cord would not give in. It was highly

elastic [lke a plece of the most durable mibber,

Doctor Nenu had long years of medical experlence and he had grown to be a
sell-possessed man. With precise movements. he grabbed a scalpel and
pressed it repeatedly and forcefully against the cord. Eventually, the cord
gave In and the first cry of life could be heard, The child was a plump baoy
with unusually clear and relaxed faclal tralts and a very sirange umbilical
cord. It happened at the dawn of a day In the spring of 1970, Events then
rushed in.

*Amalla, go call the Colonel immediately and tell him to come to the
hosplial as soon as possible.” ordered the doctor.

He then turned o the other nurse and sald: “You get this cord for
preservation. 11l see to the woman. Bring me her record.”

Caolonel Datcu arrived at the hospital after approximately twenty minutes. He
talked to Doctor Nenu for a short while and then had a long phone talk with
one of his superiors In Bucharest. At noon, a black llmo with a govermment
plate pulled up in front of the maternily hospital in the lown of F.... and out
came two sUIT and quiet men. One of them was carryling a briefcase.

Doctor Nenu, Colonel Dratcu and the two men talked for almost half an how=?
In one of the hospltal offices. Nenu filled n a form that the Securitate men
gave him and was then asked o walt oulslde for a while. After several
minutes, the men lefl and the Colonel approached the doctor who was quite
troubled.

“This is above our heads, Nenu! This was one of the first secret instructions I
recelved upaon promation. In situatlons lke these, 1 must follow a very strict
and secret procedure. T'o vou In particular, nothing speclal has happened
loday and you have not noliced anything strange. Y'ou do get it don't you?"
Thoughtfully, Colonel Datcu 1it a cigarctte. After a fow moments and

without lnoking In the doctor’s direction he said, “There’s something else,
The boy has no personal medical record. He has never had one. You

will desiroy It iImmediately. Mothing about this birth 1s to be left to the
archives! The rest, believe me., s too complicated (o be of interest 1o us.”
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With a friendly tap on the doctor’s shoulder, Colone] Dateu left the hospltal.
Behind him, Doctor Menu stood staring dumbfounded into the vold while in
the ward an innocent mother was lovingly holding her newbom child close
to her breast,

A MIND OF HIS OWN

Llitle Ceear was not aware of the speclal attention he was surrounded with,
and he obvlously knew nothing about the manner In which the Securitate
was keeplng an eye on him. At his early age, he could not possibly
understand the reason for his being an important matter of interest. The same
coitld be said about his parents who suspected nothing. It had been a normal
birth (with the mother having been told nothing about what had happened at
the maternity hospltal) and the months that followed did not bring anything
unusual in the simple and modest homestead of the Brads.

As Ume passed. however, Hitle odditles came up in the behavior of the baby
such as the fact that he would not cry at all or would hold his fingers in

strange positions, touching or bending them in ways that became Identically
amerging patterns at regular Intervals. His parents walched him with

astonishment but calmly. Common sense made them understand that
nothing could be wrong with the somewhat strange prooccupations of thelr
child. On the contrary, the tlme came when It was a real pleasure for them to
walch the play of his e Nngers, a play that was otherwise very elegant and
second nature o him. Sometimes the child would stand sull for minutes ina
row while maln-talning the same structure of his fingers that would either

take the shape of a circle or get crossed and then successively touched with 21
the thumb In well-determined positlons.

Cezar's parents were very happy their little boy did not cry and was not a
problem at night. But above all, they were happy he had never Tallen 111 until
then. Time, however, furtiviely sowed in their souls the seed of a hidden
suffering which slightly troubled the peace of thelr dally life. Little Cerar
would soon be one year old and he had not vet uttered a word. Still, the
problem was nel wo serlous. Although they had seen such cases belore, they
were already considering a visit to the doctor.

When Cezar turned one year old, two grey-eved tall men, bath dressed up
and with looks as cold as {ee, knocked on the door. Behind thelr elegant
manners and the Intentlonally affable tone In the conversatlon they had with
Cezar's parents, one could easily detect intolerance (o any possible
resistance coupled with a tacit but obvious threat with reprisals should the
parents disobey "orders from above”. They Introduced themselves as
members of a Speclal Department of the Securliate.

Thelr gestures were casual and yel they strangely Instllled a sense of fear In
those listendng (o them. In those dmes, the Communist Securilate was
already painfully renowned for its ways of action and intimidation, but in the

vy
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case of the Brads, their method took on a somewhat more bumane course.
‘The visit wes short and practically conslsted of a monologue by the twio men
while Cezar's parents remained standing with embarrassed looks on thelr
faces. The main point of the monologue was that the Brads had to follow
precisely the instructions they were glven.

It had Just been brought to the attentlon of the poor people that thelr son was
under the eyve of cerlaln relevant structures for reasons relating to great state
Interests which they should not be aware of. Their misslon was 1o inform
immediately, directly and without recowrse to any third party (the two men
Insisted a lot on this requirement) of any strange, unusual or out of the
ordinary development In their child’s behavior, They were given a form to
Fill In with bath having to sign a statement confirming agreement with terms
and condittons. Also mentioned in the staternent was the requirement that a
monthly report be handed in o Colonel Datca. They were not allowed (o ask
any questions or know the reasons of that action, Sell, at the end of the visit,
they were offered a “special allowance™ In cash that was quite normal for
those times, to be recelved on a monthly basls as a "compensation” of sorls
for the strange situation that had practically been forced upon them. The wE?
men left immediately after that.

I should mention at this polnt some pleces of Information that can shed Hght
on the behavior of Cezar's parents. Nicolae Brad was over thirty and known
particularly as a quiet, somewhat reserved. and industrions man (he worked
as a clerk with the Mayaor's Office). Obedient in most cases, he was
nevertheless capable of compromise betraying some crevices and repressions
of his psyche. The Imelligence Service may already have had his
psychological record and had rightly assessed his inner lendencies since, as
It later turned oul. the allowance in cash was mainly meant 10 quiet down

some possible dissatisfaction and secure sincere cooperation on the part of
Mr. Brad. Indeed, psychaloglsts had commectly evaluated his emotional

profile as he proved (o be sensitive to financlal securlty which he even
placed above certain moral 1ssues. That was Nicolae Brad's “compromise”
and winning him over for the “cause™ of the Securitate had been quite easy.

Mr. Brad and his wife, Smaranda, were poles apart, Cezar's young mother
had a romantic and sensitive nature and the material side of e did nod

welgh much with her. Ever since her childhood, drawing had been her
passion and she would spend long hours amusing hersell or sinking deep in
thought with her sketches deplcting a wide range of themes that Inspired her

spontanecusly, Unfortunately, she could not harmess the energy it took to
face life and the conflicting situations made ber suffer. The situation In her

famlly had become rather fense as she was In a way forced to “spy” on her
own child. In her silent but helpless refusal. she would have lked (o have her
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hushand on her slde but he had quickly opted for the practical solutlon with
no complications attached.

“In Fact, we are nod being asked (0 do anything wrong, " he would say o
soothe her. “¥Ye don’t even know what to expect. Time will take care of
everything,”

This was his usual and philosophlcal closing remark. That was actually the
beginning of a separation between them with consequences that were not
necessarily pliysical but mostly emotional.

By the time he was three years and two months old. Cezar Brad had not
uttered a single word. For a while, his parents thought he was dumb but were
then quick to reallze that this could not b the case as the child laughed,
screamed at Hmes, or even babbled. True, those occaslons were qulte rare
but enough (o prove that his disorder. 1 any, was not pathological.

They met Colonel Datcu in the first month after the visit they bad had from 3
the Securltate when, according (o the commitment they had signed, they had
to se¢ him and hand in a report, To them, he seemed a kind, serlous and even
understanding man wha left the Impression he was acting only on an
obligation, He was nevertheless conscientious about his mission, talking in

detall with the parents about thelr child's behavior and dutliully writing
down everything he was told about the child. Every month, he himself would
glve Nicolae Brad the speclal allowance money. At the end of each visit, he
would always say: “You will talk to no one about these things, but above all,
vou will see no doctor about the child. Should any problem arise, I'll be the
first you' Il call and '] take measures as appropriate,”

By the age of three, the child had sulffered from no diseases which Is a very
rare occurrence. This made the iImposed task of first informing the
Securitate services and nol going (o hospital somewhat easier. Al about that

age, the first major change came up in the relation between Cezar's parents.
As Cagzar told me, his mother had a great passion for drawing and her talent

was marndfest. Deep down, she would have lked to paint but thal would have
meant linanclal complicatlons, a dedicated studlo, dme and much else
besides that. She had therefore limited her passion to simple sketches and

amusements that would cheer up her moments of loneliness. She would keep
her drawlings about the house or sometimes pin the finest of them (o the wall.

And they would stay there untll they would fall or she hersell would replace

Uhem.

Smaranda had a propensity for abstract drawlngs that combined lines, circles

ar curves In patterns with apparently no clear idea. She used to tell her

hushand those drawings made her Feel very spontaneous and free which had

a bracing effect on her.

One day, Smaranda Brad drew a series of slmple concentric circles in the
_middle of a blank page In a drawing notebook. She amused herself by
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comparlng her creatlon with the pattern of a target. As the clrcles wers
almaost perfect, she stuck the page (o & wall in one of the rooms. Everything
slarted several hours later when she found Cezar seated in front of the
drawing and staring at it without moving or blinking.

Although that was not quite natural, Cezar's mather did not attach too much
Importance o the event and continued to mind ber work about the house.
Bul when Nicolae Brad came back from work, the child was stlll sitting In
[ront of the drawing. perfectly still and silent. The occurrence was [airly
strange: a three-vear old baby seated on the bed and staring for hours ina
row at an Irritatingly simple drawing while his mother was wringing har
hands by his side, crying sllently and not knowing what to do. She had tried
to force him away from the drawing and had even unstuck it from the wall
bul to no avall. When bothered, the child started screaming out loud. The
twio parents looked at each other for a long while with no need for words.

Ar last, Cezar's father said, "It’s time we called them. Who knows what's
next?!”

"Walt!” Smaranda started retiing about. "We should allow some more Hme.
[t may only be a child's mood.”

It was with much difflculty that she talked him into not reveallng anything
vel, Very worrled, they spent the rest of the day testing varlous methods In
an attempl Lo take Cezar's atlention away [rom thal drawing. They were thus
hoping o bring him back to normality but all thedr attempts falled. As soon
as he was disturbed, Cezar started screaming, crying and there was no way
they could handle him any longer, They eventually gave up and then
walched him for a long while, almost In disbelief that something like that
was al all possible: thelr child was staring at the drawing, without moving or
blinking. He had not eaten anything and showed noe sign he would want 1o,
Nothing around could take him out of the concentrated efforts he was
making.

Al about ten o”clock In the evening, Nicolae Brad called Colonel Daico and
todd him about the sitwation. Colenel Datcu instructed them nod to pandc or
do amything until he himself came to their house together with some
authorized persons, Indeed. at about six o'clock in the morming, three men
arrlved with Colonel Datco. Two of them were from the Securltate, bearing
the same unmistakable appearance: sHEf faces, dapper sulls, cold looks. The
third person looked pecullar o the parents. He was an elderly man with
Aslan traits, a short white beard and a somewhat forward-leaning walk. He
was talking In English with one of the Securitate men. Colone] Datcu
Introduced him as a sclentist from China who was an expert on such cases
and advised the parents nol to worry.

The Chinese doctor watched Cezar carelully, Telt s pulse, louched his
palms in an odd manner, and placed one hand on the top of his head and two :
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fngers in the middle of his forehead, belng careful not to step into the visual
Held of the child. Through all of this, Cezar kept perfectly stll and rematned
deeply absorbed n the drawing in front of him. The doctor sald something in
English and then scuttled out of the house.

"Everything s perfectly fine, but you must not disturh him.” translated one 25
of the Securltate men. “We'll be In touch through Colonel Datcw.”

That was all and they immedlately left. The parents felt like two mere
puppets in a complicated play, but circumstances were such that they had no
other option. Worried and deeply concerned about the strange behavior of
their child, they stayed with him. dozing of with fatizue. It was only the
frllowing day at noon, after almost twenty-four hours, that Cezar showed the
first sign he wanted to stand up. The chilld continued to be deep within
himsall bul at least he ate heartily. His parents gave a sigh of rellel and
informed Colonel Dacty of the change.

That was the beginning of 3 series of special events which left a definitive
mark on Cezar's life. His parents, Nicolae and Smaranda Brad, moved into
the background as his Inner life and the extraordinary experlences he had
been through, some of which he personally told me about so that | could
describe them here, would profoundly mark his destiny.

After that unusual event, Cezar would often sink within himsalf amd be
perfectly still for minutes in a row. his eves closed. That used to happen at
the most unexpected moments of the day, even when he was al play. Once,
while his mother was feeding him. he suddenly closed his eyes and staved
lIke that for more than ten minutes after which be continued to eat as If
nithing had happened. Those feats had already become pard of ordinary life
and his parents had grown used (o them, but they did not understand the
causes and were glven no explanations or clarifications since, by that tme,

Cezar had not spoken a word.
Tha Ehang-u- ooowmed bwo months after the dmwmﬂ ewvent vwhen, for the First

time in his lfe, Cezar spoke. His words left everyone around the house al
thal tme gaping with perplexity both at the ease and clarity with which he
spoke those words and at the maturity of his ideas.

That day, relatives whao loved the child dearly were visiting the Brads. More
of a recluse, the child was looking for a place where he could be alone for a
while. He closed his eyes; but everywhere around there was too much talk,
too much notse, and oo many questons. Everybody was fretting aboul and.
although he was not the centre of attentlon, preparing the meal nvolved
much movement, talk, laughter and bustle, When they came to bring him to
the room where the table was lald, all caressing and fondling him, Cezar sald
clearly, I want to think!®

I will move quickly past the huge surprise and joy those words brought lo =5
evervhody around, Cezar had started to speak fluently and withoat any

1/
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difficulty as of that moment, showing maturity In everything he sald. By age
Tour, he used (o talk about matters that even adults would find puzzling. The
mind was one of the 1s5ues he liked o dwell upon. *Where do thoughts come
from? ¥Where do they go? YWhat are they made of? Why don’t all people
think the same thoughts?” These were only a few of the most frequent
questions Cezar would ask to the puzzlement of those around. His poor
parents were al a loss for answers. They would send him out to play or
chanpe the subject: but most of the time, Cezar was steadlast in his
determination. As opposed to the usual activities of a child his age, he
preferred sinking into thought, Strangely though, he would obstinately refuse
to explaln or answer when often asked (o tell what he felt or thought In those
moments. On very rare occaslons, however, he would say that, after closing
Iis eyes, he fell as if he was suddenly leaving the room: but he did not know
how Lo speak about the place of his destination or how he could describe 1t in
words,

By the age of six, Cezar had been visited once a year by the two Securitate
men In the company of the mysterlous Chinese doctor. The latter would glve
Iim a summary examination, always nodding his head in a pleased manner,
or would stare at the boy's eyes with his flery look. Cezar told me he could
very well remember that almost impersonal, tough and profoundly endgmatic
look of the Litthe man n front of him with only the touch of a smile on his
lace. He was (o meel idm later, after several vears, and learn from him,
unexpectedly, many mysteries of 1ife as destiny had browght the twao of them
together In a very complex manner.

Parhaps we shall never know what Doctor Xlen was thinking when watching
Cezar or what he was making of the child’s unusual capacites. Whal we
know for sure is that he later played an extremely important part in the boy's
existence and had a correct intuitlon of his exceptional abilities and gifts. It
Is actually very likely that he himself had supernormal capacities and powers
and that Cezar’s achievements as one of his students were such as to confirm
this lkelthood almost without a trace of doubt

Seoveral years later. Doctor Xien had a decisive hand in the special training of
the bov. 1 am not In possession of maore information abowt this enigmatic
character, but from the Hitle Information Cezar did reveal, 1 was able to
gather that Ceausescu (then Romanla's dictator] was Interested at the Hme in
a certaln parapsychology tralning program and in the use of its subjects iIn 27
highly secrot cases of national Interest. He seemed to have been influenced
by some plece of Intelligence that drew his attentlon to Intensive research
and parapsychologleal experiments conducted at that time In the USA and
the USSKE. In his capacity as Supreme Commander of the Stale, Ceausescu
Issued an order that a special department be sel up within the Securilate
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Soervice for the recrultment, tralning and development of human subjects
with unusual abilities.

The order involved absolute secrecy of the kind that was many levels above
simple classified Information. Due to 2 method known as hierarchical

Intelligence blockage, no speclal difficulty came up In maintalning secrecy
aboul the new department, but a lot was still (o be done about staff amd

logistics. As with almost any Communist Inltlathve, progress was
cumbersome when it came [0 Investmenis, particularly in a feld about which
little was known. It is not clear what purpose Ceausescu wanted this new
parapsychological line of action to serve, but one could surmise he mostly
targeted those procedures for psychic manipulation and influence over the
masses wlth a view to malntalning dictatorlal power and, (o a lesser degree,
Issues like natlonal delense or external conflict resolutlon.

Ceausescu ordered (he establishment of that Department in 1968, shortly
after his arrival to power, thus able to achieve maxinmum benefits out of his
popularity in the West, at that time on the ascendant. His widespread
diplomatic success was the result of two principal aspects: his almaost
oulspoken hostility o cooperation with Moscow and his opposition w armed
Intervention In the famous " Prague Spring” of 1968, Back then, howewer,
Ceausescu’'s order that a speclal department be: set up to conduct research
and experiments on subjects of exceptional abilitles was curlous and even
contradiclory In some of is aspects. This could lead 1o twe conclusion that
he himself was more dallving with an 1dea that was promisingly brewing
somewhere at the back of his mind rather than placing It high on his priority
lst. Still, much lke any cunning personality of paranokd disposition,
Ceausescu wanted 10 surround himsell at any cost with certainties and means
that would secure an indisputable problem-free domination. Obviously, he
coild not develop all his different ideas to the same extent; but he used to
come hack to each and every one of them, bringing what a long while before
was only a bud to a radlant bloom.

In 1968, the Komanian Securilate was confronted with a top secret order that
was not in line with the usual issuance standards. The order was dated 28

August, bore Ceausescu’s personal signature and. In an extremely rare &d
ocourrence, was accompanled by some personal nodes. The decree reqquested

the establishment of a speclal depariment, called Department Zero, (o
operate independently from the other departments and undts in the Securitate
Service of those times and report directly and only to the Head of the Service

and the President of the country (that was mentloned in the very note
Ceausescu had written which was drawlng attention both to the lop-secret

nature of the order and o the way In which It had to be followed). However,
the decree was economical with information odher than a very conclse
persannel grid and minimal instructions on the main lines of actlon which, ai
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the beginning, Involved recrultment and survelllance methods [n relation (o
[ulure subjects.

‘The decree pul the then management structure of the Securitate Service ina
difficult position since, on the one hand, it was about a relatively novel and
untested field; and, on the other hand, they could not follow the

standard fAnancing procedure for reasons of absolute secrecy.

When Department Zero was In the sarly days of Its operation, Ceausescu’s
agreement was sought in cooperation with another state with a certain track
record in the fleld: China. Diplomatic relations between the twio countries
were quite good and, In 1972, the authoritles agreed on a somewhat strange
"exchange.” Doctor Xlen was to run and s# the technical strecture of the
depariment (n BEomania for a period of fifteen years while Ceausescu was (o
[nance scholarships for one hundred Chinese students 10 Romanta for the
same duration. China also volunteered (o make available to the personnel in
Department Zero (known as DZ) some of the findings of its
parapsyvchologlcal experiments as well as other useful working methods. The
agreemend thus Lald the groundwork for one of the most secret and terrible
human actions in Komania: the parapsychologheal method.

Cezar Brad was ane of the tirst subjects recrulted and reglsterad with [,
however, not even Doclor Xlen or those inhigh positions In the department
(who got those written reporls from his parents) were aware of detalls or of
the subitle expertences of the child, particularly those details of an lnner
nature, Cezar would not talk about these to anyone,

The method DZ employved Arst Involved a perlod of "probation”™ and
supervision of the subject. Only after proving to be of exceptional psychic
abtlitles would subjects be integrated into the structure of the department.
Sometimes this “probation” and checks perod could last vears in a row as
was the case with Cozar, At other times, however, the subjoct would be 28
Integrated Immediately after the Informatlon recelved was checked.

Cezar had found a mental experimental world of his own into which he liked
to sink deeper and deeper and from which he would return enriched with
extraordinary sensations and perceptions. It was not one of thosa worlds
where one might think Cezar was seeking refuge for reasons ke some
hypothetlcal psychic adaptation difficultles or even some sort of mental
dllenation. On the contrary, the tnuth was different. The very fact that we
cannol grasp what is well above our aciual capacities does not mean thal that
thing, being, behavior or experlence is a negative of condemnakble aspect or
that, worse, It does not exist,

Cezar Brad's case was strange. Back then, little was understond and
accepted about 1t, even by [ staff. His case, however, did match the patiemn
required for the recrultment of I subjects.
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I must confess [ mysell am aware of only some of the amazing achlevements
and experiences Cezar had in the early years of his childhood. Cenerally
speaking, | think of mysell as a self-composed. sell-collected individual. but
Cozar's storles were far above my imagination, Of course, when listening o
him tell me about his experiences. what was there in front of my eyes was
nedther an emotionally unstable human belng nor a science Action writer nor
a paranold. To those with some knowledge of things esoterlc and who are
sill in key positions in the structures of the stale or have access (o Lop-secTel
Information and archives, the quick identification of the main elements of
the story in this book may not be difficult, But to the remainder, that s to
maost pepple who are practically bereft of comect Information and subjected
on an almost permanent basks to a spate of conflicting data and storkes,
holding a coherent common-sense personal view has become guite difficull.
By dint of my position as a governmenlt advisor that [ held a few years ago, 1
coiild do some discreet research and see for myself, based upon my own
obhservation and Intuitions, that Cezar Brad was an exceptional character,
The modesty with which he told me aboul his maln experlences and
activites. as well as some telling litte “incidents” 1 mysell was confronted
wiih In his presence, gradually convinced me of a reallty that could not he

denled: namely, that some human belngs are far above our conceptual,
mental or organtzational standards. If they so choose, these human betngs
can transform other people’'s destinles through the power of thelr superlor
abdlities,

One indisputable proof of Cozar's abilities came with our very first meating3?
which he requested some years ago. The meeting was the result of some
complex arrangements among trustworthy persons, bat Lis maln purpose was
sill a mystery w me. [ was vaguely aware of Depariment Zero within
today's Romantan Intelligence Service (RIS), but that was all. T arrived at
the place of the meeting stralght from work In one of the Institution's cars., It
was nighttime and pouring with raln so 1 stayed Inside chatting with the
driver. Aler several minutes the car door suddenly opened and, skipping all
lormality, Cezar sat himsell beside me on the back seat and started Lo talk
armfably and very calmly, getting straight to the point.

I was quickly drawn into the subject of our talk so that it was only after a
ferwr minutes that | reallzed the driver had already started the englne and was
driving silently to an unknown destination without my or Cezar's asking him
(o do that. Once in front of the Sofitel Hotel where Cezar had booked a
roodn. [ expressed my bewllderment at the driver's action who had been
glven no instructions. While we were heading to his room, Cezar told me
that, in some cases, words proved to be useless and the mental function,
when well-conirolled and purged of extermal Interference, could operate as

@Mcienty as words, In other words, Iwe was summarizing [or me the
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princlples of telepathy. I thought he was kidding me at first; but Immedlately
afterwards, he told me how be had done it at the very moment he was
saying hello and sitting himsell beside me in the car, he sent the driver the
mental instructions for starting the engine and heading to a particular
destination. Convinced that he had heard the verbal instruction, the driver
acted accordingly.
“When training In this direction Is Intensive and persevering, the telepatl
transmission of thoughts 13 no longer a problem,” Cezar sald with a sligt
smile.
After we entered his room, he made a drawing on a plece of paper. At tl
same time, he gave me the requislie explanations as follows:
“suppase Individual A ls part of a community of Individuals. His thoug
which are not strong, mix up with other people's thoughts resulting in a
mental ‘fog" of sorls since those thoughts are usually weall, unclear and
poarly defined, They are only fragments of superficial, half-haked ideas
One can then say that each of those indlviduals lives In relative 1solation
mental world of thelr own. Somehow, they are influenced — Lo a greate
lesser extent — by (he receptiveness of the individual 1n question and w:
the thoughts of those around, 41
“Most often, they percelve these outside Influences unconsclously, Hke
changes in dispositions or inner states of mind. That 1s why | have used e
term mental ‘fog'— because people can't see each other at this level, much
like a vessel at sea left without a rudder in foggy weather.”

MENTAL HAZE :

— e e - m—

Cezar stood sllent for a while, making yet another drawing.
“Bat If an Individual sends a very concentrated thought. that thought will
perfectly resemble a focused Hght beam, like a laser,” he added. “Moreover,
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IF that Indlvidual directs his mental beam with much precision o another
individual B, then the Latter will pereelve and mentally “see” thal beam like a
strong Hght through the “[og" around. like the beams of a lighthouse or a
strong light gulding vessels to the shore. The process is therefore simple, but

It takes diligent training.”
MENTAL FOCUS

e, S

—
“Laser” thought
(N
X

Another individuals \M.:-ntal & o)

“But what do you mean by mental purging?” [ asked with an innocence that

was much warranted by the sheer novel nature of the explanations he was

giving.

"In reality,” Cezar explained willingly, “what we call mental or the mind 15 a

very complex and subtle fabric serving many functions and belng structured

o vartous energetlc vibration frequencies. Some call these frequency

tes or powers. That's why achievements are nod the same

. a5 not all people have the same powers.

nce, individual A can eastly focus when learning, Individual B can

motlons well, individual C has a better memory than other people,

15 15 only a minute share of the potential avallable o us. Even so,

ecome mandles! in the surrounding mental mediocrily bul are nol yel
fned or trained adequately.

"By employing certain tralning methods, the mental abilitles of human

belngs can be very much developed which will later make them act highly
effllciently. That s whal I call "purging’ since, metaphorically speaking,

the mind sheds the layer of secondary thoughis often corrupded by mean
Intentions which are elther empty in terms of real content or weak and
powerless. Those who can thus "purge’ their mind can acquire extraordinary
mental power, Their mind can then easily plerce the mental “fog’ of the
masses, much lke an ammow cutting through smaoke. It 1s only from that level

23

DOX.BG




upwards that people leam, and at the same time experlence, the fact that the
mind, & a subtle form of energy, 15 superior to matter which 1t can
consequently subdue and control. i3
This 1s how paranormal powers emerge. These, however, also require a high
degree of Individual awareness because responsibilities are then huge.
Supernatural powers may trigger selflsh and arrogant actions in individuals
that can complicate thelr destiny a great deal. Much like when one throws a
ball at a wall: the ball strikes back with the same force. Omne must therelore
act maturely and discerningly to the benefit of those around and not to one’s
own Interest only.

“Unfortunately, some people develop such powers to serve selfish,
Individual or small group Interests. In some cases, the problem becomes
even more serjous when the aim 15 (o influence the masses with a view 1o
getting power and absolute control over them. This 1s the reason | wanted Lo
meet with vou, [ want to disclose these truths and you can help with making

them public,”

I was ulterly amazed al his words. In the space of only a few lens of minutes,
1 had been contronted with ideas and notdons | did nod even imagine existed.
A part of me was outraged, telling me 1 was definitely the target of a bunch
of lies or mockery. The entire scenario was somewhat phantasmagaorleal: too
Tast, too much, 100 unexpected. Despite all that, the prevailing impulse was
to fully trust Cezar Brad and even ofler (o cooperate uncondidonally,

My suspicions, all too natural given the circumstances, could not gain
ground (o the deep foeling that what 1 was dodng was good and noble. The
man In front of me Insplred mysterlowus confldence and Inner peace which
chased oul almost any urge my “normal” reasoning might have had o
digress or protest; thus epening up (¢ me the path (o a mysterlous realm that
was holding me spellbound,

Cazar did not want to waste any minute on useless talks or complex and
long-drawn-oul Intresductions. He was thus glving me the clear Impresslon of
a man who would not budge in his determination, getting straight o the
point with no beating about the bush or unnecessary delays. In spite of all
this, not for one single moment did 1 have the feeling of any abligation or
pressure for accepting his proposal. That was of paramount lmportance o
me. Among tdhers, Cezar Brad had the amazing ability to instlll gushing
enthuslasm [or one particular Issue and elfortlessly caplure people’s
attenton and interest, but this was a manifestly spontaneous and perfectly
natural influence on his part. It was his very subtle radiance that filled souls
In a wery pleasant manner.

| can hardly walt to describe the amazing events that followed; but still, my
“mission” must be gradual or else the risk is that | glve rse 1o susplclons in 3
the reader’s mind confronting them with a skein of events described in an
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unformed manmer. 1 shall therefore come back (o the chronologlcal
description of the principal events in Cezar Brad's Hle so that the reader can
understand as best as possible the way in which he unraveled the wheeling
and dealing and the alms and means of some occult Individuals and
arganizations who operate at global level and have stealthily cast thelr net to
Include Romania. As one will gather from the pages to follow, this was to
lead o a spectacular change in the sliuatlon, the maln character of which was
Cegar himsall.

As [ have already said, the climax was the amazing discovery in the Bucegl
Mountains in which several states and regions of the globe are Involved at
present, with the Amerlcan state and diplomacy in the lead. My knowledee
of this subject prompts me to say that Immedlately after the great discovery
in the mountains in 2003, diplomatlic relatdons between Romanta and the
Undted States of America became very complex and thelr balance was quite
fragile. This situation was due ta tensions triggered by conflicting Intentions
in the wake of the extraordinary discovery, Among others, those Intentlons
targeted the very conditlon of the human race.

In the months that followed that watershed event. ension was defused with a
Joint action plan devised at the highest level diplomatic levels of the two
slates. | shall describe the corresponding arrangements at the right time. For
the moment, 1 shall only say (hat the undersianding between Romania and
the USA was not convenlent to certaln political forces in our country whose
visions were much more progressive, This gave rise o further tension and
even trgegered a change of oplolon across the Eomanian political spectrum,
Last minute Informatlon that reached me right before this book went to prind
confirmed a future meeting 1 shall have with Cezar Brad (almost one year
after our last meet-ing) where I shall learn about other fulminating and confi-
dential aspects relating to the “great expedition” Cezar conducted with a
Joint Romanlan-Amerlcan team, starting from the reallty of the discovery In
the Bucegl Mountalns,

Although | am already in possession of the main data on the expedition, I
wotlld rather not anticipate but describe evervthing in a coherent manner and
im detall after T get hold of further precious information, T consider this step
o be necessary, particularly in view of the fact that people have a fght to
know the historical truth as well as who wanted to manlpulate this truth for 34
decades and [or what reason. This is the thread of the story in this book.
Whather It will resound with the consclousness of the people or. on the
contrary, will be met with irony and distrust, | am nevertheless of the firm
bellef that the commitment o writing and publishing this book &5 a
prafoundly beneficlal and posltive one as 1t will at least give rlse to certaln
guestions in people’s minds and stir up interest in the occull and subsle
dimensions of self-knowledge.
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When seven years of age, Cezar was pul In school but he excelled at no
subject. He was a normal student of average performance. Mothing bedrayed
any of his precccupations and thoughts and his grades were more a reflection
of what he heard and understood In the classroom as he almost never studied
at home. However, when Cezar was In the third grade, his teacher, who was
deeply troubled and puzzled, called his parents to school. She wanted (o
know whether they had noticed anything unusual in the boy’s behavior, but
both Micolae and Smaranda Brad frmly denied as they had been instructed
to do by the representatives of the Securitate,

The teacher then told them what had happened. As she had some papers to
prade, she Instructed her students to leam by heart a poem of a few stanzas
she had read out lowd beforehand at the front of the classroom. Shortly afler
that, she was surprised (o find that Cezar was looking absentrmindedly out of
the window while everybody else was learning the poem. She told him (o
mind the poem; bat after a few minutes, she found him dodng the same,
"Cezar, stand up!” she yelled at the child, "Why aren’t vou learning the
poem as everybody else?”

‘The by, retaining his calm and compoesure, did not seem Lo be al all
Intimidated by the threatening tone of his teacher’s voice,

"Bul I know It already,” he came back In a low volce,

“What do vou mean you already know it? Why are yvou Iylng Lo me?”

“1I'm nod Iving. | heard it when you read 1t out loud for us,” he replied.

Mad at the child’s bravery but also curlous about the trith, the teacher asked

him to say the poem In front of the classroom. Cezar repeated the entine
poem withoul a flaw.

“1 thought he had learned it belorehand al bome. Bul thal was a new lesson,
and as you well know, he doesn't go overboard about learning,” the woman
continued to explain excitedly,

“Then I asked him to say two more poems, Just as long as the Frst one,

which were not In the handbook but which I read for him only once. After 35
listening carefully, e repeated them both withoul mistake or any break. That
ts why I wanted to see you and talk to vou, because I have never sean

anything like this before,”

Shortly after, however, the Incldemnt was [orgotten. Cezar told me he was
quick to reallze the use of making himself Incomspleuous when In the
company of other people as that was a good way of avolding harassment.
curlosity of even meanness and envy, especially on the part of his friends.
"Even at that early age, I felt it was very important not to draw attention
upan mysell. There were plenty of other more Impartant things that required
my full attentlon and Interest when | was back at home In my room,” he told
e with an endgmatic smile.
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He was, of course, speaking about his mysterlous subtle experiences that he
had when sinking deap within himsell, far away [rom outside influence.

His parents had long ago given up roubling him with questions about his
attitude. That had grown to be a normal attitude as had the monthly reports
and the visits they got from the Securitate upon no prior notice. Until he
tumed ten, those around him had only one occasion to ook upon Cezar as
upon 4 “strange” human belng. That was when he gave his aunt, then
visiting (he Brads, a speclal warning,

Cezar was unaware of his aunt’s arrival. but when he came in and laid eyes
upon her, he stood transfixed as If looking through the hody of the woman in
front of him. Everyone had noticed something was wrong and asked him
what the matter was or whether he felt all fight, but the boy gave no reply
and headed to his room instead. It was only in the early hours of the evening.
troubled and anxious, that he asked his aunt when she would go back home
to Bucharest, Upon learning she had bought a train ticket for the next day, he
spemed to quiet down a litte, Sall, he asked her not to travel by car, a piece
of advice everybody present chose to disregard.

Emilla, Cezar’s aunt, was to leave for Bucharest the following day with her
brother, Mlcolae Brad, to settle some tamlly problems, Paradoxlcally, they

did not wake up In Hme to catch the next morning s traln since the clock had
broken and falled to sound the alarm. Emilia’s presence in Bucharest was
badly needed that morning so she got a L and ook the last free seal in a
car, Cezar's father came back home and was to leave for the capital on the
next train.

The terrlble news came shorlly before his departure to the rallway statlon. 36
The driver who had given Emilia a Lt had been involved 1n a serlous
accident in the nedghborhood of Bucharest. OF all the occupants, 1L was only
Emilia who died, the others having been wounded but were safe.

Smaranda Brad was the only one to remember Cezar's odd behavior as well
as the advice he had glven Aunt Emilia. She wrote that down In the monthly
report. but even that notable incident Gaded 1n significance in the face of the
huge surprise she experienced shortly afterwards. This was an event that

wimild take Cezar away from his family for good,
P AMD AWAY

Cazar was ten years old, but his level of perception, Judgment and behavior
was far above that age. He was litthe known by the other children in the
nelghborhood since he very rarely played with them. They looked wpon him
as If he were a freak and made up all sorts of mean storles about him, but
Cazar would nit mind them. His passlon was to stay for long perlods, even
hours In a row, with his eyes closed, deeply absorbed In realitles his parents
had nod the fopglest ideas about.
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Listening to him telling me those things, 1 fell 1l was the right Hme to ask
him mysell about those experiences he went through in those absolulely
special moments, experiments which were completely beyond the ken of
other people. Cezar stood thinking for a few moments, obyiously looking for
the mnost appropriate swords.

"It Is very difflcult to deplct In ordinary terms certaln realltles that do not fall
Inter the standard categories of logic and reason now prevalling, particularly
in the Western view of lUfe. Rather, these subtle worlds are closer o the
storles of Hindu mystics telling about thelr spiritual experiences very much
resembling those I have lived myself,”

That was the only tme Cezar told me briefly about ane of his mysterions
states of mind and profound feelings that were so strange and unusual to
ardinary people.

“Once [ came back 1o physical reality completely dizzy, spending minutes in
a row In an attempt to recognize the place where I was,” he continued his
story. “Although my eves were open, [ could see as If through fog or, better
sald, 1 could not reallze the objects around had contours that actually existed.
Cradually and very slowly, | started 1o reconnect @ my normal condition;
then | clearly understood that there's a certaln link bebween the mind and the
senses. | had been so deeply absorbed In certaln subtle dimensions that 1 was
lar above thal Link.

“It 15 usually quite difficult (o lose touch with the objective world. that s, w??
focus on yvour Inner self as best as possible, ablivious to external sensations
that one pets from one’s senses, but that was no longer a problem for me,
Paradoxically, my difficulty back then lay In rebullding the link between the

mind and the senses so that | could get reintegrated into te external
Information cycle. No doubt my sight was very good and my eyes were

open, but despite all that, 1 found it difficult to adapt to the normal
conditlons outside.

“For ease of understanding, imagine you have lved for several years in one
of the bigpest citles of the world where your standards of Hving have been
very high. Untoward circumstances then take vou to a deserted small island

In the middle of the ocean where rocks and cliffs are the prevalling
landdscape and living conditions primitive. The leap backwards |s huge and 11

will take you a while to adapt adequately.
“1 reallzed on that occaston Ut the buman mind i3 closely linked o bodily
sensatlons but that it can also be free from sensations when firmly controlled

and mastered through diligent practise. Sometimes, T would fall into trances
=0 deep that my mother had to slap me out of them and back to objectlve

reallty. At other times, In the grip of the euphorle Joy that [ felt when [ got
oul of meditation, I would sirive in all honesty o explain to my parents what
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I went through In those moments which were assoclated with highly refined
states of mind.

“Unlorunately, words are (oo weak 1o caplure the richness of those nuanced
states that po with subtle manifestations above physical reality. Highly
elevated subtle worlds are often inconcelvable to the erdinary standards of
reference of a gregarous consclousmess at physieal level. Once, however, |
did attempd to explaln In words the perceptions 1 had In one such meditative
experience. My parents had strongly insisted that I tell them about 1L

“As a result, I told them that the only association of shapes and colors that
came to mind and would have best answered the description of that highly
refined sublle world 1 had accessed was a check pattern of trmegularly thick
red and yellow strips agalnst an Indigo background. | was very happy
Inspiration had helped with that suggestive imagery thal rendered accurately
the features of that world. but my enthusiasm faded almost immediately
when 1 noted thelr dishelieving and compassionate looks, T then reallzed that
any attempt at an explanation couldn’t possibly yield any notable result.
Ignorance Is a terrlble limit to human evolution. 1 therefore gave up for good
any altermpt at explaining what was practically impossible o render. 3
“When | sank Into deep meditatlon and practically lett this world behind, the

most motable sensation [ percelved In those moments was an Immense
[reedom of actlon and the clear feeling that | could grasp the mystery of any
place or act on this planeL. In dme, 1 had learned how o explore realms
farther and farther away, but you shouldn’t imagine that this resembled a
Journey by means of transportation,”

Indeed, In those moments [ was attempling to Imagine such a subtle
experience al a mental kevel and thought 1t could be associated with the trek
of a spacecrall in the sidereal universe. Cezar, however, immediately
captured that thought of mine and then, full of understanding, alerted me o
the correct Imagery.

“The memntal and causal worlds,” he continued, “are governed by other laws
and [eatures a lol more comprehensive than those we are aware of at the
physical level we inhabit. This, however, is not the subject of our meeting,

Suffice It to say that In myv “travels’ through subtle dimensions, T was nevier
dlone but flrmly and preclsely gulded by a force | percedved as glgantic bat
full of love which would often explaln and reveal to me many of the

mysteries | was confronted with. Owing (o this kind of subtle *protection.” 1
made my way successfully through the early vears of my childhood and the

psychic experiences, some of them very strange, that T lwved.”
Cezar stood sllent for a few moments. [ then wanled with all my heart to be

ane day able to leam about those mysterles of superlor worlds which might
have offered me a viable answer with respect 1o my part in this world. In a
more of less obvious way, each of us has felt this Impulse at least once In our
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Hves, but most of the times It 1s destiny thal shows us the way to act on that
Impulse or not. As far as [ am concemed, 1 considered Cezar Erad to be the
“volce” of my destiny and 1 was very anxious 1 learn, with his help, as
much as possible abowt [nitiation and 1ts many sides which are often much
ohscured.

The first major change in Cezar's life came up in 1980. The Brads were
knovmn as a "sirange” famlly among nelghbaors, especlally because they bullt
almost no Hes. They also clammed up and would only give hall-answers (o
questions. COn the other hand. Cezar spent more and more time alone in his
room, deeply ahsarbed in his meditations. Events happened quickly in a
manner characteristic af the Securltate whaose oppressive and abuslve
practices were already widely knorern at that time.

Al the beginning of January that year. an a quiet winter day with big and 9
Nuity snowflakes falling shindngly white over the litde town at the foot of
the mountains, Cezar came back from school in a state of inner ebullience,

the raot causes of which he himself could not explain very well. Eagerly, as
he almost always did upon coming back home, he went into bds room and sat
himself on the bed in his favorite position, his legs crossed and ready for the
deopest of meditations. Already familiar with his habits, his mather did not
cdllisturts him but told him he would have to come and have lunch in a shord
while.

What happened in the following hours puts a human bedng's good faith 1o a
hard test. I shall attemmpt a faithful description of the event using Cezar’s

very winds after more than twenty vears following the day of his memorable
experience.

“Pretty quickly, I entered the vasiness of the mental realm which was then
already famibar to me and sank into the contemplation of some abstract
aspects related to the archetypal energies of what we call “air.” When I was
deap In meditation, the world around was completely changed. T was always

Invigorated by an Inexbaustible stream of energy, and at the same time felt
absolutely free and ravenous for knowledge. 1 am speaking abaout knowledge

that is far above the profane knowledge we come across in books and
handbooks. Modemn scientilic knowledge fisell is preity limited, particularly
because It is based on effects but does not grasp their fundamental roaot
causes, The knowledge [ am speaking about |5 not discursive but deeply
Intultive and spirftual. This knowledge can't be understood theoretically bt
can e acquired by direct experience.

“Consciousness, which then vibrates in a different function of the subject of
meditation, no longer perceives the limits of the physical body., T had
therefore sunk into the sublime world of a sound coming from everywhere.
In fact, I rather had the sensatlon of an Hluminating sound full of pure and

extremely refined energy. The general sensatlon 1 then el was one of
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Infinite, boundless splendor. [ don't remembser how much time had passed
since my immersion inio thal infusion of sound and light, but it couldn 't
have besn more than an hour, | was vaguely aware of my body and the world
around and, at a glven moment, I felt a faint quiver in my feet and the slight
swing of my physical body which, in a strange manner, T could almost see
from outside.

"It was a sensation of relative Instablility but 1 was not worrled since 1 had
had stmilar experlences before. Stll. something strange was happening
because [ couldn't feel the presence of any foundatlon. It was as if I were nd”
longer seated on the bed. Half awake. T opened my eyes and then startled
because [ was up in the alr, about half a meter above the bed. My legs were
crossed, almost as In the Indilal position but hanging slightly down. My body
was very slowly swinging in the air but staying mosty in the same area. |
was not scared bul rather overexcited with the strong emotion that was
traversing my whole body, 1 was thinking that In the future [ would have to
control this phenomenon very well unless T wanted to give rise (o serious
problems and complications in my lfe. Right when I was pondering on this,
my mother suddenly opened the door o ask me (o lunch. | think you can
easlly imagine what followed, She did not faint but was very scared and
leaned against the wall, looking at me in awe. Somewhat shocked by the
niodse of the door opening suddenly and by my mother's mulTed scream, [
mysell came back to normal condittons ina tougher manner. falling w one
slde and onfo the bed. T felt a vague sensatlon of nausea and pain In my
neck.”

Cezar iold me about that event In a simple and natural manner and without
belng at all Intent on persuading me of the truth of his story. Al the same
Ume, he wanted (o make me understand that the revelatlon of a peculiar
aspect or the belief in anything 15 not usually the direct result of satisfying
some banal curiosity, I clearly felt that had [ then requested such proof, 1

would have been confronted with a pollte refusal,
On another occaslon, Cezar told me that those with cerlaln paranormal

powers who have deeply understood the significance, cause and mission of
those powers will never act haughtlly o prove thelr special abdlities o other
people and will never use thelr supernatural powers for selfish personal

purposes, That s why those Individuals will never wish for thelr merits to be
acknowledged and will not seek fame, which bs transient. In additton, those
who are genuine in their knowledge, experience and powers will not iry 1o
convince the susplcious, the materfalistic and the distrustful because true
conviction must first come from within In order for it to be stable and bear
fruit in the future,

The minds of most people are weak and unprepared for the shock of some
realltles, To M1 in this gap, ey usually take an armogant and fronlc atltude
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to "forbldden” subjects which are those subjects on the borderline between
the material world and the subdtle realms of Creation. Their distrust, in fact,
betrays the lack of their will for knowledge at the basis of which Hes a deep
foeling of foar of the unknown. They often delude both themselves and othed!

peaple by claiming that if they witness a demaonstration of paranormal
powers which 1= nol a scam, they will iImmexdiately belleve that there Is more

to the warld than the physical unlverse. Experience has shown that In the
case of such a demonstration. the shock 1o which a raw mind i85 exposed 18
often too unexpected and strong for is low level of understanding. Generally
speaking, spectators to such demanstrations react In two possible wavs, They

elther cantinue to deny, even vehemently, what they have Just requested and
then seen with thelr cwn eyes. This sometimes degenerates Into verltable fits

of hysterla. If not in dendal, they resort 10 some sort of formal acceplance
under the spur of the moment which Lo fact is shorn of inmer conviction. This
acceptance will very scon glve way (0 old disbeliefs like a wall of psychic
protection against what cannot be understood or could trouble the dadly
routine of thelr humdnm existence.

| have thus understood that, in time, practice leads o beliel as even the

efforts we are then making are, 1n a certaln way, a kind of belief, In fact, the
great majority of people belleve firmly In something, but thelr bellef Is

wrongly targeted in a destructive and perveried manner. Thus, many people
strongly belleve they don't believe and this is enough 1o open the [loodgates
to fears and doubts; angst and prejudice; and thus deprive them of the

capacity to understand the very essence of things, But, the greatest drawback
Is thal they Fetter thelr souls and almost without reallzing It They become
shallow, selflsh and emotlonally flat, lacking In the force and pulsatlon of
penuine feelings. Most often, 1t 1s human beings themselves who set Hmits (o
thetr ovwn potential.

smaranda Brad may have been as yet unprepared for what she had seen,
Thal day, her understanding had been put (o a hard test but It seems she had
nid had the necessary power Lo experlence the ematlon of the unknown.
When Nicolae Brad came back [rom work, his wile (0ld him about the
incldent. They both agreed they should inform the new contact person
(Colone] Datcu had been promoted and moved to another town).

Late at night, a car palled up in front of thelr house and two Securitate
agents got off. This ime, Doctor Xlen was nid present. The event that had
been mentiomed in the report called for a different sel of measures and a
different protocel. Under the pretext of a special control to which he had Lo
be subjected, the agents took Cezar with them, got him into the car, and sped
off in the thick of the night. That was the 1ast fime he saw his parents,
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Chapter Two — Department Zero «

[n 1980, thirteen years after this "occult” department had been established In
the Securilate, several objectives were achleved thal enabled a clearer piciure
of the policy 1o be [ollowed towards [ulfilling the purpose Tor which the
department had been created, At the beginning, Ceausescu’s “whim”™ 1o sot
up the department had created much confuston and many teething problems,
In the 1980°s, however, a prefty well deflned organlzational structure had
bean sed in place and adequate loglstical concerns were satisfed.

In fact. Mnancing had been a “hot” issue [rom the very beginming as
Ceausescu - In an apparently inexplicable manner - had *forgotten” to make
clear how funding would be secured. On the other hand, nobody had been
brave enough to shatter the confuslon of the early days. In front of the
Communist [Mctator, any such venture would have been tantamoundt to
deflance or at least incompetence. Both interpretations would have incurred
great problems for and put an end to the carer of any “enterprising” spiri.
The funding method was the one that was usually applled In extreme cases:
the absolute order of the Head of the State would be invoked and funding
would be secured by collecting from amounts available o other flelds. That
was the compromise employed for the first three years after the department
had been sel up.

With the passage of ime, things changed for the betier and two secret
operatlonal bases were made avallable: one located close o the town of B...
and the ather in the Retezat Mountains, a short distance away from Valea
Ursului (a fictional town used to protect the real location). Due to the fact
that a logisthcs base of sorts had been growlng since the department had been
sol up, as of 1972, new Tund-atiraction tactics were employed consisting of
repeated “diplomatic” interventions with Ceausescu at carefully chosen
moments, Convinced and even enthuslastic aboat the prospects that the
development of the department could have offered, he gave instructions that
Department Zero be flnanclally supported by two "fictitious companles™ In
Uruguay. These companies were passed off as Intermediaries of oil
businesses in oflicial papers bul were in [act spectallzed in laundering
procends from the illici transactions of the Latin Mafia, ® REevita Unio™ and
"Nann & Co,” wore the two companies that provided fabulous amounts of
money for the Ceausescus, belng managed at that Hime by a real genlus In the
leld. This was General Meres, a man | had the opportunity of meeting
personally. He is probably one of the few people who had a correct Infultios?3
- long before the final stage - of the end of the Communist system In Europe
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and of Ceausescu’s downfall or, more accurately, of the clroumstances In
which thal was o happen.

“Bark my words, Radu dear,” he sabd. “There are unsuspected Lorces at play
eating at the root of this... people servicing the smoke-screen and

undermining Ceausescu, his concelted Impaulses, the economy ... and they
don’t operate from within. But my and my [amily’s future Is secured.
Motorean from the Securltate knows all that, but I"'m too well placed o be
deposed. [ don't think this siluation can continue [or more than two or three
yedars from now.”

This discussion took place some time In 1288 and T must admit that It was
somewhal portentous because, In an upsurge of inspired rhetorlc, the General
then surmised that Ceausescu had no chance of making a “clean” escapse
Irom the Tury of the people and that the same occull forces (which he would
nol name back then) would hatch not enly s downfall but also the gradual
takeover of power, The subsequent political and economic evalution of the
country confirmed his words with a vengeance,

Meres made a sudden disappearance In 198%, shartly before the Revolution.
He could not have chosen a better moment since the “commotion” that
gripped the Communist system In the Europe of those times did not allow
the necessary time for a thorough investigatlon to find the “traltor” as the
usual procedure would have required. Although he relied on his huge
Influence and secrel power, acling almost always in the backslage, CGeneral
Meres had never dropped any hint aboat the place where he and his family
might take refoge, His complex personality made him act Hke a very strong
and Influentlal but practically unseen amd unknowm puppeteer.

I was one of the few people who had access (0 his close entourage, bul even
s0. I knew almost nothing about lim or his very discreet life. His sense of

self-preservation, his refined ego and exceptional intuition in business led to
his remarkable financlal success In the management of the two companles.

These, in turn, had been set up due to his very strong diplomatic relations on
which Ceausescu himsell would sometmes lall back on Lo achieve varlous
ends. Though a mere rumor at the beginning, it 15 now a certainty in the

upper corridors of power that Meres was the main character who saw o the
opening and replenishment of the controversial Ananclal account of the

Ceausescn's, the value of which was estimated at approximately one billion
dollars,
It 15 only the General and perhaps two of three other people who know a4

exactly how much money was deposited in that account and what Its curment
sltuation s - this belng an 1ssue with enormous Interests at play. It s

nevertheless pasy to assume that General Meres, whom Ceansescu had ghven
a [ree hand when Tully entrusting him with the task of managing the two

fictitious companies in Uruguay. did not stop at replenishing the dictator’s
34
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personal account but also Hned his own pockeds with huge amounts of
lorelgn currency. Ceausescu might have bopn aware of this bul that was the
only instance when he did not take pundiive measures since his own [nancial
Lnterest was at stale, and identifying an equally suitable replacement would
have been difficult and also very sensitive

O can therefore surmise that a tacht and mutually advantageous agreement
had been established bebween Meres and Ceausesou, with sach pretending
nod o be interested in the thoughts of the other. That 15 why the positlon of
Caneral Meres in the political and economic machinery of the state was
entirely special and those who knew him regarded him as a kind of “gray
eminence”, Inaway, Meres was Indestructible and as far as | am aware, that
was Lhe only situation Ceausescu accepted without any comment In his entlre
career as Communist Dictator,

It 15 most Hkely that, at present. Meres Hves his golden age on one of the
Balearic Islands or In the splendars of Crete, watching from a distance - a
mallcious smile on his face — the workings of power in Bucharest. From a
different perspective, Eomania lost a man of exceptional organlzational and
decisive abilites, Ceneral Meres might have been one of the main pillars of

the state bart af the same Hime, 1t Is almost certaln that e was In on certaln
serrEls whibch made him “retire”™ before his timo. His indaition and d!plnmall-:

experience thus helped him a great deal in retiring at the best possible
moamenL.
Ceausescy ordered that Department Zero be financed generously from the

funds that Meres managed at the two companies abroad, From 1968 to 15980,
Department Zero was led by no fewer than flve heads of departments, but of

them all, only Colonel Obadea stood out (after ids appodntment in 19749) by
dint of his enterprising spirlt and new ideas that helped a lot with improving

the activity of the depariment.

As the fleld of activity of that Securltate Depariment was still relatively
obscure at the dme and nobody had any experience or ideas about what had
Lo be done, Obadea had the preat epportunity of being glven greal declsion-
making freedom at a time when the department was made independent and
lts activities lsted under the top secrot category. This implicithy meant that 45
Colonel Obadea’s posttion in the hlerarchy of state power was somewhat
similar to a Minlster's position. However, due o his entlrely speclal
lnvelvement with the apparatus of the Securltate, the Colonel's position was
Ln theory welghtler and even more nfluential, being closer to that of a
Minister of State, but impossible to wield in the political sphere,

In structuring the Department of which he was the head, Colonel Obadea

followed a stmple principle: Information should be passed on directly (with
recourse (o one inlermediary al most) and operations run on a skeleton stafl.
At the same time, however, it was necessary that those who were selected to

35
DOX.BG




work for the department be highly competent and even professiomals In thelr
lelds.

The Colonel had the instinct that in order to implement those basic ldeas, no
compromise could be made. He nepded special equipment and above all,

paramilitary elite specially trained for unusual interventions, Given the
prodocol assoclated with his position, Colonel Obadea was one of the few
people who had direct and Immedlate access (o Ceausescu, lrrespective of
the circumstances.

Reports were presented to the dictator by Obadea himself and then handed to
him on the same day because — as a measure of maximum security — they
were typed In one copy and then slegned and sealed only by the Colonel, His
positlon was so strong that he did nod need to explaln his actlons o anyone
other than the President of the State and the Head of the Securitate. On the
other hand. however, he had the power of requesting the assistance and
support of any Institution in the country, A private phone line was

established between him and Ceausescu and information and reports
recelved from Department Zero were categorized as State Secrets —
classification level: 5. Access was only granied 1o Ceausescu, the ] lead of
the Securitate, the Chief of Staff and, of course, Obadea himself.

Initially (shortly after belng appolnted as head of Department Zero), the
Colonel had presented the Dictator with a st of sixieen proposals making up
the essential infrastructure for a Nawless operation of the department.
Coausescu approved them all. Subsequently, however, acting on his specific
cunning and his fear that Obadea’s power might set 3 danperous precedent,

Ceausesou crealed some “safety valves.” As a consequence, the Colonel
could no longer act and Interfere with all the Institutlons In the country but
only with those operating in [lelds related o the actvity of the department.
The limits of this clarification, however, were very fuzzy. One other -
restriction was that Obadea was no longer allowed access to ather state
secrets or thase of the Securltate apart from classifled Information emerging
from his own department. Finally, when requested, he had to accept the
Head of the Sacuritate having the possibility o wrile fact-linding reporls for
Ceausescu’s use but without the Head of the Securitate having any decision
making rights.

Still, due to the specificity of the Department, those slight "amendments™ did
not trouble Colonel Obadea much. His excellent performance In the years
that followed proved his professlonalism and ability to handle the oflen
complicated relations with his subordinates. These extraordinary security
measures tumed out to be highly efficient even several years aftor the
Eevolution which proved that Department Zero had been founded on very
solkd and secure groumd.
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My bellef 1s that the secrets In Department Zero flles were better kept than i
even army secrels or foreign intelligence. Those Ales were presentod (o

Ceausescu and bore several marks as in the diagram below: |
- 5 5 g . I

THE SECRET LEVEL OF INFORMATY

STATE ARCHIVE :

No, 00345789/ Section | 1

The President of the State !

TOP SECRET
REFORT — ZERO DEPARTMENT
No. 9, Unique record
Concerning the gallery or
from Cave Stan) =

— o P o o i i

After the Head of the 5State took note of the content of the reports and had a
summary discussion with Obadea, the file was handed to the Colonel and

locked away ina special safe In his offlce localed at the operatlonal base In i
Valea Ursulul. Prior to thal, the flle was sealed with a wide red Lape and a H
lead seal. The tape bore the words: !

i m— —

LIMITED ACCESS: I. FRESIDENT OF THE COUNTRY

[ o]

. THE HEAD OF THE ZERO DEPAR
J. THE HEAD OF SECURITY
SERIES: A1I-NO9 (THE SECRET STATE ARCHIVE

In the thick web of unlts and departmenis of the Securliate, the Army and the
Mimistry af the Interior, Department Zero stood out as an 1sland apart, almaost
Westlern in 15 outlook and separated [rom the other activites of the state by
Its very specificity. That was the general framework when Cezar was
brought to the secret hase close to B... in 1980, ;
By comparison to living standards back home, Cezar had access to all the

comiort and exceptional lechnical equipment at the base, The design and the !

>3/
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construction of the hase had been entrusted to a speclalized company in the
United States and the technology and equipment orderad and imported from
the Metherlands,

The building had been made operational almost one year before, shortly after

Colonel Obadea had been appointed head of the department., Tt had two main
[boellesSone earmarked for the staff and routine activilles and the other —
larger and more sophisticated — earmarked For those who were selected and
brought in. The larger area consisted of several apariments. a kilchen, a
cafetaria and an isolated laboratory area where experiments were carried
out,

The base area was surrounded By a high concrete wall and access In the
nelghborhood was resiricted within a one-hundred-meter range under
military guard. Apparently. the entire area had all the marks of a simple
military unit arousing nelther suspiclon nor any speclal interest. Supples
came In once a week 50 as (o keep contact with the outside waorld to a
mininm.

When Cezar arrived, four more subjects were already there: three children
and ome adult, Cach was assigned to one of the siylish apartments In the main

bullding which they were allowed to leave only at certain hours, Thelr
schedule was not very busy, but security was very strict. There was a staff of

ten — nine men and a woman, aged 35-40 vears — who acted as advisor (o
the myysterlous Doctor Xlen. I will not go any [urther with such details
Althoupgh Cezar did give me a thorough description of the place and its

activitles.

Subsaguently, by a combination of favorable clreumstances, [ was allowed
to visit the place and 1 must admdt it iImpressad me deeply. Even if at that
time the base did not serve the same purpose as in the "B0s, its actvity
continued under very strict and secret conditions.
Piﬁlr\ nt five years in that military campus. He quickly realized that his
refalfonship with his pareqds was probably over for good, but al leaslt the
place offered him unsuspected passibilitles o develop his speclal abllitdes.
‘He met his mates either during recreatlon and sports hours or during Doctor
-Kien's special classes, Each of them was endowed with cerlain powers
which Cezar described to me in brief and with much humor,

For instance, one of the children, a boy aged 14, stood out by the sheer width
of his umbllical cord - about ten centimeters In dlameter - covering a large
part of his abdomen. Irrespective of weather conditlons, he would wear only
one pair of thin cotlon (rousers. His name was Eduard. His psychic radiation
was 5o strong that anybody around him felt somewhat uneasy and Insecure
amd even

gripped by a feeling of fear, the orlgin of which was not clear but which

shortly became overwhelming. Those sensatlons wers [ell wiwen Eduard was
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those stages. Unfortunately, in 1884, he was relocated and [ have never seen
him since.”

Although I bad grasped the gist of the explanations, 1 still had a few guerles.
For instance, it was not clear how consciousness could expand or how by an
act of will one coaild perceive a cortaln frapment of time. Mo sooner had
those problems sprung to mind than Cezar replied Instantly before 1 had the
Hme to ask the question:

“In order 1o be able w really travel in tme at a consclous level, one needs a
particularly refined perception and level of knowledge. Once the temporal
‘target’ s established at mental level, focusing one’s mental energy on thai
area will trigeer a resonance process whereby one gets to actually “llve’ In
the respective ime Interval and perfectly 1denilfy onesell with the frames of
mind, emotlons and features of those Wmes, much like a spectator at a film
who somehow becomes part of the reality of that lm. In other words, one
can see, hear, smell, taste and touch exactly as one would normally do in
one’ s own time frame except that sensations are felt as there and then
because they already happened. This In fact glves one the certalnty that the
experience of tme travelling was a true one rather than the lusory product
of a mmpant Imaginatlon. Ut course, there |s also a possibllity for the
physkcal body (o travel In time, but the way In which this can be achleved
Individually requires more complex explanations. Besides, the moltivation
for such a journey must be very strong and Important because, al the tme of®!
the journey, there are major Interferences,”

For the moment, 1 was satlsfed with those clarlflcations and, deep down, |
sincerely set myself the goal of getting to experlence those fascinating
realitles myself. During the time he spent at the base In B..., Cezar made
remarkable progress. developing s perception skills and abilities Tor subile
action. Some of his extraordinary spiritual experiences were known to the
mysterfous Doctor Xlen who, with much competence and care, had shown
Cezar the way all that while and whenever difficultles came up.

Doctor Xien and his assistant suddenly disappeared shortly after the
Revolution in 1989, but nobody seemed to know how and swhy that had

happened, The general point of view was that a long contract of
collaboratlon was over. | am sure Cezar krewy the tmeth aboast 1F bt far some

reasan, he did not want to glve me more detalls.
The contacts between Cezar and the other occupants of the establishment
were very few in number and only circumstantial, the rules in this respect

being very hard and fast, In fact, untll the beginning of 1986, he was the only
one to be kept at thal locatlon without belng transferred. Mone of those

whom he found there In 1980 stayed there untll his departure. As thme
passed. his mates were senl 10 other locations, bul the reasons for those
transfers remalned unknown. Cther people would be brought In, but Cezar
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could not Find out much about them because they were transferred guite
cuickly.

1986 was a “lurning point” in Cezar's lfe and reached a climax with an
extraordinary spiritual experlence. The events of those times were
nevertheless closely linked to the presence and actions of the head of
Department Zero, Colonel Obadea. He greatly appreciated Cezar amd the two
of them often discussed varlous kssues relating to the activity of the
department. Though a teenager, Cezar's personality was nowhere near the
“normality” associated with that age. The life and experience at the base in
B... unfolded to ather standards, a kot higher than those of the outside waorld,
The place appeared to belong eerlly o a pacallel world where the laws of
physics amd the concepds and ldeas of its Inhabliants no longer obeyed
unanimously accepled norms.

1t 15 true that. as the head of Department Zero. Colonel Obadea saw mostly
to military, security, administrative and even political 1ssues; but he was also
fully aware of the content of each “subject’s” socret file, following the
actlvity amd achlevemenis of everybody who was brought there with much
Interest. Al that time, Obadea was one ol the few Securltate people of w2
Impeccable moral conduct and kept an open mind, At the same time, he was
also politically canny agalnst the varlous forces and Interests at play.
Subsequent events were 10 prove thatl the Colonel’s plans and ideas had
already been put into practice in that pertod, bul let us not anticipate.

In 198&, a clash of interests was smouldering between Obadea and the Head
of the Securltate who was nod much In Favor of the ® Independence” of the
department. The latter had already run several checks at Department Zero
bases. There was no justification o prompl those checks, bul thatl was a way
of gradually “undermining” Obadea’s positlon in front of Ceausescu with
reports ending on an unfavorable note belng submitted to the Dictator, The
Idea was to depose Obadea and absorb Department Zero Into the general
structure of the Securltate which would have enabled declslon making
powers over the department. The scheme, however, was only hall-baked and
short of finesse. Ceausescy himself, who was known fior his suspicious mind.
did not pay the Head of the Securitate much attention, but tension was there,
That was why Cbadea had to act carefully and take a winding course to
bypass the vigllance of his superior, the head of the Securltate.

That vear, the Colonel made the surprising decision (hatl Cezar should visit
his family which he justified by a so-called “shaky™ emotional balance of the
subject that had to be restored,

“In reality,” Cezar sald with a slight smile, "Ohbadea’s Intentlon was entlrely
different. The vislt was only a smoke screen, a red herring for a much more
Important actlon. As far as [ was concerned. 1 was fully aware of my
family's situatlon even If [ was physlcally apparently Isolated from my
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parents. For Instance, [ "knew” thal my father bad died bwo years before In a
stupdd accident; and with much diffculty, my mother had recovered after the
loss. ¥ou must be wondering how 1 got 1o know that withoul leaving the
base and without anybody informing m+e about what had happened. I can tell
youi It was only miv physical body that was restricted in its movement, but I
had very greal freedom of thought and action In other subtle bodles.”

In response to the bewllderment and distrust that could be read on my face,
Cezar continued o explain with goodwill and patience.

“Your doubt stems from a lack of knowledge about essential realities. It's as
If you waore a coat padded out with money about which you know absolutely
nodhing. You continue to wear I, bat you go begging every day (o support
yourself. [ think you have already understood we are far more than a 43
physical body with a wedght attached. Practical experience will prove this o
wou without a trace of doubl. Y ou will then discover that a difTerent body. a
lot more ‘flexible’ and “lght,” if T can say s0, 15 at vour disposal to make
known to you many other secrets and mysteries. OF course, this body that IS
more subile in nature than the physical body Is ltself governed by certaln
laws and restrictions because there are structures in us thal are ved a lol moro
reflned and subtle than this other body; but by comparlson to the physical
body. this one 1s located In a higher dimenslon which the ocoult and the
Inittated call the “astral dimension.’

“Acquiring the ability of being consclous aboul your own asical body as one
Is abouit the phvsical bady is a relatlvely easy process to some people, It
Involves a certain degree of purifilcation amd elevation of consclousness
that level. There are very many human beings who have llved at least one

such experience which papers in the fleld call *consclous astral division’ or
‘exirasensory experlence.” Such an experience can happen accidentally: for
Instance, such as after a strong emotion or durlng REM sleep when, for
shorter or longer periods, one s aware one 15 dreaming. Or, they can happen
by an act of will, whenever one pleases, but that 1s more difflcull to achleve.
Some people who have already attained a high degree of development of
their psychic and spiritual abilities are perfectly aware of thelr astral bodv,

even when they livie and act normally in thelr physical body. But this
Invalves a highly elevated level of Individual consclousness development
dbout which we shall nod be talking now.

“Cenerally. those who live the expertence of consclous astral division want
to get Information about of access to special places or circumstances due to
some mean or selfish interests they are pursuing. The method 15 and was
used with a certaln margin of error in millary, economic or even political
esplonage by the greal powers of the waorld. Yel, those who make use of this
psychic power in a sellish manner are confronted with repeated Callure,

disillusion and stagnation at inferlor levels of thought and behavior becauss
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they don’t know or simply Ignore certaln essential Laws that describe the
harmony amd relation betwoen the act and s resull. By way of analogy, it's
the same as when a plpe through which waler runs freely pets gradually
stuck on accumulating dirt to the point of blockage. That is why many of
those who, at the beginning stages, enjoyed the varlous psychlc powers they
had acquired or had already had could In time note a gradual diminution of 54
those powers amd (o the polnt of total loss In smme cases.

“T'his must make vou understand the particular iImportance of responsibility
for an action in such cases. You should know that in their great majority, and
particularly for reasons of ignorance or lethargy, people prefer to deny the
things or facts o which they don't have direct access through thedr senses or
direct experlence. Bui only a few — due to a cerialn degree of elevatlon they
have attained - actually realize that the freedom of action they enjoy in
conscious astral division experiences is a reality they must use in a
constructivie rather than selflsh manner

“One can then notice and know aspects of datly life that are relatively
ordinary, but It 1s also possible to learn secrets that some people would wanl

lo know but canmot know. Just as there are barriers al the physical level,

there are also certaln “barriers” at the astral level blocking access to
Information about certaln secret places or aspects. Silll, the freedom for
action and movernent is way bevond the possibilitles at the physical level,
Obstacles and barrlers at the astral level are meant (o serve as a selection
process for those who want to learn certain secrets and mysterlos.

“This Is done by taking Inio account both thelr speciflc vibrational frequency
and the reasom behind the act. At the astral level, movement obeys princlples
Uat are entirely different rom those in the physical world, belng trigpered
by an act of will and happening either at a certain speed - usually very high
- or almost Instantly to any spat on this planet, swwhether under water,
underground, above ground or in the alr.

"Mare speclal In nature are travels In cosmic space (o olher planels ar
celestial bodles when, al the [rst stage, experiences should be Hmited 1o our
solar systermn. At a later stage, however, as some aspects and secret laws of
the universe are gradually understood correctly, travels can extend o
galactic level, allowing for the exploration of varlous areas In our galaxy. As
Far as the projectlons of our Individual consclousness at an Intergalactlc level
are concerned, these aro possible by means of olher bodies a Lot more subtle
than the astral one. but we shall not be talking about this here and now,
“What I mostly wanted to make you understand is that physical matter has
no Influence whatsoever on the movement of the astral body. Instead, this

movement Is obstructed by cortaln subtle forces and entitles acting al certaln
‘points’ or In certain 'key areas’ at both astral and physical levels where 55

acrpss 1o Information 15 restrictod.
42
DOX.BG




“For Instance, this sort of restriction can be met where protectlon st be
spcured as in the case with ireasures or special and secrel storehouses,
cerlain gates, gallerles or quick access pathways (o other spols on the planet
or even other worlds. At other times, astral ‘obstacles” restrict access 10
certaln occult [nitiatlons or mysteries that are protected by specially
summuoned guardlan enililes. These should not b construed as immutable
restrictions but they concern mostly those who are not sufficlently evolved
and therefore mot yet ready Lo confront certatn mysterles without being Intent
on using them for personal and selfish purposes. There is a 1ot maore 0 be
sald abowt the practical ways of acquiring consclous astral division powers
as well as about other detalls concerming the very experlence of astral
divislon, but the time will come when we can talk about all this In detall.
“For now, sulfice it 1o say that Colonel Obadea’s real intentlon was nod 1o
send me (o the wwn of F... W visit my mother - obviously under special
securlty measures — but to take me on a very secret journey to the Monastery
of Cernica near Bucharest, You do understand that in those times it was
highly dangerous for top political or military officlals o visit religlous
establishments. The Communist regime - atheistic through its very doctrine
- wintild condemn any such approach from the very beginning under the
threat of commensurate punlshment.

“1 knew nothing about the destination of our jouwmey until we got 1o the gate
ol the monastery. [ was accompanied by Colonel Obadea. and we travelled at
night by helicopter from the base to Bucharest and in an off-road vehicle
from Bucharest to Cernica, On the way, the Colone] told me he wanted me
to meet and talk with a clergyman, a very speclal priest who, he sald, was a
real saint endowed with great powers and divine grace.

“Oince at the gate of the monaslery, [ saw many cars full of people who had
come from all over the country to visit the monastery or pray in all their
falth. In fact, Obadea told me that almost everybody walting on the highway
had come there to talk with that hermit called Arsenle Boca.

The Colonel had already planned the meetng several days in advance. While
we were walking through the courtyard heading for the hermit’s cell, I could
node the presence of two guards in mufti who had taken position on bath
sldes of the cell’s door. The two men were there for securlty reasons so that
we would not be disturbed throughout the discusslon. Although 1t was not b
vel dawn and the weather oulslde was pretly cold, several monks were
moving hurriedly through the courtyard without making any nolse, probably
heading for their morning prayvers.

"Before entering the cell, Obadea told me, "The only thing 1 want from you
Is that you talk openly with Father Arsenle. We'll be alone with him and this
discussion must remaln secrel, We've gol many enemies.”
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"l agreed tacitly. The Colone]l was an intelligent and capable man who knew
how [0 navigate his way through the ‘meanderings’ of the Communist
system imposed by Ceausescu and who had a correct intuition that the days
of his dictatorship were practically numbered. That was in 1966. At that

time, the Colonel’s ability consisted mostly in leaving the Impression of 3
flawless performance as head of the department in parallel with preparing

the ground for *the new transition.”

“He had been kepl as head of the department for seven years, a very rare
casae by the standards of those times - and he did not want to make any
wrong move, particularly when the hope of a new beginning lurked for the

entlre country, Any action to that end had to be planned in minute detall and
carfled out extremely carefully. The change that almost everybody - bath the

population and even some political or military officlals — hoped for was
Lrnrrdment bul 1t had o occur in cireumstances of maximum securdty o
prevent possible fatlure, Flotting and bullding up groups had tumed out to be

dangerous, and trusting others was almost impossible. Obadea had been left
with only a very narrow room (o maneuver, namely the specificity of

Depariment Zero. 1 used intelligently, that room o maneuver could

nevertheless prove effective,
The Colonel had no polltlcal aspirations for himsalf nor did he want to make

himsell rich in business. He was mostly interested in thal transition and in
malntaining and developing under the best conditions what he had achieved
with the department. He had a special practical vision of events and showed

great respect for and trust In occult phenomena and Inltlating aspects, rylng
to combine as usefully as possible the elements and clrcumstances of

physical life with subtle methods for action. Cautiously, Colonel Obadea
wistild [irst consider each move before It could prove faal. Glven his

situation, it was not his position that would have been the great loss but his
very llfe. Even If his relationship with Ceausescu were quite good, he could
ned afTord to make any mistake. He knew the Dictator would not have
thought twice before executing him should his intentions be exposed.
“Waolves are always on the prowl.” he would tell me. o
"Obadea’s plan was quite simple: If any enquiring voices had been heard or
troublesome questlons asked about the visit to Cemilca, he would have
Justifled everything by the “spectflcity of the department’s activity.” He
wistild have called upon some lop secrel ‘checks’ and “experiments.” 11 on
the other hand. everything had been normal, the mystery of our talk with
Father Arsenle Boca would have been known only to three persons.
“The hermit died three years later In 1988, shortly before the Revolution.
That meant | was the anly one left who knew the secret, bul | was a
relatively “blocked” source for te oulside world. OF course, in (e event of
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an Inguiry, things would nod have been simple at all, but that optlon seemed
to the Colonel 1o be the least dangerous.

“1 would also like you to understand that Obadea lel six years pass before
deciding to trust me more. I am sure he studied carefully all the files Doctor

Xien was keeping on me. He observed my behavior in differont
clrcumstances from a distance and even had me Indirectly tesied. That
explains why, unlike all of my colleagues there, | was never transferred from
the base in B... It was in Cemica that | reallzed instantly and intuitively that
Obadea was intent on preparing me sacratly or ‘training’ me for certain
future plans, His inttiative was made easier by the fact that, in my turn, |
lked the Colonel and I was aware of his sincere and kind nature.”

Cezar’s story sent an unsuspected chill throughout my body. [ had also heard
about Arsente Boca, the great saint and lather confessor from the Monastery
of Sambata in Ardeal, and | knew he had been oppressed by the Communist
system. The news of his divine grace and powers had long travelled the
length and breadth of the country but was suppressed by the typical
Communist ldenlogy and way of action. In order to prevent the people from
coming In droves (o visit the hermil for his blessings, the authoriies would
maovie him secredlv from one monastery to another or place the monasterles
under guard; thus nid allowing him o talk o the people.

On very rare occastons, Father Arsenie was also moved (o Cernica. Rumor
had 1t that the hermil's occastonal presence In that holy establishment was
due to interventions by some palitical officials of the ttme, even top officials,

s0 that they could visit and talk to him In private without exposure (o moach
risk. Even If It had not been pollticians who had Arsenle Boca moved (o
Carnlca near Bucharest. 1t 1s nevertheless well known that they repeatedly 5
had secret meedings and private conversatlons with the lather throughout the
¥ears

On the occasion of Cazar's and the Colonel's vislt to Cernica, the siheation
was slightly different. It was nol Cezar who had asked for a meeting with
Father Arsenie and it was not he who wanted (o learn anything special from
the father. Cezar had already lved through some very deep spiritual

experiences which the hermit perceived as soon as he set eyes on Cezar
Surely, the meeting was one of the strangest and most mysterious of all

meetings ever.

Cezar resumed the Uread of s story.,

“Indeed, at the dawn of that day, the situatlon at Cernica was rather strange.
MNobody knew what was happening, who had come or what was suppnsed to
be next. This relative restlessness, however, was evident on the oulside
among, those bellevers walilng to be allowed access to the monastery and
was aggravated by uncertaintles, vartous other rumors and assumptions.
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"I later learned that, at a certaln moment, the people there had been gripped
with a chill of fear o the rumor that Father Arsende could be arrested and
Laken away. The psyche of the masses 15 highly unstable and has this
recurrent feature of high responsiveness. 5ome persons and occult
organizations know the precise methods and procedures wherehy the views
and tendencles of the masses can be Influenced declsively, be It only al a
verbal level. As a matter of fact, it Is preclsely on this characterlstic of
relative unconsciousness ol the human masses thatl diversion, rumor-
spreading and manipulation theories are predicated. If, in addition, these are
supported by a technological Inducement and manlpulation device - such as
through the emisslon of eneTgy wavelengths at certain frequencles - then
effects are almosl guaranteed.

“¥'ou should not infer rom this that spontaneity has no place whalsoever in
the psyche of the masses. The problem. however, is much more complex
because the effects of manipulation methods that are used at the physical
level can be thavarted and successfully annlhilated by certain actions that are
purely spiritual In nature, particularly when these are carrled out In unlson by
as many people as possible.

"In the case of malevolent manipulatlon, people become somewhat
automated and mechanical in thedr actlons, their minds blurred amd almost
Inerl. In the case of positive and profoundly beneficial spiritual

action conducted by means of various Initiating methods, people can enjoy a
wonderful freedom and openness of Individual horizons. People then begin
to really prasp the fundamental Importance of thelr free will, This s o4
precisely where the target of some malevolent ocoult organizations lles:
suppressing by any possible means man's free will, his possibility o choose
on his own and without any interference, his ability for profound sell-
knowledpe and for learning the truth abour life,

“IF you should be curlous b analyze al least part of the current Information
management and administration system in the world, you will find that
everyihing in (hese directions is meant (o suppress, confine and Hmirt the
Individual rather than develop and open the way to free knowledge as is
perversely clalmed in numerous misleading slogans, Tt 1s not my alm now to
belabor this Important point an which Mankind's very future eventually
hangs. Later, I will glve you detalls that will make you understamd much
more deeply the complexities of the world dominance system. For the
moment, suffice It to say that the 'microbe’ that triggers the terminal
‘disease’ In people’s lives is ignorance, subversively fed Into by certain
ocoult organizatlons, as well as the lack of an individual will to comguer this
‘disease.’ | will now come back to what | was telling you about the meeting
with Father Arsende Boca.”

Wory focused on his story, Cezar shifted in his chair and resumed at once,
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“That was a digression on people already spreading ulterly false rumors. The
truth, however, was a lot simpler. 1 will nod tell you about the discussion |
then had with the Father: as a maiter of fact, 1t lasted for more than three
howurs. The Colonel, upon learning some things about his future, gradually
shed that layer of rigidity and Inflexibility that had bullt up In time as an
ocoupaiional hazard. "1 will nevertheless tell you that Arsende Boca belonged
to that category of wise people who, although physically on earth, are
already spiritually in heaven. That man lefl a really deep and sirong
impression on me. All the powers and strengths that I had or had seen in
other people were not a patch on that shining, pure and divine groatness the
father’s being exuded. His hollness and Insight Into man’s mind and soul
were exiraordinary. Mot only did that happen Instantly in his presence, bat It
also iriggerad a jov and aspiration of sorts which determined one (o oller
oneselfl fully and willingly to the Father's cognition. The feeling was
Ineffable and directly linked to the deepest spiritual orlgin of our being
which Is eternal, pure and Indestructible,

"Metaphorically speaking, If you assoclate the path to that mysterious sounce
In our being with the digging of a well, then you can tell that the cold, Hmpif®
and wonderiul water vou will ged to is the very lite-giving water you will
drink In etemily. Arsenle Boca had the amazing subtle Influence of making
one spontaneocusly leel the presence of that water in the depths of one's
belng long before one got o L An elevating and overwhelming feeling of
lowe and devation would then come flooding in and that was the best test of
the authenticity of the spiritual level and divine grace the hermit had
attalned.

“As | mysell had the ability of feeling and knowing the people | met within
broad limiis, it was quite stmple for me to grasp the very [ne nuances of
Arsente’s extraordinary psychic radiation. His knowledge was Instantaneous
and so deep that It most aoften triggered in those In front of him very real
cathartlc experlences; but even emotions ke these could come and go
depending on the abilitles and aspirations of each individual The leeling |
had thare, after getting into his cell, was a foeling of a magnificent depth of
knowledpe but not dissoclated from pure love, And vet, [ don't want to enter
the abstract fleld of metaphysical observatlons as 1 don't think this would be
of much help to youw at this stage; nor am 1 sure you could fully understand It
Usually. the time For such issues comes when you have already made several
steps In this direction. Most people, however, are 5o stuck in their daily
rowtine that ldeas such as the relation between knowledge and love gets to be
utterly stupdd and crazy to them. Al best, one could end up with comments
from those around that are made from a so-called “superlor’ positon so as

Lo make you understand vou are wrong.
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"To go back o the example before, these people are practically dylng of
thirst bt they don't know i Father Arsonie was the Hving inelfable
expresslon of a man who really got to live in the purest of all happiness.
Depending on the degree of individual understanding and responsivenoss,

those around him could themselves experience slivers of this total happlness,
much lke a tuning fork that vibrates when placed next to the plano

prociucing a sound of the same pitch. Subtle beneflclal influence, patience
and compassion can transform even the darkest of souls.

“As far as Colonel Obadea was concernad, he resonated almost from the
beginning with Father Arsenie’s mysterious and subtle influence, With

unboumded kindness, Arsenle Boca advised bdm what to do so as (o sieer
clear of the trombled tmes to follow. As for myself, as soon as [ god Into that
Hule room, I noted that for a long Ume afterwards. Falher Arsenie didn’t

look at all in my direction and as if 1 hadn't been there. After an hour and a &'
half, during which time the Colone] listened in awe to the saint’s waords,
Father Arsenle turned to me and sald that In my case he needed not tell me
anything tn particular because 1 had already found the path and would be
helped to follow it without hesitation. [le then clearly indicated the ways in

which Obadea and I had to work together in order to be successful in our
future pursults. These were (o prove highly Important by bringing up to the

surface evidence thal would be found almost twenty years [rom (hen and
bewllder the entire world. Although I was in a state of deep self-absorption,
a strong thrill gripped my body at the moment when the father made the

prediction. This, In turn, triggered some very complex intultlons and
conrelations In my mind.”

Cezar stopped and stood pensive [or a few moments. | grew slghtly restless
and lense.

*This means Father Arsenle also talked about me - that Is about the fact that
vou will meel me, tell me all this and propose | should publish a book on the
events?” 1 then asked Cozar.

He gave a famnt smile but stayed [ocused.

"He sald we would find the right means to first sow the seeds and then grow

the flower of the spiritual transformation of these people, Yes, he said
Information would be published that would play an Important role ln the

process. Bul, secomndary aspects relating to the accomplishment of this
transformation, which includes choosing you. and all the other elements are
part of the planning 1 have done for this acton,”

“Did he mentlon anything about the great discovery to be made and 1ts
locatlon?” T Insisted.

*No, nothing on that. He only sald that 1t would for sure take place In our
counlry and have so greal an Impact that we did nol need o know other
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detalls. But, he repeated several times that there would be a flerce fght.
don’t know what he meant by thai

Anticipating a bit. I will say that Father Arsenie’s words came rue exactly
as hie had prodicted. As 1t will be noted further on, the amazing discovery
was made in 2002, seventeen years after that memorahle mecting at the
Monastery of Cernlca. 1t practically shattered the political, sclentific ansd
religious fabric of today’s greatest power - the Unlted States of America.
The world's mosl lerrible secrel was Immediately instituted. A fHerce
diplomatic fight and tremendous political pressure started because Romania
wanted 1o make the discovery known to the entire world, Given its
specificity, the discovery threatened the very polltkcal and 1dealoglcal b
Influence of the Vatlcan and shatters beyond retrieval both the
anthropological beliels of modern science and the 1deas about the history of
our planet and of humankind.

When Cezar told mwe about his discussion with Arsenie Boca, he did not yet

know anything about the nature, location or timing of the discovery to be
made as our talks took place some tlme at the beginning of 2002, But the

way in which events came tumbling one upon another, the incredible

correlations and sources that contributed to the discovery enable me now -
when [ am aware of all the elements — o have an overall fasclnating view of
the entire amazingly complex combination of [orces that led to that landmark,
discovery. It now appears like a focal point. like a frst very Important
“station” on the way to a different human consciousness. The fact that it was
mexde in Romanta seems to be all the more remarkable and supgestive,

As will be shown in the pages to follow, the discovery Is In fact an
“antechamber” (0 even more troubling reallles which Cezar, together with a
team of experts made up of American and Romanian representatives,
Investigated in a one-vear *great expeditlon” (from Cctober 2003 to July
2004). As [ was at the site of the discovery, [ know the overall nature and
lncations of the expedition. 1 also know Cezar will contact me shortly and 1
will learn all the necessary details.

The publication of this information, however, 1s still a controversial 1ssue.
Inttially, the Komanian state wanted o make this discovery known to the
entire world and avallable to researchers. It was deemed that the discovery
was no longer necessarlly an Issue of natlonal Interest but one of worldwide
Interest. The backstage lghting that ok place o prevent the disclosure of
this Information of exceptional iImportance to Mankind started as a result of
major 1.5, interventions, The diplomatic deliberations, the pras and cons, as
well as all the promlses and threats, ook about teo months [August-
Soptember A003). Following a top-secref agreement that was signed betwesn
e two stales, Romania commiited not 1o make known to the entre world

the discovery on [ts terriiory,
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It 15 llkely that, among others, Romanla’s NATO accession, which took
place urriedly in the spring of 2004, was also part of the secret package of
“compensations” for (s decision. Against this background, the setting up of
Amegican military bases on the tecritory of Romania may well become a
cortainty over the next vears, operating as a strong shield for the location in
the Bucegl Mounialns, Everything Is highly complicated and secret. For the?
time belng, I am not aware of Komanda's advantages in lis bllateral relations
with the Undted States, but cerlain clear signals of strange goodwill at the
highest diplomatic level are already visible.

Desplte all this, Amerlcan “hackstage operations™ must be carried out very
carefully so0 as nod o ralse (oo soan queries and embarrassing questions on
the pari of the other states and powers of the world which can node but not
understand America’s interest 1n Romania.

‘The secrel of this discovery 15 practically a complete one. I have never
witnessed anything like it before and the major part of the "task” of puarding
the sacret was taken over by the Americans. [ will describe certain elements
al the right time, but [ can say In antlcipation that there s no document, be 1
on paper, tape of photo Alm, to have left the site of the discovery. A huge
underground shed was butle to store and handle technical equipment and all
the evidence. It looks llke a real fully equipped plant and the ldea of bullding
il proved Lo be a well-inspired one, Sull. according o my Information,
Fomanta bas not made a defindtive commitment Lo keeping the secret aboul
the great discovery, The terms and conditions are unknown to me for the
time belng. Al present, the methods used for eradicating any attempt
whatsoever al learndng anything about the discovery are disinformation and
the lack of any material evidence. 11 1s no easy task. bul as Tar as | know. 11
has been performed successfully o date. In my view, however, this state of
affairs cannot go on much longer, We shall look into these details after 1
describe all the elements that gradually led to this exceptlonal dlscovery an
the terrltory of Romania.

“The {dea was nol o make any wrong move precisely al a time when the
Drctator started to feel cornered.” Cezar continued. “Father Arsente then told

us Ceansescu had visited him twice, secretly and In all caution. The last time
was several months before. He wanted to learn about the evolutlon of his

power In the country because some froubling skgns of palitical, economic
and social Instability had already started to appear bodh in the country and on
othar territaries of the Communist bloc. The hermit then told him that If he
continued to run the country by the same inhuman means as before, he
would be faced with a sudden and violent death. Upon learning that,
Ceausescu gol terrThly angry and had a real it of hysterla which didn't
tmpress Arsenle Boca al all. He threatened the father and lefl in a terrible

b fF.

DOX.BG

5V




“The Father revealed Lo us that he knew they wanted him dead and that vile 5
actions to that end staried immaediately afler the meeding ho had with the
Dictator. He also told us it would not be long until he left the earth [or the
Kingdom of the Heavenly Father. That would be due to a cowardly plot, the

purpose of which would be to polson him, Yet, he would not oppose that
because at that Hme his misslon on Earth would have been accomplished.

“Then, he took a hefty and rugged book out of a trunk. It was In old Greek
and was from the Christian saints on Mount Athos.

“'Here,” Father Arsenle continued, “one can find the description of the
poisonous-breathesd hvdra that shall do evervthing In its poswers to obstruct

God”s Hght and will. You shall have to flght this threat wisely, and wisdom
shall be granted upon you and many others to uproot the Evil. There shall be

canker everywhere: al work, in shops, in the instilutions of the slate and its
leadership but. above all, in politcs. Unfortunately. 1t shall sneak its way Lo
the very heart of the church, defiling some of the souls there, People shall
almost lose their hope. Only those who shall keep thedr true falth shall be
saved and then God's Glory shall descend upon them.’

“Father Arsende then labored the podnt saying that the “devilish plan’ had not

been at work In our Hmes only bat since antlquity, tor hundreds and even
thousands of vears, slowly preparing the ground for the final showdown that
was about o happen. "The Devil’s Plan’ was minutely thought out and, by
the power of money and vice, among which lying, dissimulation, scheming
and murder were the maost iImportant, thase carrying it out were pretty close
o thelr main goal, namely control and dominance over the entire world,
“Father Arsenle then sald something we did not expect, but which shocked
us Lo a certain extent. He said that, paradoxically and within a short time
Interval, the world's attention would turm to our country due (o extraordinary

changes that were to occur and specific signs that would go way bevond the
power of understanding of materialist knowledge. Arsenie Boca also sald all
that would obey the will of Gaod because everything was cyellcal and had o
g0 back where it all had begun.”

Cazar's words were utterly bewildering because his story ran against all
logic and would have made any ordinary being doubt i1, As far as [ was
concerned, even If [ trusted Cezar and his Integrity a great deal, his
statements could hardly fnd thelr way to my mind. First, I had no frame of
reference to understand and accept them, and second. my faith was not as yel
very strong. That Is why I was at first inclined to view Father Arsenle’s B2
predictions as erroneous and phantasmagorical. And vet, somewhere deep
Inskde me, there was this flicker of light that gave me hope and the elevating
Inner thrill of the times to come.

In an apparently incidental manner, afler talking to Cezar, | had the
_oppartunity of reading several booklets on the same subject but written by
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different authors. In the course of marginal discussions on the Issue that [
had with various personalities or people in the high-Hfe of Bacharest or the
Fomantan intellectual elite, it was with some sadness that I noted thelr
attitude which was mostly ironlc or, at best, indifferont. Obviously, one
covild not expect those predictions to Immediately shake out of thelr spiritual
“slumber” those who are enslaved by external conditlons of luxury, comfort,
wealth, Influence and power. But there Is still a chamnce that at least part of
thern will ask themselves certain questions aboul the 1ife they are leading
and the nature of the acts they are carrying out in this world. In other words,
there still 1s a chance that they can grow up and become more responsible
since It Is a well-known fact that the transformation of the living conditlons
of a natlon first of all requires the transformation of the consclousness of s
Individual members. This can be achieved, particularly through a vision anmd
perception of lfe from hgher levels where one can start from principles and
Ideals that are entirely different from the current Impure, base and crude
Ones.

The most Impartant ways to achleve a quick transformation of consclousness
at national and global levels are love and altrulsm in their pure and
undlsgulsed torm, |'o sensitive people with a clean heart and generous.
Intentions, this simple observatlon can be a common-sense argumsent which
implicitly supports and confirms their faith. But to the proud. the materiallst
and the selfish, such an idea can be at most a joke i not a sign of “non-
adaption to current realities™ on the part of thase who uphaold 1t

First of all, loving with all one’s heart and helping one’s fellows when they
are in need, without asking anything In return, nuns counter to thedr ldeas
abrout life and the way in which they have grown used 10 Uving, Practically
speaking. God and things holy (ind no place in their lfe. Secondly, most of
them view cult-related Issues, rellgions, the church and spiritual elements in
general as some sort of "cushloning,” a kind of necessary factor for the
preservation of the soclal balance. While | was stlll pondering over these
matters, Cezar resumed his story.

“Father Arsenie pointed out briefly the main problems that were to come up™®

In the mear future in Romania bart advised us not to ghve up the plan we had
slarted. no matter what might stand in our way. What baffled me back then

was that he would speak In the plural about what Obadea and 1 had to
accomplish, as if that were a normal thing. The future was Lo conftrm he had
been fully right. He ended the discussion with a sudden remark, looking

straight Lnto the Colonel's eyes,
1 am E,]al:t YOI heart is full of falth amnd VLl hawve followad my call in your

dream. Cod and His Glory be with you!”
“Alter we lelL Colone] Obadea twold me that, one wieek belore, he had a very
strange dream where Father Arsenie had appeared surrounded by a dazzling
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Light and making a flrm call that he and I should come to Cerndca. There and
then, [ fielt this urge and a special Taith in my heart, as well as a state of
delicate happiness which has never gone away. The secrel raining that
followeed at the base in B... only had me better prepared for the events o
come up In my life over the next fifteen vears,”

Cezar then stopped followling an Important phone call requesting his urgent
presence In a certain place. 1 parted company with him and had the feeling
thal I had penetrated some unexplored ground [ull of mysterles that were
highly important in the context of future events. I was assimilating the
multitude of Information coming my way somewhat “on the flv" and as far

as my own level of understanding allowed it and was drawing conclusions,
Where anything was not clear, 1 would write It down on a plece of paper to
Lalk aboul it again at the next mesting.

Several months had passed since our last meeting durlng which Ume [ sorted
out the main 1deas and even started to devise a plan for a book on those
events, I read several papers on esoterlc and spiritual subjects, but T kept a
balanced altitude In the appreciation of the various Ideas thereln. 1 was thus
strucluring gradually and thoroughly a dalabase and inftlating aspects thal,
b thelr mysterious and novel nature, were a mine of Invaluable information
for all who might be Interested In learning about them.

Up to June 2003, 1 had two more meelings with Cezar. The content of the
storles wold on those occasions is by [ar the most terrible proofl of the need Lo
write this book. As a matter of fact, T consider those “rounds” of talks, when
Cezar revealed to me the amazing truths about occull methods for world
domination, as the most thrilling of all. Al the same time, 1 could also
understand much more profoundly the subtle nuances of good and evil in the?
world, something I had completely ignored until then.

All the factual, moral and psychological implications 1 will be presenting in
the pages to follow were expressed by Cezar with patlence and perseverance,
even when [ was asking for more clariflcations, because he thought that
those aspects were the very heart of the message he wanted (o convey (o all
people. In my turn, [ was of the view that. given both the national and the
plobal context at the time, a detalled presentation of some of the plans and
actions of the dreaded ocoult organtzation was almost a moral duty and a
natural wrge for action. In my view, people must know and be alerted to the
huge threat the organization poses, a threat that is spreading plague-like
across the world. They must be Informed of the methods for actlon employed

by the organization as these are manifest in day-to-day life and of the way in
which all the wheeling and dealing, scheming and ruses that thwart almaost

any step towards freedom can be nipped In the bud.
Since people are structured in difTerent ways, they leel, think and act
differently, It is precisely why the Information T will be sharing further on
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will elther make them cautious, doubdful, Ironic or Indifferent, or shake thelr
very foundations and make them understand the ins and outs of the most
terrible scourge that has ever threatened Mankind - that 15 the occull
organization of Freemasonry. Much Lke a severe disease. It eals ino
Mankind s body, threatening to conquer It completely, World Freemasonry
uses as lis spearhead the “opdnion frend” method. They can use this trend In
any direction they please whenever thelr Interests are threatened. The same
“100l." however. can and must be tumed and used against the very assailant.
When some realities that are only apparently clad in fine appare] are
understood properly and profoundly, people’s freedom of thought and actlon
becomes a true source of happiness. In fact, the freedom of thought and
action Is the mast terrible and threatening aspect (o Freemasonry because
this freedom allows people 1o become aware both of thedr exisiential
condition and of the way and system in which contemporary soclety s
structured.

People’s freedom of thought and action waould lead inevitably to the
exposure and unravellng of the huge malevolent fabrie of plans, plots amd

ldeas that I'reemasonry has been 50 busy kndtting for generatlons. This much
neaded “awakening” of Mankind to the reality it inhabits is correlated with

i great iransformation and tramsition of the eniire ]:-la nel 1o & nw era af

spiritual truth and knowledge.
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Chapter 3 — The First z
Encounter: Evil Through and
Through

In the vears that followed and untll the revolution of 1989, Cezar pursued
Intense tralning and preparation under a special regimen as devised by
Colonel Obadea. Apart from experiments, the program included classes in
economics, politics and modem sociology. In addition, the Colonel had
started to grant Cozar some degree of freedom and even Influence at the
hase, assigning him certain tasks that were relatively simple at the
beglnning.

"Deep down, the Colone] was a sincere and righteous man,” Cezar told me.
“He really had the best intentlons for this country and its people and that is
why ho was Intent upon croaflng some "openings’ o he communist sysiem
which had made people’s lives almost iImpaossible. Like me, Obadea had
been strongly impressed by the meeting with Father Arsenie and was
determined to follow the hermit’s advice.

"By 1988, the Colone] had already revealed to me the structurne and
objectives of the department, as well as his deas for secret actions almed at
preparing Ceausescu's downfall. Though not alone In his preparations for a
regime change, Colonel Obadea preferred 0 contribute his share only by use
of his depariment. 1 soon became aware of the reason behind this, The
Colonel was surrounded by potential "human threats” as each person, froem
the rank and file to the top brass, was lable to treason or Informatlon
leakages. But, of course, there were some people left whom one could trust
lo a certain extent, and Obadea’s intudtion about podential collaborators was
flawless, He was supported by such collaborators and he had adwvisors,
connections, influence and authority; but contact with those in his circle was
maintalned only at a level that | could call “peripheral,” not allowing thelr
access 10 the core of the matter or the essence of the action he was planning,
“In his destre for as much efficiency as possible, Colonel Obadea realized he
could not support his complex plan on his own from the center — nor did he
have the Hme for that — because performing as head of Department Zero
required sedulous effort. He therefore needed someone whom he could fully
trust, someone incorruplible but at the same Ume devoted 0 a noble cause
and [ar away [rom backstage dealings. The idea of wraining such a
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collaborator had crossed his mind several years before when he had noted
that maost of those who succeaded each other al the base wers children.
“Upon long reflection, Ohadea considered | answerad the requirements and
his intentlons; 5o, in the years preceding the Revolution, he made my
training a lot more intensive. 1 could even say that the relationship between
us went beyond the usual boundarkes of the superior-subordinate relationship
because It Involved more sensitive levels of the soul. It actually evolved Inkc64
a relationsidp of open fendshdp, trust, and mutual respect because, by and
large. we had no differences of opinion, ideas or goals to be achieved. Sdll.
great caution was needed on our pant because in those times of instability,
terrar and cormuption surprises could come from where one least expected,
“Within the Securitate, the tendency was (o assimilate Department Zero into
other departments and units since. though part of that system. Department
ZLero had autonomy which did not agree with some people’s pride and
Interests, Colonel Obadea, however, knew only too well that if Department
Zero had been "dissolved’ into the other structures of the Securitate, that
would have automatically led to Its “politicization.” He felt that would have
been (he salest way (o reducing the department’s efficlency in the actions e
was carrying out. Moreover, managing the depariment would have been
Influenced from the outslde by some political factors and cormuption would
have eaten inlo ls very roots.

“The importance of Depariment Zero had become enormous, particularly
due to a series of amazing discoverles that had been made over previous

vears In different areas of the counry about which 1 cannot tell yvou now
other than In general terms. Apart from conducting parapsychology research
on gitted subjects and playing 1ts role as a ‘nursery” [or human beings with
paranormal powers on the tercitory of Romanda, Depaniment Zero had also
taken over Investigations and top-secret interventions in cases of cruclal
sirategic and sclentfic Importance. To that end, a huge database had been
created and a paramilitary interventlon team established, endowed with state-
of-the-art equipment.

“When a 'red code” case occurred. an alert was triggerad and the

Intervention was extremely fast and to the target, following very well
established steps like moving to the respective locatlon; making the area

secure; making condact with the specificity of the discovery, conducting a
preliminary sclentific analysis: and closing the area off. “Hed code’
Interventions, which from a certaln point of view are the most spectacular -

and by this 1 particalarly mean the way in which they are carried out — take
place only after cerdain prellminary checks are conducted in order to ensure

the elite corps of the department 1s not sent out on a misslon In less
Impartant cases. ‘Hed code’ actions are top-secrel actions and that 1s why
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standard procedures are established on the way In which those in the special
Intervention leam ged involved.

“Over time, some political Ngures mounted varlous attacks and spread false
Information on the activity of the department. This was brought to
Ceausescy’s attention, however, such cases did nothing but highlight the 70
excellent role that indtial measures played In the securlly of Informatlon at
the top level which was only known to Obadea and the Dictator
(langentially. information was also brought o the attention of the Head of
the Securitate). That is why attempts at overthrowing Obadea as head of
Department Zero on grounds of iIncompetence failed one by one, The
dllegations appeared to be False from the very beginning. “Amateurs’ could
ncd bulld up a viable tactical scenarlo for the simple reason that Information
did not leak and they therelore needed 0 make up storles and Le.

“Harassed [rom several sides (Lhe most venomous ploting came (rom Lhe
then Head of the Securitate) and in a more and more sensitive situation dus
to alarming Information about a possible demise of the Commumnist Bloc In
Europe, Ceausescu could have made an {ll-Insplred declslon. That 1s why the
Colonel was carelul to present to him twe discoveries and thelr mos
Important and secret elements In a very clear, sincere and stralghitorward
light. This convinced the Head of the State to continue to give him freedom
of actlon. Having setlled this problem of trust on Ceausescu's parl, Obadea
could focus on the careful preparattons [or the transitlon pertod 1o Tollow
after the regime change. He already knew it was only a matter of time until
change waould happen,

"Starting In the summer of 1939, Colonel Obadea’s activity grew highly
leverish and complex. 1 mysell could only meet him a few tmes belore the
end of the year. Although I had no access o Information from oulside,
Intultion nevertheless told me something very impartant was in the making
4l a natlonal level. But these are elements you are already very famillar with
50 It's no use golng Into detalls now. 1 will therefore focus maostly on the
description of the depariment’s main methods of action,

“When a crucial discovery is made, information is recedved very quickly
because the first Institutions to be contacted In such cases are the police and
the Romanlan Imelligence Service. Pursuant to a very strict protocol which
provides clearly on the nature of discoveries and thelr limportance,
Department Zero 1s immediately contacted and our teams dispaiched o the
area In questien. The actions to be carried out In such cases follow a very
clear procedure.

"Starting In 1038, 1 mysalf was part of the maln Intervention team,

accompanylng It to the secret locations where we were summoned. My
membershlp on the eam was the result of an order issued by Colonel

Crbadea himsalf, and mI role was to assoss the lfIrEn:w of risk in the event of
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Important discoverbes and make suggestions for the specific procedure to be
followed in investigations under completely safie conditions. Also on the
main team was a Securliate capiain who acted as iis leader and who had to 7'
make the requisite decislons on the spot after 1 outlined my conclusions.

Where the situation was highly unusual, he reported immediately to Colonel
Obadea and walted for his declslon. Cur team also Included three very well

iralned members of the ellte troops who acted as the "vanguard” when
Investgations started.

“A second team was avallable consisting of four members, sclentists and
researchers, but their number could vary depending on the field of the
discovery. They were the first to enter the site of the discovery amd make a
first sclentiflc analysis, an overall assessment of the elements they could find
there.

“The third and last team was made up of military personnel whose role was
o ensure the security of the area, its closing off and the requisite logistics.

Depending on the importance of the discovery, Colonel Ohadea was also
Informesd and he arrlved at the slte as soon as possible.

“Sometimes. however, unforeseen elements could come up. For instance. in
1981, when the team interventlon svstem did not exist vet and operation
prodocols were nol safe, Department £Zero was requested on a mission In a
mountalnous area close o Intorsura Buzaulul and at the curve of the
Carpatidan mountatn range. [ was a very remole and sparsely populated
area. Two brother mountalneers were doing some training, climbing a high

and rather fsolated rock, [ts walls were very sieep and forming a caviiy of
soris In the upper end which was a real challenge (o the two mountalnesrs.
“One of the brothers climbed about three-quarters of the rock and there he
noticed some bizarre signs carved In stone and almost completely eroded by
the passage of time. When he made 1t to the top of the narrow platform of the
rock, he bent down and plcked up a very strange yellow object that looked
Hke a chaln; bul the next moment, he suddenly disappeared from sight,
leaving his brodher with a dumbfounded look on his [ace at the base of the
rock.

“The local militla was alerted and the brothers’ par-ents in Braila were
Informed of the event. Inltlally, the authorities suspected the one who had
called them of hiding the truth. They even threatened him, thinking he was
making fun of them. But the brothers” father, an ex-mountaineer hmsell,
climbed the rock, picked up the cbject and disappeared instantly before the

eves of more than ten witnesses.
*The case thon ook a dang-ur[ms turn. Sewveral Sacurltale offloers from

Bucharesi arflved Immediately at the slte of the event and announced
Department Zero on the same evening. A military team closed off the area
for a range of one hundred meters around the rock. The representatives of
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another Securltate depariment savw (o it that villagers were not properly =
Informed and evewltnessos quieted down.

“I learned of all these details from the lop secret flle on the event wiich |
read thoroughly after the Revolution. Twenty years ago, [didn't yet have
access 1o such operations because I was only a child who had come to the
base ImB......, a short ime before. Sull, It seems some elements transplred
In the press many vears after the event, possibly due to the fact that several
political Mgures and sclentists had been present at the site.

“Siatons of this kind, where information cannot be isolated completely
from the very beginning, are registered under a special code and they are
called “K-type events,” These are wsually touch-and-go situations which
cannot be entirely foreseen or which glve rlse (o varlous other compllcations.
Ower the next days, a hellcopler surveved the rock area. The ‘object” was, in
lact, a sort of lever fastened (o the rock: but cne couldn't well how and why
that had been done and by whom, The inscription on the wall of the rock
remained a complete mystery even If numerous plotures of the respective
signs had been sent for analysls to the most prestiglous speclallzed
Institutions in the world, Although there were certain similarities in shape,

no clear correspondence could be established with any of the anclent
writings.

“1 had access o all the pictures that had been taken from different angles and
could see [or mysell that those signs had a very strange nature. They seemed
to he very

old, but they could stlll be seen althouwgh covered (o a larpe extent In moss.,
Lacking In experlence back then and under pressure from the panic that had
been created, those responsible declded o dynamite the rock: but later it was
found oul that was an order that the top officials in Bucharest had given.

“Al present, twenty years after the incident, the area 15 completely “clean.”
The two missing men have never coame back. Interestingly though, after the
rock had been dynamited, a light-preen translucent contour persisted at the
site like a slight steam. After a lew davs, however, thal was pone. (oo, This
Is onlv one example of the muldtude of K-type events in the Department
Zero archives. Thelr importance 15 crucial and the informatlon they contaln
Is secret. There are many other situatlons thal can be subsumed under the "K'
category, especlally Incldents which happened after 19927

Cezar then 1old me aboul two other amazing cases but asked me not 1o
mention them in the book because they had to do with Remania’s earth

resources and were therefore considered top-secrat,
"THE LEAF” AFTER THE REVOLUTITON

“Paradoxically, the upset of the Revolutlon was almost not felt at all in the 13
actvity of Department £ero,” Cezar sald as he resumed (he story of the main
events in that period of his life.,
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"There might have been two reasons for that. On the one hand s the almast
perfect 1salation of the department and the autonomy Colonel Obadea had
secured for 1t as a direct consequence of exceptional measures for
malntaining secrecy at the top. On the other hand. the Imminence of
Ceausescu’s downfall from power had long been felt In the department
dlthough that had never been expressed directly; but 1t 1s not the Hme (o talk
here and mow abaout the occalt side of the 1588 Eevolution in Romanda. 1
shall only tell you about what the decade after the Revolutlon brought new in
my life.

"In the spring of 1990, several months after power had chanped hands, 1 was
for the first thme transferred from the base In B ... (o the base In Valea
Ursulul which was located in the vicinity of Mount G .. close (o the Retezat
moufitain range. Unlike the base where [ had spent ten years of my lile, this
one extended two levels under ground. The equipment available was state-
of-the-art and the staff very well tralned.

"Towards the end of the year, the Colonel brought to my knowledge the fact
that Doctor Xien had left Eomanla for reasons independent of his will. That
news made me somewhatl sad. Doctor Xien had guided my way through the
complicated maze of knowledge about realitles other people don't even
suspect exist. His methods were strange and numerous but most of the times
stlent. To me he had been a highly competent spiriiual master of invaluable
help in many difficult situations.

"As 3 matter of fact, he himself was a special and occult human being about
who nol even the Eomanlan authorities knew too much desplie alwavs
keeplng a close eye on him. Docior Xlen's sudden and apparently
Inexplicable departure ofTered the chance for a notable change in my life.

“T was twenty-one and highly experienced In the activitles of the department,
and 1n addition. 1 had these personal psychic abilitles that helped me through
many sensliive or even dangerous sltuatlons. Taking these elements Into
account, and at the same tme following the advice Father Arsenle had glven
him almost ve years belore, Colonel Obadea offered me a job as execulive
director of Department Zero. I knew that was an older idea of the Colonel's
sn [ accepted the offer immediately.

"The |ob placed me In a very strong and authoritative position. My only and
direct superlor was Colonel Obadea and above him the Head of the Sdaie:
and to a certain extent the Head of the Intelligence Service in Romania. It
may have taken a lot of behind-the-scenes dealing on the part of Colone]
Chadea so that T oould be the one to take up that position, As far as the T
fnancing of the department was concemed, his efforts were also salutary as
the depariment was In many respects a sort of "ghost” among the other unlis
of the Intelligence Service. There were no external archdves. no Mles or

Information outside of the department attesting to 1ts 'life.” Evervthing was
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centrallzed at the base In Valea Ursulul where only authorlzed staff were
allowed access. That 18 why almost nobody knew about 1is existence and less
50 aboul 1ts location.

“Apart from taking part in 'K-type events,” my appointment as executlve
direcior of Department Zera required extensive travel to varlous areas of the
country. A llmousine for transportation purposes, two bodyguards and, upon
direct request, the hellcopter that was the departiment’s property were always
available 1o me.

“In 1992, the relations between Department Zero and the Presidency were
clarified. After Ceausescu’s death, almost nobody knew about the existence
of the department 5o that the Head of the State Immediately ordered the
complete subordination and politiclzation of Departiment Zero in an
undeclared but obvious desire (o have centralized control over all the
structures of the Romantan Intelligence Service. [ accompanied Colonel
Obadea to his secret meeting with the President, The meeting lasted more
than four hours. The Head of the State even wanted to change the structure
of the department and bring Department Zero together with several other
sections “Inheriled” from the time of the Dictatorship, But alter we presented
some of the shocking realltles that had been discovered. as well as thelr huge
Implications for the politcal and economic stabllity of the country, the
President's bewilderment lefl room for an agreament similar (o the one
belore the Hevolution, with the proviso that the Head of the Eomanian
Intelligence Service should also be Informed of developments, A discussion
with the latter took place one month later and posed no problems, On the
contrary, It even brought some Improvement as far as admindstrative and
special procedure issues were concerned.

“One of the proposals was (0 set up a section operating as a “bulfer” between
the Intelligence Service and Department Zero. In fact, this section operates at
present as a unit “collecting” and “sortng out” specific Information pertaining
(o the secret fleld of strange discoverles and events. Since not all such
Information and events were under Depariment £ero’s remil, some were
directed to other departments in the Romanian Intelligence Services. The
‘buffer’ section was named "The Commission for the Analysis of Unusual
Events” and operated as a jolnt staff - that bs stafT both from the Romanlan
Inielligence Services and from Department Zero. It was declded, however,
that one of our stalf be appointed as head of the section due to the expertise 75
of the department in the ficld. I was the one appointed to that position, as an
extension of the position I held at Department Zero, The Head of the
Romanian [ntelligence Services objected for a while on grounds of my age
which was much below officlally established standards. He rightly upheld
e view that it was inconcelvable [or a person so young (o lead elficlently
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actions of such scope, bul Colonel Obadea quleted him down eventually,
laking all responsibility upon himself.

“Diue 1o my entirely special status, there was a need for the maximum degree
of freedom in actlon. This conditlon went even beyond parllamentary

Immunity because it was linked directly to special access secrets, As my
positlons were not palitical, absolute free access was based on a kind of
spectal 11} signad persomally by the President and bearing the sequential
mumber Department Zero/A-0 [...] depending on the number of those o
whom one such ID was Issued. There are extremely few holders of such ID
cards and they belong to the most secret units of the Romanian Intelligence
services and of the Army,

“In 1992-19493, T went through all the flles of the department (o bring myself
up (0 date on the state of alTairs. 1 looked closely into the most secrel cases
and went Lo well hidden and amazing places. All this is part of a secrel Iteld
and cannot be revealad for the time being, [ established the headquarters at
the base In Valea Ursulul; and, in parallel, T sat up a second special
Intervention team for less Important cases.

“By 2001, we had succeeded in consolidating our “partnership’ with the
Homanlan Intellizence Services and provided essentlal information to the
Supreme Councll for National Defence (SCNDY). Colonel Obadea trusted me
Tully, and even If he was rapldly pushing retirement age, he was nevertheless
highly pleased with the way in which the department was run. He had been
promoted to the rank of Komanian Intelligence Services General and could
say that many of his plans had become reality, This Is roughly the overall
plcture of the current situation at the department.

“2002 was a landmark vear as far as my involvement in highly tmportant
Issues and with deep implications at both national and global levels, but we
shall talk about this at our next mesting because It 1s highly Important that
we forus as best we can on the fundamental subject 1 am particularly keen to
reveal o you. You will thus understand that reallty Is cast in an entlrely
differant lght than people are used (o seeing It in.”

I took a deep breath as if [ had just come back from a long trance. I had no
lde:a abour what was to be revealed next but T had this intuition that we had
ressChed the crux of the matior. Cezar told me that was in fact the malkn 16
reason for which be wanted me o make the story public. 1 was to meet with
him on two more occasions during which (ime he gave me a dedailed acoount
of events that can be considered crucial for the destiny of the country. We
met for the last ime in June 2003, and it was on that occasion that T was
astonlshed to leam about what led to the secret location In the Bucegl
Mountalns where two months Later the breakthrough discovery was made.
Even If events then rushed in. Cezar neveriheless gave me the unhoped [or
chance to be present at the site of the discovery and see for mvself the secret
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structure Inskde the mountaln and its maln features. That required speclal
Interventions on his and particularly General Obadea’s part, al a time whemn
things appeared to gel out of control. The decision to have me there at the
site, almost immediately after the discovery had been made. was highly
Inspired because events took an extraordinarily complicated turn several
days later. This was a resuli of Amerlcan diplomatic pressure which
required, to a great extent, thelr immediate presence at the slie with Fully-
equipped teams and exiraordinary technology. From thal moment on. no one,
unless authorized by the Presidency. could go bevond security barriers
maintained by both Romanian and Amerlcan millitary, That i5 why [ think I
was very lucky amd even privileged (o bave had the opportunity of actually
seeing whal to many people willl seem almost Incredible. In the few hours
that I spent in (he central perimeder ol the discovery, Cezar old me briefly
aboul those elements (some of them dramatic) of the effective way In which
the discovery was made. He also outlined the Implications 1t had
immediately after as well as the main elements of the American Intervention
in the Issue.

In Seplember 2003, 1 got more news [rom him via a spectal courder who had
dlzn made the arrangements tor our meetings over the past years, Un that
occasion, however, the courler facllltated a phone talk with Cezar using a
speclally protected device and a privale line. Cezar ten (0ld me about some
private elements of the Komanian-American “negotiatlons” that he had
recently learned, Also, he told me he was to go on a "Mg expedition™ in 2
few days and gave me some peneral data on that, He did not know how long
the expedition would fake but promised to give me all the defalls upon
return. After a moment’s hesitation, he suggested [ nevertheless had
sufflclent information o write and publish a book containing (hese elements.
Like me, he believed people had a right o know the reallty and make thelr
own declsions on thelr future. That was the last time when [ had verbal
contact with Cezar.

Several wieeks ago, almost one vear after that phone conversation, and
precisely in the period when I was writing the final part of this book, I got
some Indications about his return from the “big expedition” and T was deepl{?
nervous at the thought of another meeting where 1 could learn new elements,
the nature of which I suspected was exceptlonal. But let me come back (o
Cezar’s account of evenls in our meeting belfore last.

The elements he told me about in much detail are without a doubt a real
mine of Information on the backstage dealings of organdzed Freemasonry at
glohal level. Cezar told me, In a memorable summary of the talks he had
wilth one of the world's most nolable representatlves of the organlzatlon,
Freemasonry s concepls, peneral vision, intentions and ways ol actlon. This

helped me arrive at a better understanding of the subtle meaning of the well-
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knowm expression “a woll In sheep’s clothing™ which can very well apply Lo
worldwide Freemasonry. Paradoxically and on the other hand, in the absonca
of thal injidative by the Freemasons, 1 do not know when and how that

breakthrough discovery in the Bucegl Mountains would have been made.
Sometimes the path of destiny, particularly a nation’s or even Mankind's
destiny, s much too complicaled and tortuous for the human mind (o grasp
lis full complexity. We are therafore left only with the possibllity of noting
and analyzing, with hindsight and bewilderment, the incredible maze of
facts, relations. beings and individual destinies which combined in such a
wayv as to vield a final result that can be viewnd as a real step forward for
Mankind. Even If we cannot understand (n detall these very complicated
combdnations and actions of the subtle forces, we can at least find our way
lollowing the notable effects these generate al cerlain clrcumstance-
determined moments. Bul these clircumstances are precisely the spatial and
temporal conditlons that are necessary for triggering events of crucial
Importance, even at global level,

When | med Cezar agaln, several months after our latest discusston, he
plcked up his story exactly where he had lelt off, as if he had only taken a
short break o drink some water.

“In May 2002, 1 was at the hase in Valea Ursulul, the code name of which s
Alpha. It was a dme when 1 was thoroughly absorbed in reading the
depariment's secrel [les which covered a period of more than twently years
of research and fleld work conducted by special intervention teams. One
gquiet aftemoon, [ was in my offlce deeply sunk In study when | got a phone
call on the direct maximum securlty line from General Obadea. [ was
surptised because [ had just met idm one day before and that phone line was
only used for emergency and top secret calls.,

“He told me that a highly Important person would come to visit me over the
following hours and wanted to have a private talk with me. The General’s
slightly falterng tone of volce and the somewhat hazy wording of his 8
message also surprised me because 1 had never before noted any of those
features in him. He told me that he had no other information, that he didn 't
know who the person was, and the request for a meeting had come from the
Romanlan Intelligence Services followling a povermmental interventlon.
“The person In question was a forelgner but familiar with Komanla and also
proficient in Remanian, The Romandan Intelligence Service only knew he
was a member of a highly important Masonic lodge in Italy with a high
nobllity rank and great financial Influence in Romanda. His political
connections must also have been very high-placed since he had sucoeeded 1n
penetrating the Romanlan Intelllgence Services “wall” and made hls way to
Department Lero. Bul where he knew me from; and how he bad learned of

the existence of the department; and that 1 was the executive director
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remalned a mystery. I then reallzed his Influence was extraordinary once he
had “broken through' the entire hierarchy of a country ‘s government and
securily system withoul even concealing the facl. As far as | was concerned,
[ had to accept the request although I was as yet unaware of its purpose,

There were enough unknown elements in the equation competing with the
Imminence of the meeting.

“Desplte all this, | could percelve deep down a sort of strange "burden” amd
‘pressure’ which was obviously linked to the person in question. And then,
for the first time, I grasped the nature of the meeting. It was to be a difficult
‘encoanter” because I could already feel the 'loaded’ radiation of that being.
lke a menacing cloud around It thal concealed s true Intentons. Several
hours were left untll bis arrival, and so [ used the tme avallable by locking
mysell in a room and sinking into deep meditation in order 10 find oul more
aboul that person.”

I was utterhy astounded, T already knew Cezar had speclal psychic powers
about which he had only mentioned the bare minimum and with much
madesty and Ina way as natural as posslble. In additlon, he had only
manifested his powers two or three Umes in my presence. These were in key
situations and only to prove Indirectly that his story was not fictional, Even
then, his actlons were a natural parl of the situation In which he used them so
that they would not wigper 100 much bewllderment. Sull. | did not know he
had the ability to fnd out information when he exerted his will in that
direction during meditation. T could not understand how that was possible at

all. Willing to learn more about thal mystery, I asked him how he could ged
access o Informatlon about which e knew nothing beforehand.

“One can say (hat the subtle feld of knowledge 1 evoke during meditation.
wheen [ want to get Information, s a sort of vast ether; but it 15 nod the ether
contemporary sclence speaks about,” Cezar started his explanation. "From
this subtle reality come all things and phenomena, all thoughts and matter of
any kind; and generally speaking, all Information taking shape In the

physical world. It is from this practically infinile ocean of particular “codes’
that all our intentions, thoughts and ideas gradually take ssa clear shape and

make thelr way to objectivity at the perception level of an ordinary being In
the physical world.

“Imagine, for instance, a mass of hovering steam. This Is composed of waler
vapors made up of very fine particles floating in the air. I one interferes
with the temperature to the point of making it lower, then water vapors will
condense and turn into water drops - that is, they will be In a combined state
denser than thal of vapors which represented the gaseous state of water. If
one brings the temperature to an even lower value, then Hguld water will
turn into jce which is solid matter, the densest of combined states. The
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FFI“-L'[P]E I= EIITIFIEZ the sama water aloms, |]'IZ|IZ|3|l_'|." PTE'EEL'I.IE-U a5 VEpMIr, turn
by successive iransformations (oo ice.

“By way ol analogy, any type of information that takes shape al the physical
level follows the same top-down path. In its raw latent state, Information Is

nothing but a certain form of vibrating energy specific to each and every
element. The subtle universal ether, which I mentioned earlier, is the

environment accommodating the infinlty of ldeas, thoughis, Intentlons and
possibilitles. Therefore, 1t all bolls down (o accessing information at the
corresponding vibration level which is part of the infinite ocean of energetic
vibratlon frequencies in the universal ether, This is the most difficult thing to
do since, In the frst place, one needs bo possess the appropriate level of
consclousness 5o as o enable awareness of the presence of the subtle
universal ether; and, ol course, one needs the ability o make an accurale
selection of the targeted energetic vibration frequency rom the multiude
avallahle,”

Omn a plece of paper, Cezar made a drawing for ease of understanding.

“A focused mind that bs well-prepared and purged of viclous and parasiilc
thoughts has the ability to penetrale successively the subtle levels of
manifestation to the level of the universal ether about which 1 have told you;
which resembles a glgantic space of a very spedial nature. In this extremely
wasl space one can identlfy the speciiic “trace’ or the particular vibrating
[requency of any aspecl, being, object or phenomenon one may be inlerested
In. The tree challenge 1es in the correct selection of the particular vibration
frequency one |s looking for, much ke when ome moves a slider wp and
down a frequency scale In search for a radio channel. &l
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HOWY TDEAS TAKES SHAPE AT FIIYSICAL LEVEI

“You will perhaps ask how the mind can select only one specific frequency
from the Infinite amount that are avallable. The process |s slmple and based

on the undversal law of vibration. Everything thail exisis In the universe and
Is defined in a particular way (whether 11 be a being, an object, a
phenomenon of emotion) has a vibration 'imprint.” a specific unmistakabla

‘marker’ that allows lts Identification amvwhere In the universe. This Is the
so-called Individual wavelength, much resembling a DNA spiral undgue o
each and every belng. One needs only (o "switch the button” from one
wavalength to the corresponding wavelength one wants to know. This 1s a
fundamental law in physics and it 1s called the law of resonance.
“Of couirse, all this requires sufficlent and hard practice, but results are as
rewarding as the effort is demanding, 1've done nothing other than apply this
princlple falthfully, focusing on the "subtle iImage’ or the "wavelength’ of the
person whom [ was expecting, even I 1 had never met them before and knew
nothing about them apart from the information [ had from General Chadea.
scarce though it was, that information was nevertheless sufficient,
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“In a relatlvely short tme, my strong and focussed will produced the
requisite conditions for resonance with that person's *sublle imprint.” Yet |
must (ell you there 1s more 1o the phenomenon than my description of it 1t
takes a long perlod of demanding practice for one to be able to do this which
also requires a very high consciousness level, The accuracy of the
Informatlon one wants to find out depends, on the one hand, on the clarity of
aone's own mind - which at that moment must be as still as the surface of a
mountain lake - and. on the other hand, on the ability o trigger specific
resonance conditions by the vivid and powerful evocation of what one has
set out to know, At that moment, one "tunes In’ (with a greater or lesser
degree of accuracy) (o the specific vibration frequency of the being evoked.
If one succeeds In that atternpt, one then gets direct and Intultlve access to
the dominant subtle resultant of the person concerned in all its aspects, even
if that person belleves those aspects are unknown lo other people. It is true
that, as T have already told vou, the problem i1s more complex because there

are many varlables that require, among other things, personal effort in that
direction, but what is Imporiant s that any healthy human belng endowed

with will and perseverance can acquire that ability. Dut 1 will go back to that

meeting behind which lay a highly important secret reason that
was nevertheless unclear fo me In the frst Instance.”

Cegzar then gave me a detailed account of the mysterious meeting al the
Alpha base, the significance of which shattered my foundations and gave mé’
the definttive reason for writing this hook. However, in order for the story to
flow naturally, as well as for ease of expression, I shall repeat It exactly as it
happened between Cezar and the mysterlous character, a member of
Freemasonry s world elite. [ shall try io be as falthful as possible to the story
1 was told and even capiure certain nuances of the discussion. 1 apologlze w
the reader for any language inconsistencies that might come up. but as will
soon be noted, the content of the dialogue to follow is more Important than
15 Form.

A HALFWAY HOUSE

At about three in the afternoon. a Romanian Intelligence Services hellcopter
larvded at the base in Valea Ursulul. Out came a 1all and sober gentleman in
a black sult, He was polsed and haughtily so. In his right hand he was
carrylng a walklng stick with an hvory handle ornately carved In gold. His
face betrayed a tough character and his green eyes had an almast strange
effect, radiating an umuisual coldness. This impression was made even
stronger by his arched and way-too-well-groomed eyebrows [or a man of
rather advanced age,

He introduced himself to the officers who were waiting for him at the base
as Signore Massinl and walled patlently for his arrival to be announced Lo

Cezar, O stately manner, and as if used 10 Lving only 10 bigh noble circles,
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Slgnore Massind, aged sixty-flve, was overbearing in conduct, very self-
confident and gave the impression of a man who was used (o lording it over
people. In fact, he was one of the highest-ranking venerables of the most
Lmportant Freemason lodge in Europe and also a member of the most
Influeniial Freemason organization at waorld level; the Bilderberg Group.
Slgnore Massinl was shown to the first floor of the base where Cezar was
walling for him. Afler the customary introductions, Cezar Invited him to a
protocol room, but the venerable one refused. Without being fastidious, his
turn of phrase was rather stilted and slightly dated. In fact. Signore Massind
was a member of a very old noble family of royal descent from Italy.

"I am Impressed and at the same time dellghted with your proposal, but |
retaln the basic privilege to protect mysell agalnst lkely altempls at

wirelapping our discussion. [ should be much grateful if you did not take
personal umbrage at the request. but we cannot forgel we are dealing here
with the Romantan Intellizgence Service,” the venerable one explained,

Cezar gave a faint smile, It was still difficult to assess whether that was
Slgnore Massinl's habltual manner of speech or his wornds concealed a irace
of fromy. The secord Interpretation was more Hkely but that did not bother
Cozar atall, Instead. he replied im good will,

"I understand your fears, sir, and 1 find them warranted to a cerlaln extent.
But given 11s status, this base has a very high security level and only
cooperates with the Romaman Intelligence Services, it 15 not subordinate Lo
It. Therefore we can talk in peace and without fear of anything in the
protacol room.”

But Slgnore Massinl stood firm In his request. He Insisted politely thal the
discussion take place In the open at a convenlent distance away from the
base. He said thal was in the interest of both partles. As the request was not
that excessive, Cezar gave his consent. A small clearing was chosen about
o hundred and fifty meters away from the surface building of the base, A
table and two chalrs were Ltaken o the spot; amd at a certaln distance from the
arrangement, Cezar ordered the presence in a circle of elght bodyguards
speclalized in high level protection services. In lact, they were members of
the third spectal interventlon team in case of *K-lype evenls.” A high-tech
electronic jamming device was also installed

Freparatlons took almost one hour during which time Slgnore Massind spoke
only a couple of phrases and displayed a slighily sneering and Ironic smile.
From thme (o time he gave darting looks in Cezar's direction [rying o lake
his measure quickly bul carefully. At about four in the allernoon.
preparations were ready and the two took a seat at the table in the clearing,
Cezar told me that, from a certain point of view, the situation was rather
blzamre. A gentleman of Incontrovertible Influence at the highest political
levels had requested a ighly secrel meetng with the executlve direcior of oy
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the most occult department of the Romanlan Secret Services. All "doors”
had been opened almost effortlessly and all requests approved immediately.
What could be the nature of that mysterious influence that had broken even
through the highest political circles of a state? What in fact was the purpose
of Signore Massinl' s unforesesn and secret visit and what was he after,
particularly since he had avolded any Interference by the Eomanlan
Intelligence Service thal had actually facilllated the meeting®

The strict order recelved from the Governmenl forbade any interference on
the part of the Romanian Intelligence Services with the discussion, all on the
grounds of secrecy In Department Zero’s field of action. Despite all that, the
situathon was rather strange because It gave the Impresston of Intervention by
an external power that was “Imposed” on the Homanlan state. Moreover, no
wiretapping of the talks between the two was allowed and Cezar wanted Lo
keap the promise he had made (0 Signore Massind, On the other hand, even if
the Romanlan Intellipence Services had the technical means necessary for
wiretapping the talks, the venerable Massini's arrival had been announced &3
hastily; thus leaving little time for the preparation of such sensltive actlon.

In additon, given the influence that Signore Massind seemed 1o have at the
highest political level in Eomanila, some likely dissatistaction on his part
mdght have had consequences of the most adverse kind on those who would
have made such a decision in the Romanian [ntelligence Services, Therelore,
strange though it might seem, Signore Massind had succeeded - through
quick, intense and demanding action — in getting. In record time, the
maximum securlty for the talk he wanted to have with Cezar, The encounter
between the bwo was to reveal the most sensatlonal account of ocoult truths
Lhat are nevertheless manifiest more and more in e daily Hves of

people throughout the world.

THE TEST

"I am here 1o have this talk with you, Mr. Brad, In a less than usual way and
under speclal clrcumstances,” sald the venerable Massinl, getting straight to
the point.

“In our view, people belong to one of two categories: those who can be
manipulated and led around - and the great majority belong to this category;
and those who have certaln virtues, are glfted with certaln powers and have a
very strong personality.”

“1 shall interrupl for a short clarilication,” Cezar chipped in in apparent
nalvete, “Whose opinion do you actually represent here?”

Slgnore Massinl gave a large smile, leaning slowly against the back of his
chair. His whole attltude was the expression of the proud consclence of an
uncongquerable power.

“br. Brad, you are a young man in the prime of your 1ife holding a position

that is paradexically a dungeon for civil liberties but that at the same time
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glves yvou the satlsfaction of knowling and looking Into things about which
almost nobody knows anyihing. Such a position is difTicult to get becausa it
requires safeguards of remarkable inner abilities.”

“Thank you,” Cezar sald amiably but cautiously.

“And yet, even to a very well endowed person like vou, quite a 1ot of things

remaln unknown and some of these can be extremely attractive. The group |
represent, and on whose behalf 1 have come here today, Is part of the highest
Masondc order and highly interested in the outcome of our talks.”

*T am aware of some things about Freemasonry,” sald Cezar. “The
organization is built on a pyramidal hierarchy, has very occult indtiation

rituals and Its real intenthons are abscure to most people.”

“For the two or three sentences you have just utlered, not even 1 could have
done better, my dear!” sald the venerable Massinl, giving a superior and =~ B4
sipghtly tronic laugh. I am a master of the most powerlul Masonic lodge n
the world; and while this must remain a well-kept secret to most, 1t would be
superfluous o keep It from vou because the 1ssue [ want to talk with vou
about goes way beyond the Importance of my occult position. On the
contrary, it 15 absolutely necessary that vou know who vou are talking to
tfrom the very beglnning,”

In glving his account of the meeting, Cezar told me that thls was the preclse
moment when he realtzed what the purpose of Massind's visil was as well as
the way in which the meeting was o proceed. Al that moment, he also knew
what he would do next and what strategy to employ In order to learn and
understand as muoch as possible about the twists and turns of the Freemason
organlzation. In fact, this was to be a battle of wits belween the two and
where a lot of giving and taking was (o take place. all of which had to be
carefully orchestrated because the forees at play - and the consequendces that

could follow - were huge,

At flrst, Cezar set himsalf the goal of exploring a territory where he had
already notleed a weakness on venerable Massind's part: his self-pride and an
Inflated ego, both of which could strategically ddminish his vigilance and
Inner strength.

“Therefore, vour position in the lodge is one of the highest. T know that the
hierarchy follows the thirty-three so-called “degrees.”

“The Ellderberg Group s not exactly a lodge. 1115 a lol more than that but 1
will not go into detalls now. Indeed, at lodge level, hierarchy follows these
thirty three degrees and promotion must meet clear requirements. You

should also know these deprees are a sort of 'facade.” Real power goes way
beyomnd the thirty-three hlerarchical degrees and Invaolves other requirements

that I can fell you about but only under ceraln ciroumstances. i 1s up to you
alone 1o be open o such a siluation.
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“Imagline a big house. In order for it to look as nlce as passible, It must be
painted elegantly with great care for delalls. By way of analogy, these would
be the intiation levels. Most of the riches and the biggest secrels, however,
are Inside the house, unseen and unknown but to the masters of the house
who are very few in number and act as the power behind the sminath
operatlon of the entire bullding, Its maintenance, administratlon and
prasperity. In arder for this to happen, they need nod be known by the other
people nor must thelr ways and means be known. You are an Intelligent man
and you can easily understand what I mean.”

Cezar had noted that Signore Massinl's turm of phrase had gradually moved
to a more familiar and stralghtforward tone. That could be an advantage 85
because famillarity In discussion could breed the disclosure of many secrets.
‘The age gap between Lhe two obviously contributed to that kind of tone.
Undoubtedly. the venerable Massini displayed great vital strength and an
unusual psychic force in stark contrast to his respectable age, Unfortunately,
his subtle radiation - whereby the venerable one could at any time dominate
ordinary human belngs who are weak or physlcally or mentally unstable in
thelr great majority — was gathered around his iImmense self-pride,
arrogance and a teeling of superlarity, perhaps justifled by his noble
descent. That Is why, regardless of Cezar's merlls and good references,
which one could assume were well known (o the elite of the Bllderberg
Croup, the venerable Massind could not restrain his self-pride.

“We have requested this meeting using our power and connections because
we are fully aware of vour force and abilitles by which we sed groat store,
particularly If they serve our Interests.”

In saving that, the venerable one made the [rst important move in the game
between the two. As will be noted, however, the wheeling and dealing was
to prove a lot more complicated than a simple and relatively indirect
proposal for cooperation at the highest Masonic level.

“Mr. Massini, If I am to understand anything In partlcular, and If the problem
15 10 be approached in a spectlic manner, then please say so [rom the very
bepinning. For instance. what is the main reason for which you want me o
be a member of the Bilderberg Group?”

Slgnore Massinl's attltude turned suddenly cold and his volce took on a very
grave undertome.

“15 this really a problem for vou. Mr. Brad? Do vou imagine you are [ree Lo
choose or set conditions? And who sald you would become a member of the
Bilderberg Group? Do you have any Idea who its members really are and
what the access criteria are at that level? You are far away from this
hierarchical position; and moreover, you will never be able to be part of the
group’s close circles for reasons widch, 1 1 told you about. would leave you
utterly mystified. They are not part of this world. Therefore please come
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back o mime mundane deas and understand thal the Inodlrect ]:II'EIFI‘[!EH.I. I have
made concems your becoming a member of one of the highest Masondc
lodges in the world directly subordinate o the Bilderberg Group. “Cwur
organization could use your speclal contribution. The fact that I myself have

come here to have this private talk with you will make you understand we
appreclate you a lot Judging by the Information we have, 1 must admit, your

powers and abllitles are Impressive. As 1 was telling you, we are Interested In
cooperating with you.

“There is a secret counci] at the leval of this lodge that makes proposals for &5
the main lines for action in the world which the Bilderberg Group then

assess, [t works ke a sort of ferdback loop. You could be an Important
driving force In that councll and you could acquire anything you have ever
dreamed of in this world and rule over everything vou want: wealth. people,
Iuxury, laws and even governmenis. Nothing could stop you.

“We do not negotiate because what we offer s huge, What would be the
point In having any other useless discussions when things are so clear? And
o be honest, there 1s no other option for you bat to take our offer.”

In saving that with unflinching self-confidence, the venerable Massind miade

a specific gesture, stretching his hand as If cutting through the atr. Tt might
be that someone In Cezar's shoes would have been Intlmldated and even
bewlldered both by the speed at which the conversatlon had advanced and by
the [abulous perspectives lying in wail. Cezar (old me that had been a
turming point of the meeting,

Complex though 1t appeared, the problem had only two pbyioos selutions:
elther he ook the offer, which meant membership In the Masonic
organization and quick promoton Lo its hghest levels, or he could tum 1t
down, which would have triggerad an unpredictable chain of adverse
consequences both for himself and for the activity of Department Zero. Al
that moment, Cezar was not aware of the maln dala on Freemasonry s
topmost Interests, but he was very Interested to find out about them so as 1o
be able to understand the occult reasons for action on the part of this
worldwide organization and the ways and means whereby it wanted to attain
Its goals. The circumstances seemed favarable to him and the discussion had
got Lo a polnt where, step by step, he could steer 1t towards what he was
Interested In. He would do this by whetting Signore Massinl ‘s appetite for
sell-pride and power. The task. however, was nod al all an easy one becausa
the venerable one was a very shrowd interlocutor with lots of brains and
mental vigor on top. Unfortunately, those qualities were already channelled
down a deeply negatlve direction.

Cazar had the Intultlon that, 1f he had turned down the proposal dght away,
“the game” would have been over and Signore Massind would have lefl

withaut any plea for reconsideration. Cezar would not have had the chance
/3
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il :III'.II:I:I]'IE ol E|I1_'|'|:|.'L1I'IE mare and e oo MSE LIRS of hls retusal would have
been unpredictable. He therefore made the decision o decelve the venerable
ane's vigllance and, under cover of acceptance, learn as much as possible
about the backstage dealings of worldwide Froemasonry. From a certain
perspective, he then took on the role of an "undercover kamikaze™ but he felt
self-confldent and trusted his ability to deal with any difficultles that might %/
have coame up.

THE OCCULT TRUTH ABOUT FREEMASONREY

“What vou are telling me is verv exciting. Mr. Massini: however. I should
like to undersiand how it was and 1s possible that yvou have such great
Influence, | must confess 1 find this to be very Interesting.”

Satisfled with this bwist In the conversatlon, Signore Massinl gave a
solicitous reply, apparently falling into the quite simple “wrap” Cezar had
laid.

“Well, my dear, there are lots of wavs to get influence and this s an area we
master to perfection. The main quality it takes 1s patlence. One cannot bulld
up grand and elegant palaces and then enjoy all the attendant pleasures
unless one i tenacious, vigilant and above all patlent. even in the face of
apparent failure. It takes time for everything to fall into place and sometimes
It can be very long uniil that happens.

“Clur venerable masters of vore had a great overall vision of the [inal
culcome o which we are now getting closer and closer. They didn't greedily
pursue mean, selfish interests but fought with all their might to strengthen
and relnforce Masonkc foundations by adapting iis puldelines (o the course of
human evolution. In fact, why would they have only looked after themselves
and thetr families? Weren't they the richwest, wealthlest and best-ofT of all
people anywayT Hadn't they made an oath (o help and support one another
when In need? 1 can tell vou they were the real architects of the principles
now governing the soclal system. But for the time belng, 1 can't disclose

much about these “architects” who devised the entire plan as long as several
thousand vears ago because that 15 a terrible secret of which not even all the
members of the Bilderberg CGroup are aware.

“In modern times — and by this I mean the past two or three hundred vears -
the venerable masters have done nothing but apply, In an intelligent manmer,

the basle principles that had already been established and adapted these to
the structure of thelr dmes. Thelr actions have been improved with each
generation while at the same time keeping the same drive and inttial ideas.
Y oa miust know that at the top of our hderarchy. there are only people of
royal descent whose lineage one can irace back in genealogical trees as old
as hundreds or even thousands of years. We pay great attention to thls Issue
50 as nol o gel mixed up with other races. Desplte all this. however, (here
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have bheesn EIEE]:I[HJ]‘IEZ I E]'BI:IIIH.II'_'r'. we have succesded In I!'IIJTI!I'I.EIII'.IE
recessive genes.”

“Y'ou must be lalking about royal famdlies across Europe and the preat
bankers at the end of the Middle Ages?!” asked Cezar In an attempt Lo
prepare the ground for more details on the issue, el
"Precisely. They were not revolutionaries. They didn’t uphold any hard and
fast ldeology or any speclilc and convoluted philosophy. Thelr force has
never lain in thedr brawn or thelr go-geding spirit. They have never
produced heroes or spearheads. Instead. they were quick to understand that
In arder to succeed they needed a different algorithm, drawing (ts strength
from the very force, actions and decislons of people, They were keen
observers and made some essential podnts from the very beginning.

“They noticed. for instance. tat community Hfe, whether it is grounded 1o
monarchies, republics or any other tvpe of governance, is based on
leadership. This reality involves two so-called ‘groups.” On the one hand, the

masses or the rabble, that is the majority of people; and, on the other hand.
the elite who one way or another strlve to shepherd ‘the herd.” This simple
observation was the foundation on which they built their entire plan.”

"But why was It so Important o them that people were split into those twao
categories?” Cezar asked quickly.

Like a genuine Masonic master injtated in the obscure secrels of the
organization of which he was a member, Slgnore Massind started to reveal
the very ldenlogical core of Freemasonry at world level.

“This reality Is and was very important due o the Fact that there have always
been conflicting Interests between the two groups. The sltuation had to be
made o work oul 5o thal those conflicting interests could never disappear
completely or, in other words, so that there would never be genuine peace

amang people, In order for this to be the case, It was necessary to pander to
both “groups” by various methods without thelr knowledge of the scheme.

Our MNuminat! have taken this abllity to perfection In that they could run
wilh the bare and hunt with the hound and yet never fail in this double
pame!”

Cezar then seized the opportunity to keep the pot boiling.

"But how could they do 017" he asked. "What were thelr methods?”

“They nesded some sirong “levers’ amd al the origin of thelr actions lay only
two! money and man's inferfor nature that makes him give Into lemplatlons
of all kinds. That has always been 1 successful combination because what

was not good In one case was so In anather, That 1s how this “recipe’
dmwln_g an :-i.l:"H.'I'I'llEIE. lkes. lem ptallunﬁ amd pr-udunn.' allovwed our influence

bo spread throughout the world. In today’s world, we must of course factor In
a serles of other fssues. Among the most important of these are the number
of this planet’s Inhabitants as well as remarkable technological propress.
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Baslcally, however, the [oundatlons of our Masonle organlzation were lald i
long tme ago, and they are so Orm and now so deeply ingrained in people's
consciousness that the full achievement of our program s now only a matter
of time.”

Slgnore Massinl ended his lecture sith a satisfled smile on his face and it a
long clgar. Obvlously, he was walling for his words o take thelr effect on
Cezar. Playing along, Cezar made a statement.

“But 1 Iail 1o understand the main reason for which this huge effort has been
made for thousands and thousands of years.”

Puffing slowly on his cigar, Signore Massini looked at Cezar through his
half-closed evellds, In his unbounded self-pride, he already consldered his
approach to have been fully successful. Cezar, om the other hand, thought
Uhat erroneous view had weakenad (he venerable one's vigllance and
prompled him to push ahead with a profusion ol explanations.

*That is quite simple, my dear. Power was and will always be the main
reason! What else could we possibly want after so long a time? Come on, tell
me, and don’t be shy! Maoney”? Almost all of the money In this world s ours
thanks (o the banking web we have been weaving for the past centuries.
Since civillzatlons thrived, we have been Intent upon creating a social
system where people fully depend on thelr Income. Money, more and more
money! That's the name ol the game: a [xation that had o be spread
everywhere,

"But In order (o have money, one must produce; and In order to produece, one
must work. Amd work requires dme, These are the terms of our equation
which In fact 1s a viclous clrcle, a puzzle with no solutlon attached. The
resull was that people ended up workdng themselves w exhaustion lor us,
always under the spell of more and more money hal is, in [act. easily spent
In keeping with the world's rhvthm and its assorted attractions. And yet, no
matter how much money one could earn, the real wealth and the bulk of the
maney are In our possession, well kept In our banks or Invested in Hile
deeds.

“Even if ten or one hundred people who are not members of our lodges get
extremely wealthy, they are not a threat because they are discrete entities
who do not pursue any definite, large-scale goal. OF course, we are careful 1o
lure most of them lo our organdzathon from the very beglnning of thelr
brilliant careers and thereby increase our power, Those who urn dovn our
offer can’t hold out on thedr own for too long. If one way or ancther they
become a threat, we Join efforts to force them into hankruptcy, even at the
risk of some losses on our slde. But the huge financial machinery we have
bullf allows us to redress the financlal balance guickly through Increases
somewhere else. The alm is Lo belng down the person in guestion. Usually, %0

when they are just about to collapse and fee] lost beyvond retrieve, the tactics
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are (o glve them a second chance to take the offer they Inltially turned down.
Mot aften they accept; and then, of course, thelr personal business makes a
spectacular comeback, but at that polnt they must already comply with clear
conditlons that we st and cannot be avolded.

“We always stand to galn, whether 1t be an influential politician to further
our Interests — which Is the most frequent and almost easlest case lo
fabricate — or a greal businessman, most of whose money we admindster
through our own networks. It is therefore our Inlerest 1o create as many such
"“wiclous circles’ as possible. And it is on this foundation that we have built
modern soclety and the so-called 'cell of society,” that is, the family which
we have chalned to an Infindte set of dependences: Jobs, houses, comiart,
cars, bank loans, and long-term contractual obligations that sometlmes
extend over one of iwo generations of the respective lamily. The role of a
‘wiclous circle” 15 10 make people dependent because. when this happens.
they are no longer free

“Dependence automatically triggers a sort of enslavement or limitation, and
we need people o be as Imited and mechanical as possible in thelr actlons
which must become almost stereotyplcal. This was the maln reason why we
have gradually Imposed a sort of labor speclalization extending over as many
Nelds and subfields as possible. IF job requirements are siimple, almost
minimal but repedidve, the job holder will soon become a submissive and
obedlent ‘machine.’

“We do not want people to think too much, Thinking can become dangerous
and spawn Ideas that run counter (o owr goals, That 15 why we have sought to
axtend our control over larger and larger numbers of people, even oulslde
Job hours - 1n their spare (lme, tsatl 1s. We have thus allowed technology and
Innovation 1o caplure the attentlon of the masses by means the ack of which
would be synonymaus with catastrophe today: television sets, telephones,
and computers.

"Our ldea has been a howling success becauss, apart from creating addictlon
Lo these technological means. it has also given us control over Uwe spread of
Information. At present, due to the characteristics of our times, information
ranks first as a “toal’ for action in the waorld, It is then simple to anticipate
the next step: by controlling medla Institutlons and tools, we Implicltly
control the content and quality of Information. That 1s why one of our
primary goals has been (o gain control over the biggest press, radio and
televislon trusts in the world.”

“Do vou mean all this has been enough to gain control over the world?”
Cezar ashed. L
“Obviously not. The medla was only avallable In a imited area. That 15 why
we needed some more 'methods” of domination that had 1o be lempling Lo

the masses. We acted like a 'grey eminence” in support of the spread of
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drugs, synthetlc drugs in particular. Fully aware thal these drugs — together
with iobacen, aleohol and coffee can destroy the human body — we have
deliberately staged a so-called “no campatgn’ that has only increased the
demand for such substances. We have created huge tobacco, fine beverage
and coffee concerns. Almaost all of the presidents and owners of these
business glants are venerable members of the highest-ranking lodges of our
organization,” Slgnore Massind concluded, completely full of satlsfaction.
“All this seems (o be a concerted atiack against humandly,” Cezar said,
pretending he had only caught on to the idea. Mot at all affected by the
purport of the question, the venerable had a nonchalant reply:

"My dear, It Is already difflcult o control and coordinate more than six
billlon people. You must understand that the more dispersed and confused a
crowd 1s, the easier It 13 (o maneuver. If, in addition, it does nol go above a
certain number of people, then things are guile simple given the mental
manipulation technology now available to us, Therefore, what difference do
you think it makes If several million people die on a daily hasis. most of
them From drug-related diseases?”

‘The venerable one paused [or a shost while in his cynical presentatlon,
seemingly ponderlng over what he would tell Cezar next,

"One of our primary goals has been to put an end to populatlon growth.
Moreover. we had 1o decrease world population numbers dramatically. In
order 1o do this. we needed methods that could kill large numbers ol people
In a very short Hme, We have financed top-secret research projects for the
production of demsdly vineses, Some experiments have falled bui odbers have
ylelded resulis.”

“Hesulls in terms of damapge done ‘naturally' 7"

“We must look at the issue from a practical point of view. It is the only way
we can achleve our alms thoroughly, If something or someone opposes us,
they can’t hold ocut against us for too long. As | was telling you, our *tools”
are never In the open. On the contrary, they come In a deeply humane casing
but tap into those soll spots that we ourselves have bullt into the system and
are mostly unknown to the people.

"Our basic hidden source of manipulation is the constitution of a state, The
making of a constitution 1s a real sclence of human psychology amd
manipulation which is why we have been careful to have our representatived?
lnvolved in the process of the big powers of the world. Constitutions must
take on a humane shape, pompous even and relatively complicated. but at
the same time, encode those effective means for population contral and
undermining.

*Conflicts, revolutions and wars In various areas of the globe have perhaps
been the most widespread method that we have created and Indinectly
supported over time. Armed conflicts have always been a real and huge
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sOuUrCe of Ineome o us, a5 well as a suille means ot FH?WEI-W[EJH[I‘.IB ACTINS
the world.

“We caplialize on any economic or soclal difficulty. particularly in less
developed countries. Owing to our banking influence. we can operate

secretly at the top level of power In the respective country and do the same
with the adversary state. We never ged Involved In one direction as the result

can be uncertaln. But by enticing both camps to take action, we stand (o galn
no matter how thelr contlict might emd.

“"Owr times lend themselves particularly to ethnic or economic conflicts.
These are simple to trigger, 1ast long and bring Into play numerous other

Interests on the part of more powerful but rival states.
Eventually, the respectlve war becomes a war among the great powers of the

world and less a nationally Hmited cause. Almost all of the big international
bodies, whether they are political or military, are of Masonic orlgin. Cur
venerables are there In key positions and follow our plans to the point of

precision. And, as [ have told vou, we are very patient, Decay eats away
slowly but surely, even at the thickest tree trunk. The UN and NATO, o
name only two of our most influentdal “wwols,” have turned out 1© be most
welcome decisions on our part.

“And yet, Signore Massinl, there's something I don’t quite understand,”
Cegzar sald, putling on a vexed look. “How could anyone believe that what is
most important in this world is a direct consequence of (he plans and actions
of the Masonic organization? This is absurd and even inconcelvable!”

Slgnore Massinl laughed heartily and i another clgar, He was quletly slzing
Cezar up through the clouds of blue tnged smoke eddying slowly in the cool

mountaln atr. For a moment, Cezar thought he had gone bevond the Hmit
with his hidden intentions and that the venerable one had caught on o his

plan. But his fears were soon shattered.
"My dear, this Is one of the Inchpins of our doctrine. Indeed, my way of

presenting things to yvou makes them seem so absurd and grotesque that the
accusations that might be brought against us would seem uiterly hilarious! In
a way, this is the core of our ideology: follow the plan. but at the same time,
make it all seem as If opposing such a plan, Thus vou can understand more #3
easlly why we don’t wanl medla attention, honors, fame or public
recognltion. All this Is translent and s addilonally controlled by our very
organization through our media leverage. Cur success les In being a group.
Our actions do not follow individual interests alone but are always correlated
and clearly targeted, Mutual support and complete discretion are essential
Ingredients for our success. In fact, the rules and oaths of our organlzatlon
are very sirlct and penalties very tough.

“You must be wondering what makes me speak 1o you so frankly without
any trace of fear and in all confldence, In so doing, T assure vou T have
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assessed 1 all correctly. Or do you Imagine that, once In possession of all
this information, you can make it known to the entire world?*

Signore Massind laughed heartily, but hds eyes turned cold and bard
Immediately after.

“¥our power and influence oatside are Zzero, Mr. Brad! Onoe you have
become the object of our attentlon, you can no longer escape It The scope of
your options s limited: elther you follow us unconditionally or you become
a persona non grata,

*Just think aboat it: you are alone, disconnected from the outside world and
subjected to a maximum security regime. Do you really believe it would be
difficult for us to cause your removal IF we really wantesd 117 But why would
we do that when you yoursell can support our plans? In addition, you will be
able to learn things you haven't even imagined and you will enjoy immundly
and absolute protection.

“From a certaln standpoint, you are precious, but what 15 precious must
prove its utility, Therefore, my dear, I can see absolutely no reason for
keeping any of our princlples amd methods from you. This would be
tantamount 1o consldering you an ordinary follower with a feeble mind, but
this Is not true. Moreover, in order for vou not to view this approach as too
stralghtforward - which Is anvway of a speclal kind In your case - | wanl
this discussion to be civil and mutually respectiul. [ really want 1o create the
appearance of an opton or decision and give you Ume (o think about it But
I"'m telling vou once again — In reality —you've got nelther optlons nor
Hme because we are the ones who've pot the power. Practically, you are lefi
with only the option of joining us. ¥You should think about it What could
vou do? Who would listen to you without thinking you were a madman®
“Freemasonry has always been occull. It would have been against our real
eoals to claim paterndty aver all the great ideas, social and cultural tremds.
ldeologles or forward-looking princlples all over the world although we are
the orlginators of a large majority of them. Instead, we have opted for fhd
discretion, mystery, retreal and backsiage deallng. There are only a few
peopla who have heard about the term "Mason® or ‘Freemason,” and even if
the word rings some faint bells with them, they don’t have any Idea about
what It might mean In reality.

“This spell that we continue o weave so carefully has served us well over
Ume. Given the circumsiances. imagine anyone polng oul In the world and
spreading the informatlon I have just given vou. Who would believe or Listen
tov that person?”

“¥ou may be right, but do not Ignore the force of a general oplnlon irend
that could destroy everything you have bullt thus far,” Cezar sald with
luctdity.
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“We are aware there already are many people, Intellectuals In particular, who
kknow at least part of the truth about us and to whom we can no longer Hie;
but by comparison (o the rest of the population, who have been dumbed

down by the social system we ourselves have created — and particularly by
the Information system we control almost completely — these people are
really a minorty. Moreover, they are dispersed and threatened by our
Indirect wamings.

“As L 15, even If' some people are aware of our real intentions. they will take
4 passive stance thinking they are powerless, listless and deprived of any
passibility to act effectively, They then take the position of the lJamenting
victim: °I know, but what can 1 do? What can we do? Cur hands are Hed. We
are being controlled and watched In everything we do. 1 don't think any
chance 13 lefl." And thus, a significant proportion of the populaton who
could pose greal difficulties and problems for us has already lald down arms
before the battle has even begun.

“If, eventually, someone attempts to attack us or tries to reveal the real
nature of our actlons o the Ignorant, we can resort to a wide range of
methods o “pacily” such a person. Cur reactions are attentvely concelved
and rely on a thorough understanding of human psychology., This is almnst
dlways Inttated by launching false or evil iInformation about that person. As
I was telling you, we have very thorough control over the media.

“Suppose Lhe information 1s released through a number of natlonally
distributed newspapers, The readers come across the respective false plece of
Informatlon which has nepative connotations. The harm 15 done whatever
flat dendal It would trigger on behalf of the accused party in the following
days. First, it s very lHkely that the same reader would not read the ensulng
denial, therefore keeping in mind the memory of the rst reading. Although
the content of the Information is untrue, the reader’s perception of the tarpet
of the artlcle remalns a negatlve one. Then, we must exploit as much as
possible the viclous tendency of modern soclety represented by Is slck thir:#5
[or sensational headlines exhibiting evil sltuations or characters.

“We are well aware of both the influence and the terrible impact of such
suggestions on the emotlonal nature of humans, We do know that evil
sugpestions destroy the harmonious energy structures of the aura and bring
dbout a subtle form of stress at psychical level. We also know that they
lower the [requency of positive perceptions and afTect the beneflicial
Intentions of humans. These perfectly serve our intentlons &8 they oxhaust
people, diffuse their attention, weaken their alert mind and blur

the farsightedness of thelr splril.

“Thus we achleve the very goal we conskstenily almed at: Increasing the
social entropy. | even dare o say that it 15 us who have ralsed this skill close

to perfection. To achleve the soclal entropy, which triggers a rather tatal
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soclal confusion, we always putl to use conflicting ltems of Information on
the same issue that 1s disseminaled by varlous media, seasondng (he 1ssue
with awlul or lugubrious connotatons. We therefore subsidize and promaote
works centered around childish or fanciful subjects. They all have a great

appeal though ta the narrow-minded looking for the sensational. Tt is us who
premiered this mechanism and fueled the proliferation of such books alming

at the public’s acceptance, and they actually ended by appreclating these
works,”

“The economical and social system we have imposed strongly encourages
rivalry in Its dissonant forms. unlawful competition and over-consumpdion of
products. For all of these, we offer a humanitarian justification which is
tralning and motlvating people o cross the “Hfe jungle” thal poses a dealh
Ureat on them. In fact, this senseless disquiet and obsesslon of the people,
which permanently keeps them busy and under constanl pressure, leads (o a
significant decline of genuine maoral and ethical values and to a vicious
growth of human nature,

“We do take full advantage of these ldeas and opportunities at each and
every madla level. Given this strong support. we have also encouraged the
prollteration of anomalous torms of sexualliy and pornography

that eventually reached unbellevable levels. We did this as a result of our
observattons that both man's strength and virdlity, and woman's sensibility
and intuiton. gquickly diminish when subjected e evil practices. Under such
circumstances, human nature becomes unstable and totally vulnerable to
temptatlons; hence, the basic idea that It can be easlly manipulated, To
achieve our goals, the target’s resistance must b= weak. We therefore launch
‘attractive’ ldeas and opportunities w people and then take advantage of thedr
weakness or provisions in the contracts they recklessly signed with us. o
“Modern soclery 15 a perfect fit to this design. Given the huge technological
progress we have allowed, we offer more and more temptations, and the
people easily fall victims o Indiscriminate and vardows sense gratiflcations
and stimull. We are perfectly aware thelr willpower will soon be exhausted:
and without resoluteness. humans are like stupid animals in their way to the
slaughter house,

“We place a speclal emphasls on the young people because the seeds of llfe
can be easlly killed In the feeble. Under an appeallng and atfractive mask, we
Infuse the young generation with all elements meant Lo fuel and swell
vicious tendencles, Ye encourage broadcasting of movies displaying
violence and horror movies where the characters exhibit sadistic and evil
features. To do this, we rely on adverilsing which, In my opinlon, turmed Into
the very hearl of commerce. Ths. we enormously multiplled people’s
lendency lowards consumption which has taken the form of a ‘modern

disease.” Althoush thev don't need somethine specific. they follow the
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terdency to buy, consume and buy agaln, even useless llems and make
superfluous provisions,

“On the ether hand there ks a close relationship between the lemptation of
money and the means by which one pets it. It is not easy to become rich, and

in the present economdcal and legal environment we have imposed, It is even
Impassible IF one resorts to honest methods. That 1s why almost the entire

group of rich people 1s viclous and perverted. The dishonest and teidsted
nature of the rich make them keep secrel thelr actlons, and this trigpers
mutual obligations, particularly by blackmail. We are very skillful in taking
the greatest advantage of such situations as we are the very architects of this
method,”

"However,” wondered Cezar, "1 think not all people react this way. If so,
what do you do in this situation, Signore Massind?*

The venerable indifferendy ratsed his shoulders.

“There are too fow left; it is not waorth paving them attention. Take Romanla,
for example. It was very easy to place our people in key pasitions because
we skillfully took profit by the transitlon from a icdalltarlan regime (which
had also been sel up by us) W an apparent state of reedom. We cormectly
foresaw the groedy and unscrupulous behavior of people exposed to varlkous
fears and hardships. Such people are llke thirsty wanderers in the middle of
the Sahara who desperalely drink at the oasis without caring at all about their
nakedness nor the opinton of other people.

“After the revolution in your country. we did nothing else but to encourage
the economical disaster, particularly cormuption, and the Romandan people’s
temptation for the taste of money. After such a long perlod of varlous B
hardships and restrictions, and subject to long-lasting sulfering. it was highly
probable that Romanians would easily fall victms to the surge of
temptations, Indeed, with rare exceptlons, they all fell in this trap. At that
moment we Interfered at the political level. You should not waorry as this is
what we do In almost all countrles. We must be ceraln that the main
positlons in the Government and the Parllament are held by old people,
many of them spineless and easy subjects to manipulate. To the strong and
dynamic characters on the other hand, we took great care to develop their
selfishness, especlally the decelving feellng of power which, In thelr case,
was not the sign of real leaders. Acting this way, we fueled thelr egoistic,
petty. and hypocritical nature. We needed such people In Key positions
because of their appetite for both dirty businesses and the paltriness to do
anything to keop their prerogatives and johs,

“We have almost complaetely succesded. As a matter of fact, It was qulte
pasy ghven the thirst for money and greediness of your pallticlans, all
accompanied by thelr cowardice and decelilfulness, All of these Teatures
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make them a bunch of ablect characters. We [eel very comforiable with this
situation, bat now 1 think we should make no Turther discussion about that.”
Cezar hastily avatled himsell of this short break and asked, “What is all this
fior. Signore Massini? What 1s exactly the final purpose of the Masons? Of
all vou have told me so far, nothing seems to be left to achieve, yet you seem
to perseveringly alm to something.”

"My dear friemd, the answer |5 quite easy. When Is the king the absolute
ruler of hs kingdom and people? It 1s when he has the absolute power. It s
the corner stone for us. Soon, the power of domination over the entire world
must be in the grasp of our hands. Bluntly speaking. the thirst of power is the
basic motivatlon of all people who accept to join us: politclans, leaders and
businessmen. Abowve all, there are the ellte made up of our venerable
[uminail whose design It is to (ake Tull control over both the entire world
and each and every Individual. There are 50 many means (o achieve this plan
that 1t would take me too long to describe them to vou. T would, howewver,
offer vou a few explanations. It will be in vour power to understand the rest
amd to quickly learn them along with your Integration into the rules and
ldeology of our organization,

"We will only attaln complete Infleence and control upon humans when we
sucoeed 1o supervise everything. The collected forces and powers of the
members belonging to all of our organtzations will gradually lead 1o such
totalitardanism when the individual [reedom and autonomy s supervised
from the point where a human being 1s born. To make sure of this and o =0
experience the valldity of the result, we Invented, as a mene experiment,
Communism. However, we notlced thal the constant drawbacks and people’s
anpgulsh. also the cult of personality that would always go [or the heads of all
Communist countries, created some tenslons and could even enable some
clearness upon reality for some Individuals who might have caused trouble
In time. The Communist system was only approprilate for a certaln perlod of
time during several decades. It became Inefflcient later and even dangerous
[or our inlerests.

"When we understood this, we decided to finish this experience and we gave
the green light for the political changes, We must create the illusion of
“something different,” but we already knew that nothing could be changed In
one day. S0, we were expecting lots of soclal rebelllons meant to change
mentalities, goals and the way of thinking. We are those who insidiously
penetrated the main ldeas of the new social system by means of media.
politicians and by constantly creating new rifts in finances, particularly
meant to straln the relatlon between people and government.”

“Welfare shouldn’t be a general condlilon, but we want a certaln stratum off
corrupled people who are therefore golng 1o support our Interests without

hawing the smallest clue about 16, On the contrary, the appearances always
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make them belleve that it's up to them to act and make declslons and they
are having the power which we mast support for them in order not 1o let the
spell go down,

“What I'm telling you now s top secred in Froemasonry. 'ou shouldn't think

that every member knows our mysteries. Access to our ideas and goals is
only allowed step by step; and the Information to be revealed s also
structured In sequence of stages according Lo s Importance. As a general
rule, we always act at three different levels which clearly outline the duties
and value of the Masonic brother. Although in a birds-eve view these levels
spem like some Independent, superimposed strata, they still comprise some
linking rings that make a cruclal iImportance In understanding whit our plans
worldwide are. But these linking rings are only known by our leaders, our
elder Numinai.”

“The Hrst rank includes those who have newly joined our Mason lodges who
are nof yet important enough for us 1o entrust serious tasks to them, They are
our 'dally workers,” 1.e. those who accomplish lots of petty work which is
quite useful; yet, as a whole, they prepare the stage for our great blows. By
that, I mean the appearance of different military conflicts. revolutions. and
national payvback incapacity which s some of our heavy artillery and a part

of the strategy that our remarkable fellows envisage. But such far-reaching
actions only come up aller the material is ready. This is after our “dailly ™
workers' act [or a while, all under our guidance in the shade, withoul
precisely knowing the real target,

Feople belonging (o this rank are particularly the newly clch and quite
narrow-minded, pursuing titles, ranks and soclal acknowledgment. As a
whole, they are the snobbish, bearing an inferority complex which they seek
to balance by thinking thal they belong 1o the high-1ife or even make up this
soclal stratum. They are supposed to be full of vanity, hypocrisies and

selflshness, having some financlal power but not wealthy enough nod (o
vearn In secrel alter a royal |Lfe.

“Even so, it 15 absolulely necessary thal they must be some of our political
leaders as we need to control the levers and influence both at a governmental
level and at the lower local level as this 1s where the intrigue starts its way to
the center. This 1s why we malnly try to attract (o this rank professors,
lawyers, doctors, Inspectors, mayors and certaln businessmen In the area.
“For all these people we have created some ‘valves” or motivation (o lure
them and then use them to our benefit, There are some selected clubs such as

Raotary or Lion's which give them the 1llusion that they belong to the high-
life in the country and therefore are leading soclety. In fact, these clubs are

but some dust In thelr eyes, a shield agalnst possible attacks, for the people
who belong there will undauntedly [ght 10 preserve the privileges they
attalned as members of the so-called high-life,
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“They are attracted and stimulated by a serlous and selected front side of that
elitist soclety where only good people are known (0 penetrate, people who
represent the cream of soctely and retain power and influence in different
state structures. This 1s a highly attractive image that we maintain by luxury

and by enabling high-ranking relationships and financial support, But, T
siress It agaln: all these things create obligations.

"Dur maln Interest 1s to generate greal differences between the soclal strata.
This means people who are quite rich or very poor with no Intermediary and
supportive layer in between. This is how we maintain a general social
condition that makes people believe they must face a continuoas assault and
ceaselessly flght (o earn thelr Bving day by day or to Increase thelr
possessions even more. This tenslon and ancdety will supply the

Tear element. As long as lear §s there, there is no mom for peace,
consolation. relaxatton or spirieality. This 1s why we want 1o obstruct any
path to good, harmony and genuine religious belief which would damage our
power and conirol,”

“Whal do you mean?” Cezar asked In a vexed tone. *That you do not have
any religion at all and, on the contrary, you want o undermine 17" 100
"Religlon? Consider carefully what 1s going on in the world these days.,
Think of the race hatred, the deviated sects that get fanatic In the name of a
undque bul particular God. The endless conllicts between nations are mostly
grounded on religlous divergences. Think of the cormuption and cowardice
of the Christlan church, the Orthodox vanity and the Catholic manipulation!

Indeed, 1i's stll us who have directed these things backsiage, particularly by
the perverse Inirlgues and ldeas Implemented at the right moment In some
key points under the power of some people. In exchange. we give people the
kingdom of the Universal Architect who can really take good care of them.
You call him the Prince of Darkness, It makes no importance!

“First af all, you must persistently follow up your own Interest in everything
yvou do. This will require great efforts and commitments, qulte serlous
sometimes. For instance, (his may include denying vour religlon and even
glving away vour soul: but vou will taste the power, the wealth and the

extraordinary influence at the high levels of soclety,”
“That’s Interesting,” =ald Cezar with a subtle and Ironic attliude, all

according to his indtlal plan. *1 used to have some different concepts:;
however, whal vou are saying here seems quile attractive.”

“Don’t think that these facts are known by everybody.” sald the venerable
Massinl with enthusiasm, “Far be it. T told vou about three basic levels and
thelr scaled Importance In our Masonde organd zatlon.

“Mow you understand that the first rank of the ‘dally workers' has no access
Lo such information that concerns the secrel aspects of Masonry, partcularly
our worldwlide plans, The members of the second rank, however, can meset

86
DOX.BG




some of our Internatlonal arrangements so that If they should get deeper Into
the politcal and governmental agreements, they are piven nich more
support by our powerful lodges. In particular, we set up [or them a specillc
hierarchy of steps or ranks. up to the 33nd degree.

"It’'s important to notice how people can stick to thelr titles, their posts and
acknowledgment; and we conslder this highly within our organlzation. A
33rd degree Mason can stand For a basic figure In our general structure. In
time, we iried o spread the idea that this 1s the peak of the Masondc pyramid.
5till, I want to mention to you in particular that the second rank is but the
bepinning of the Masonic warld elite. This Is carefully concealed,
Nevertheless, some rumors have escaped In Hme, You have o know,
however, that It 1s us at the peak of the pyramld and we cannot be sued in the
courl. There is no other state struclure above us for the simple reason that 01
wie have created almost all of them.”

"This means you own the power at the highest level,” Cezar Interruptoed
pensively, “How is it possible that the third rank of Masons, to whom you
referred (o as the world Masonlc ellte, can own such a power without being
known?”

"We need no acknowledgment the way you 're thinking about it. We may
show up In soclety, particularly by means of the Inherlted titles of nobdlity or
as greal bankers dealing with thelr business. We always ake care Lo stay
close o the so-called charity actions by means of some foundations that also
belong to us. In fact, these foundations enable us to transfer large amounts of
momey under the color of legality and philanthropic goals, We are the ones
whao redaln, In fact, the world financial monopoly for we control all money
markets. The world control project is metlculously set up.”

“How did you manage (o control the world finances?" Cezar asked. “Nobody
can have access to all the money in circulation!”

“We mastly control this money, but pur real Influence conslsts of the huge
debts we baslcally force upon all governments In order to deal with the
economy. and therefore in the social Held — In the way we like L This is
basically the matn target for which we founded two high financial structures
In the waorld: the Waorld Bank and the International Monetary Fund (TMF).
Eul the strongest stroke which made our grealest success was getling the
USA Lndo debt so that they completely fall under the financlal politlcs we
arrange.

“Just 25 I sald, the essence In such politics 1s the interest on loans and the
subsequent debis and all forms of obligations or concessions to result in our
favor. This Is how we control the economic world and we direct it where we
please. We can create real Instablllity or obstruct the payments whene we
have a particular interest.
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"Countries In bankruptcy Is what we are best at for we can thereby Indirectly
rule & whole people. We obviously fx and connect these strategles In
advance by misinformation through the intermational media which also
belongs to us. This system proved highly efficient in time and we properly

manage it, In case there 15 somebody to oppaose 1t, there would normally be
no problem to do away with him as a palltical or soclal personality, thanks (o
our countless relatlonships, to cormuption and to our control over the
Itnancial syslem.

“There are some special cases, such as the USA, where we cannot allow any
mistakes or exterior actlons except the ones we provide, This is why every
president of the USA 1s our cholce amnd the outcome of our Masonlc poals,
He musi absolutely be an outstanding member In our Masonic Lodges. Mo
ol the time they belong 1o the second rank. In order o perfectly hide the
political and nanclal maneuvers we display. we demanded the most
spectacular and also hilarious idea that we managed to implement to the
crowds in the last two hundreds vears, This probably 1s one of our mnst
valuable additions that provided greal advantage to us and can still be quite
eflicient these days, You may be surprised, but it sounds so Familiar
democracy!

“The concept iself Is not worth a brass; sull, 1 s the most essential plece In
e gear of our plans and it s quite popular. The main reason is that it stirs
vanity (o people and makes them crave [or power. In fact. il only generates
some sort of hatred, fight and temptation which makes a great frame for
manlpulatlon, The secred polltical games amd the high Onanclal and power
Interests are apparently in the hamnds of the electors. You have o proceed (o
sHght compromises in order 1o enjoy all of the advanlages later on. What is
the advantage we actually draw by means of democracy? It usually leads to
disunion between different social layvers of a country and o downright
comnfllcts between peoples In the world. The ldea we promote In arder to

actually conceal our real plans and actions under everybody s sllent
agreement concerns the illusion of the [ree cholee for every individual. But
when we deal with tens and hundreds millions of different people, so0

stressed and perverted, their so-called “free cholce' can be easily directed by
different methods. The tempest must go wild, but its maln direction can be
Influenced so that It may protect certaln areas and destroy others.

“We [ound the easiest and safest way Lo attain chaos and disunion. You see,
despite the highly charitable appearances and the moral values we polished
democracy In, this actually hides the core we had started from and that we
enhanced In time: the hatred between fellows, the blind strugple for a faclle
and ephemeral power and the lack of unity.

“People jolning together under positive and benelicial ideas or concepls s

quite dangerous, for this is the only way for the masses to become really "
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powerful In thelr action. This baslcally Is the reason why we often pursue the
slate spliting into different minorites, each of them having s own spectiic
Interests, culture and religlous bellefs. Cur Onal goal is having the cultural
and religlous traditions vanish away in different countries to the point where
they lack the power of Individualization. Then they may be easily controlled
and asslmilated In a unlgue governmental form which will be

obviously directed by our Masonlc world ellie.

“One of the major obstacles we encounter and we have Lo surpass {5 the
various traditions of people and their need to stay close to them. We strive o
gather a “herd of animals,” awtomatically responsive, You give them hay adEd
water al the proper time and they offer unconditonal commiltments, To
attain this, Just as 1 sald befors, the anclent traditions must wane; the real
Iolk values and symbols must be evened oul and even ignored. The new
generation must be perverted al the soul and have thelr senses poisoned with
false 1deas, lies and all kKinds of alluring vices, We have mostly succeeded in
doing so, That was quite easy for America as they baslcally have no tradition
at all. It s currently the place on Earth where our plans have been perfectly
carfled oul: the complete submission o the soclal-econoemical system with
total control and financial oppresslon. All these are wrapped by the spell of
the extraordinary technologles and by the ridiculous and arrogant ldea of the
Itrst world power.

“People need the conviction even of a false power. They unconsclously
need something to glve a vivid impression and Inner safety. We maintain this
ldes of power In the Americans’ mind for it prevents them from revolting
agalnst the system that had offered them such a comfortable ldea of
supremeness, Besides, we can make greal use of the vanity and shallowness
to derlve from here. Since they are less cautlous and can be easily
manipulated, the Amerlcans can stand for the peak offensive in our plan to
conguer the absolute power on Earth.”

Cezar wanted more dedalls.

“Since IU's Just a blull, wiy is democracy so much stressed aboul?” he
asked.

"Democracy, my dear, is just apparently a beneficial thing. It enables, In
fact, the highest abuses and conflicts,” answered Signore Massinl. " Don't
yvou know people have died In the name of democracy? All laws and
principles of the current civilization are siructured according o the laws of
democracy, aren’t they? Well. the emergence of this pole, which 15
democracy, also determined the possibility of the opposite idea and of the
fight agalnst democracy. That's how we obtalned the conflict. The conflict ks
a sound ground to enable the rling of the whole world.
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“Let me remind you here of a baslc rule of our Masondc regulations: glve
secrel support (o both sides, by smart tactics in palitics and sconomy, and
pive a shoulder e each combatant in order Lo reach the success you pursue.
“The term and the false concept of "democracy’ became a shield for many

governments in order to freely act as they wish and therefore cover their own
Interests. Muost of the counirles fell Into huge debis, sirlving to cover the

military expenses o matter that they are not imvolved In wars. We glve them
loans but ask the governments W guarantee them with many assels: mines,
forests, rallways or several industrial fields that are quite iImportant. This 1704
the maln way for us to gradually take hold of a country’s wealth and control
the people In that country,”
“I still belleve that democracy 1s a good Idea, but the way [t Is applled seems
|:reweﬂe':l " sald Cezar, being careful in his answer (o (he venerable Massini.
“That is true Indeed. Taken as a concepl, democracy 1s only valuable when
civilization has already reached a high level of undr:rr-tandtng and
application of the mysteries of the universe and of life. But even at such
stages. It must only be employed In some resirlcied groups of Individuals
who are appolnted 1o make the major decisions in some community or for a

whale country, Democracy cannot essentlally exist In a proper way tor the
large masses of people in heterogeneous structures. We do know that i
rmeans a viable concept only or the socletes that have been given beneflcial
directions and where people think and generally act in the same voloe and
wha have a high level of consclousness, Bt it's not at all the case for the
modern civillzation.”

“What about the church?” Cezar Interferad. *It has no Influence in this
respect? I kmow for a fact teat te masses serfously confide in the church and
[ollow 1"

senlor Massinl falled to disguise his ircitabdlity.

“The Christlan church 1s one of the most dangerous enemies we have. Iis
Influence Is quite large ved, bul we endeavor 1o decrease L as much as
possible. In dolng so, we particularly target the voung generatlon which we
try to get unbalanced by means of our ideas. We mainly strived to give

people the ideas of freedom and democracy which the modern chvilization is
knoremn to misunderstand and glve improper use. Everybody supports
freedom and democracy and talks about It, but they barely think of the wars,
conflicts, tensions and mlsu.m:lerstam:ll:ngs more usual in the world than ever,
And they never conslder this In the light of the good will, charity and peace
that are stated worldwide, This is how we gave the supreme rank to the
rulers” hypocrlsy and we take full advantage of this.

“We also counted on the lack of common sense, the vandty and the
conceltedness of most of the people who imagine thal they very wll
understand the structure of democracy and freedom of expression. When
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glven such a trame, average pecple gel sell-lmporant and they enhance this
eeling at quite a ridiculous scale. In their petly existence under thedr
everyday worrles, people even imagine al the political leaders rely on them
and on thelr opinion. Politicians therefore give people the impression that

their opinion 15 a competent one. In fact, they only pursue a strong influence
upon voiders who must be urged nid to thelr own necessitles but to the
Interests of the leaders, usually concealed under promises and deluslonal 105
platfiorms in politlcs. This s how we are profected by the very ones we wanl
1 Oppress.

“In case any resistant position may rise against the general background, the
representative must be eliminated right away. We generally proceed (o
disparagement by means of media. We contlnue by satire which helps us str
people’s suspiclons and distrust as concerns about that person’s behavior and
slatements. Eventually. nobody will ever give credit to such a person. Since
we display concentric and persevering assaults, often spiced with blackmail.

the subject will soon feel forlorn and accused for what he dared fo write or
sday. He will be threatened, job blackmailed, and discriminated In society so

theat b will eventually give in. [le will go back on the courage he evinced at

the beginning for he now wants to got hack his advantages, Sometimes he
will even bacomse our partner.

“This is the main drama we created in soctety: most of the people are weak
and cowardly. There are rather few 10 reslst our allacks and strategles.
However, such people ohstruct our actlons, and worse, they gain public

consideration and help, This means unlty and force In common goals which
I Just what we are irving to block. Even worse |5 thal some of these people
and groups observe very well known esoleric techniques which they apply In
order 0 counter cur actbons.

“Well, it's true that our elders, the INuminati, also make use of secrat
technbgues of persuasion and influence In order to determine specific effects
In the physlcal world. St we sometimes are embarrassed and even
obstructed in carryving oul our plans by te opposite forces. This 15 why we
absolutely need to attract people like you, who have already attained
remarkahle powers, We are willing to offer so much instead. This Is the
only way you can lve your llfe for real.”

"Talking aboul the attacks agalnst the Masonlc organlzation, don’t they
bring to lght 1ts plans and its intentlons? " sald Cezar, trylng (o avodd a clear
AMNSWEL.

“Some people who strangly oppase our plans do know the truth about us,
Since the ordinary technlques of annlhilatlon are not that efficlent in such
cases, we arrange an artifice. We choose some venerable members,
particularly among those in the second rank, and have them present o the

audience, by means of our controlled media, some aspects concerming our
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organization. They have Interviews and write books or articles where some
real and InolTensive aspects about our structure and activitles are depleted.
The principle we follow in proportion 15 a quarter reality and three quarters
fake. The large amount of data that Is glven to the audience contatns some
real Information which we cannot deny amvway, but it is exposed by the 109
members of our organlzation. How could anyone suspect us of concealing
Informatlon since we freely offer 1?7 Obviously, those true things are
wrapped and adorned in lies so thal people shouldn™t get much of It and
therefore quit investigating the topic.

“We are the ones o draw advantage out of this, for our enemies can no
lomger present the truth that we already stated In a perveried form. Even I
they try to deal with other flelds of our activity, we'll pose as innocend
oppressed vicims and we'll also enjoy the support of some mature,
Influential people.

“We currently started to tackle this strategy as it’s high time we came out of
the shade we had deliberately chosen for ages. Due to the keener conflict,

staylng too much In the shade would now make much more troutde than
advantage. This 13 why. in the last twenty years or 50, we slightly started lo
come out on the stage, stating bits of truth together with many ather lies. We
very well knew that repeating a lie would make a truth out of it In the long
run which causes people 1o lose vigilance. Nevertheless, the [ght 1s getting
even closer now [or the public reaction also became unexpected. We must
give the Impression we are helping people and that we support them In need

and pain.
“*Clur maln directlons, p.':ll'lll:lJlEﬂ!." susialned h}r ML pd]llllclans. I'Elgn a major

Interest for people’s current problems, malnly produced by the world
economlc recession. managed by our organization. Therelore, using our

‘daily workers” that T just told you about, helped by their acolyvtes, we
attempl to glve the kdea that we take deep Interest In these aspects and we
sirive to improve them. In fact, this entlre “show In the footlights” 15 anly
meant o win credit from the masses so that. al the right moment and in the
perfect conjuncture, we should take possession of the political and
economical leadership in the whole world and form up a unique world
government urwler our complete and total order. We must therefore get
people’s confldence as much as possible In order to glve the Impression of a
natural sequence of facls — namely, the terrible world crisis w come, and 50
we' Ll erect gurselves as redeemers of humankind for we do own the
financial resources to do this,

“Baslcally, the task s not that difflcult since the masses” vigllance Is already
weakened by other strategles that we have been successfully applying for a
while: everyday workl routine, TV programs structured so as o Inoculate a
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passive attltude In people’s subconsclous with lack of reaction and
discrimination, chemical food, drugs and all Kinds of diseases.”

As he said that, Signore Massind suddenly had a glance al the elegant watch
on his wrist, imbedded in diamonds., The evening had alroady fallen and tha®?
are was chilly,

“I think 1t's high time we siopped,” the venerable one sabd.

"We count on your extraondinary adoptabllity, and 1 personally consider |
have made mysell’ quite clear 1o you as concerns the basic aspects of our
activities. Tondght I'll leave for Amsterdam as [ have to deal with

some problems there, T will also tell oy honorable fellows the iImpression
you made,”

Slgnore hMassind stared for a few moments at Cezar 1o a willing attitude.

“I appreciate the resull of our appointment as positive and I'm expecting a
proper support from you in thds respect. You are supposed o know most of
the truth about our Masonic organization in order to avold any possible
blocking of conception. 1 will be back to visit you soon and that is gpolng to
be an important moment. That will be a difficult test for you [ may say. By
thal Hme we are going to Ax everything up In order to get you ln our

organization,”

The venerable Massinl had already risen on his feet, leaning on hls cane.
Cegar saw him out to the copter. His strategy was apparently bearing fruils
as he bad no difficulty persuading Cezar and he didn't get stuck in any
obligations either, The fact Is that Signore Massind had been so self-collecied
In tackling thw: subject and eager to glve explanations that Cezar's acceptance
was baslcally taken for granted. The venerable one had an amazing subtle
lorce. Bul Tor the remarkable psychic balance and the perfect control of s
mind energy. Cezar wouldn't have succeeded to face the Incredible active
influence that the Mason could demonstrate when he wanted o get through
something.

Cezar sald that In such sliuwations the psychic frequency of the venerable
Mason was so strong and dominating that it would have doubtlessly made a
serious hypnotic effect upon a common person unable to control the superlor
levels of thelr mind. He had himself perceived In his aura the tough Impact
af that shroud of energy. deeply negatlve, but he had simultanecusly 1ifted 1t
up In a superior form of energy at the upper levels of his mind. His steady
volition enabled a perfect control and helped him be [ully aware in
confronting Sipnore Massind. Maybe the reader will have a small
understanding of thedr encounter,

Morwr that 1 knover the entire background, 1 can state thal, even to Cezar, It was
4 real surprise to fnd out the real grounds of the discussion and the
shrewdness behind it However. the evenls Lo come were bound o give an
advantage to Cezar thanks to his extraordinary ability to creep “on a knife's

93
DOX.BG




adge” when It came (o dramatlc and lense conditlons where highly lmportant
slate declsions were requined.
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Chapter 4 — The Second s
Confrontation: The Essential
Information

A few months after my 1ast meeting with Cezar, when he revealed to me the
astonishing truths be found from the venerable Massind, | was contactad
again in order (o meel dm. [t was the beginning of June 2003 and 1t proved
to be an extremely Important moment for me (o gel a deeper understanding
of what I already knew about the Masonlc world.

Cezar's explanations clarified aspects that were still confising to me since
the first discussion with Massinl. [ needed this instruction o get a precise
overall view of certaln mechanisms and subtle laws that go beyond common
knowledge and understanding and also of the connections betwesn Lthe
Masonlc manipulations and the Musion In which most human belngs are
Hving.

Another fundamental aspect of thal mestng was te ullra secret Information
that Slgnore Massinl revealed to Cezar as well as the starting point of the

amazing discovery that was Just about to take place in Bucegl shorthy after
the secret Information was released. The events stared o unfold swiltly, and

| was lefi to be the awed spectalor of mysterles that were revealing
themselves and extended “beyond time.”

A few months after thedr 1ast discussion, Signore Massinl kept his promise
and invited Cezar to see him again, only this ime the meeting took place in a
luxury villa in Bucharest. This was the diplomatic center al the highest level
ol one of the most powerful countries in the world. The invitation and all the
preparations had been made by S1gnore Massind through the highest
diplomatic connections In the state, almost as the first time, The difference
this time was that it was not General Obadea whao let Cezar know about the
Invitation but one of the state secretaries who was [ollowling the orders of
one of the Ministers of Stale.

This meeting was much shorler than the last one. consisting mainly of a
relatively strange proposal that Signore Massini made to Cezar, He offered

him soame extremely confldential Information In exchange for his promise to
assure the access of certaln Masons (o the discovery that will ocour from that

confidential Information. Gradually, Massint's hidden intentions were
unvedled.
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Cear percelved that the reason for his first meeting with Slgnore Mas<inl
was just o prepare him to accepl the offer that was now presented to him. In
thal respect, it was quite probable that all of Massind's templing promises
wore nothing else but dust In the wind and had the sole purpose to galn his
trust in order to make possible Masonde control over what could prove 1o be
a great state secret in Homania. The events o come would only prove
Cezar’s suspiclons (o be correct.

The second meeting with Signore Massinl took place in May 2003 when 109
Cegar was told the confldential information by the venerable Mason.
Because of his rank in Department Zero and the fact that this department was
ihe only one that was prepared and authorlzed to Intervene In those “special”
sltuatlons, Cezar understood quickly the maln reason for which Slgnore
Massind needed him. As he himsell stated, the top representatives of the
Masons at a global level had great decision making power In any
government on the planet, bt thelr influence still cannot go beyvond certain
limits, They could, for example, *make up™ and start wars between countries
and people, but they couldn’t Interfere In certaln declsions that concerned the
Intermal structure or the operational function of the security and delense
mechanisms ot a country. In other words. they could easily ensure that there
Is a general state of conflict on one continent or another, but they couldn’
force a military action in a certain country unless there was a major reason
behind it such as interethnic ghts or conquering new Lecritories.

The extremely important Information that Massind told Cezar entered into
another category altogether, That Informatton referred o a certain location in
Bucegl bul It was Incomplete. As Cezar found out from the venerable one,
there was something that could not be dentilied, not even with the latest
technology and this was the big question mark in the matter. Cezar realized
that Massini had some more information that he kept for himself. Though he
did not know why, he understood that this Informatlon was vital for the
Masonlc leaders as they had used all thelr power and Influence to gain
access 1o L.

It was obvious that they could not even think of a foreign military action in
Romania no matter what reason was behind it. Even if they would have used
the territorlal conflict from Transylvanla, this would have taken a long time
and would have meant war, destructlon and above all, a greal European
diplomatic scandal. Clearly. the basons did not want that to happen. The
conclusion is that they were interested In excluding a forceful intervention

and, more iImportantly, excluding certaln people from finding out that
Information.

Amaong other things, this explalned Signore Massinl's Inslstence on the two
meelings between them being “top-secrel” as well as the Bllderberg leader’s
decision to contact only Cezar in this matter, The rationale behind this was o
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simple: It was necessary (o fnd the right person 1n a very high and powerful
decislon making amd Intervention position. This person was supposed 1o be
tempted with great promises. gaining trust In this way: and in the end,
accepting collaboration with the Masons and to permit them to exerclse thedr
power and control at this level, Cezar was thought to be the ideal chodce fof 10
this plan, but the co-opt action had to take place swiftly so as not (o glve
Cezar too much time for reflection and to avold any unpredictable reactions
[rom his part. Most Hkely, the mission was considered (o be vitally imrportant
fior the global Masons and it was absolutely necessary for it to succeed. That
was just the reason why they sent a top representative of the Bilderberg
groug, an expert In
co-opt psychology, who also had certain powers of long distance Influence.
Fromm the information Cezar had, he realized that the Masons were rying. In
the shortest me possible, 1o obtain control over a secret locatlon in Bucegl.
excluding any forum of popularity and even trving to gradually conceal the
mere existence of that place from the powers in Bucharest,
These kinds of sltuatlons were on a razor's edge. When it came to state
secrels, any information leak could endanger the whole action because there
ware rival polltical factions that were not completely controlled by
the Masons. This operatlon was therefore going (o be especially delicate.
‘They had o masterly combine influence, discretion and exercise control of
the activity, This case was extremely difficull, even for the Mason's masters.
This was especlally due ta the limited access they had in the research that
was taking place In Bucegl amd In the coord inatlon of these actlons., This was
the general overall sltuation that Cezar described to me early on In our
conversatton.
In the past months, I refllected over the multitude of aspects and implications
derived from the first meeting betwesn Cezar and Signore Massind. The
horror that set upon me explalned, in a certaln way, my Incapacity of
understanding all the nuances of the elements 1 found owt then. While
walting [or another meeting with Cezar and nod having anyone else 1o gel
more information from. I resigned myself to only doing some discrete
research of my own and to mentally organize some general reference polnts
that were ralsing fundamental problems.
My next mesting with Cezar was golng to be a meeting full of meanings and
valuable explanations, wpped up by the reveladon of Signore’s Massinl
socret. Opposite to what he used to do. the technical director of Department
Zorn asked me ta see him just two weeks after his meeting with the
venerahbe Massind
Ceezar confessed that he chose to do it this way because the pvents wers
proving (o be extremely tmportant, and if he was not focusing on the cight
unfolding of the future actions, It could pet out of control and have
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unfortunate consequences. Cezar was not sure If he was going (o have any
spare [ime or the opportunity 10 see me in the near future in order (o reveal 1o
me the secret. That is why he chose 1o meet me sooner: 1o make sure [ had!"]
all the information I needed to publish a credible book.

The next months were going to be extremely tense and utterly amazing
because of the discovery that was about o take place In Bucegl. My meeting
with Cezar, which preceded the great event In August 2003, was the “calm
before the storm™ as “storm clouds™ started Lo raise their ugly heads on the
horizon.

INITIATORY EXPLANATIONS

Happy to have the opportunity to A1 n some gaps In my understanding
regarding certain aspects of the first meeting between Cezar and Slgnore
Massind, | asked why the Masons and those thal were joining them were
most of the time completely aware that they were choosing everything
related to it, T knew that in these times humanity has a tendency towards
maoral, ethical and spiritual decay, but [ was also convinced that the good
was able to defeat this dreaming state that was irving to take over.

W ory serlous, Cezar then explained that the fundamental element In anyone's
destiny 1s free will,

"Structured as it s, the human belng contalns good as well as evll. That's
why we can say that a human's superior nature coexists with his Infertor
nature. Important it 1s which one of those aspects 15 awakened and amplified
Inside us.

"You will probably ask me now what pood or evil represents. [ don’t want o
lose ourselves In phllosophlcal commentarles and observations, but 1 will tell
you basically that the good can be understood as the absence of evil.
Obwviously. following the same logic, the evil §s the absence of good.

“T belleve it isn't news for vou that Christlanity associates those two aspects
with heaven and hell. But beyond the subtle planes of manifestation (o which
heaven amd hell - or generally speaking, good and evil - are linked to, these
two opposites can be found much nuanced in the every day 1ife of any
human being. That's why some people, in thelr misery and not by accident.
get to call their lives a living hell while others, beilng very happy, relate to
thedr Lives as paradise. IF one chooses to do evil, one will no doubt go
towards hell and then, In a certaln way, Inferno manlfests lisell through one.
The radiance and influence of a person Hke thal will then be evil and that
will keep him away from good and happiness.

"The ones that choose evil don’t really understand that the meaning of their
Hfe 1= to iImprove themselves so they fercely fght agalnst good, harmony,

love and beauty. It Is good to know, however, that the human belng 1s
completely free 1o choose between the two extremes: good and evil. No one

Is forced or obliged, Tt's purely one’s choice, Her, of courso, personal 172
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destiny and certaln very profound subconsclous tendencles have a great
Influence; but even when the force and determination of these Impulses
seems 10 be invincible, there is sUll a certaln percent left for [ree will. This

never completely disappears. If it would happen so, the human being would
be just a puppet In the hands of some ohscure exterior forces. This 1s why,
even In the most dramatlc sltuations, humans are free to choose. They then
have the opportundty to choose good and get an unhoped for chance. From
here, step by step, they can redo their lives starting from a totally different
premise.

“Also, as true a5 that is, any cholce of good Inmvalves sacrifice. Have you
ever heard of anyone sacrificing himself (o do evil? Evll 15 always easy (o be
done and Is based on inertla, slowness and Ignomance because 1t doesn't
lmply any effort. That s why It 1s said 1L is very easy (o do harm but it 15
very difficull to do good. The main idea that I want you o understand 15 that
when a human bedng “sacrifices™ his ineptitude and acts in a harmonious
way, he tends towards another state and life style, He evolves because he
sacrifices himself, meaning that he gives up what Is inferlor io galn access to
whiat 15 superior. Stll, many people don’t have that inner force that 13 needed
In order to give up on thelr harmful habits and that’s why, at a global level,
there |s an Increasing tendency of regress with amplifled evil and
perversity.”

“T'his means,” | inlerjected, “that the Masonic elile use exactly this inertia,
laziness and mental abscurlty that characterizes most people in order (o
control the world population!™

It Is perfectly true. The Masons easily manlpulate this energy manifiested at
most hurnan belngs on very low vibratory levels through lack of reaction.
slowness, inertia and obscurity. In these situations, the Masons practically
generate an almost real state of collective “sleepiness” that serves (s
Interests in the best way. [1 Is very Important for you to correctly understand
this aspect of the way the Masons acl.

“Blosty, these actlons — which in certaln very high Masonic circles involve
black magic rituals - are taken from a distance: and those who are receptive
to these kinds of energies - that tend o be oppressive and to chaln you - are
easlly becoming victims, falling Into strange sleep. I'm not only referring
here to the physical phenomena of sleep but also to a certaln state that people
are (aken over by where they become very submissive and act as puppets do.
These are the ldeal erms on which they can be controlled and led without
providing any resistance,

This is one of the main Masonlc purposes: striving to make it ocour at the
entlre planstary level. From another perspective, you must be aware that th1=3
“sleep” that human beings go through 15 a manmer of protection for the evil

forces which use it in order to defend themselves from revealing certain
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spirttual truths. If you carefully observe the way people react when they are
comfronted with very elevated, spirliual and valuable aspects aboul thetr life
and evolutlon, you will surprisingly notlce that most of them experlence a
strange sleeplness. Obviously, this kind of inertlal state excludes any
superior understanding, constructive attitude or reaction.”
“As you have stated untll now,” | sald, 1 see that the Masonlc organization
owns all the meaningful action In a soclety, and they use W bo divide and
efficiently control nations. [ would say that they vehemently attack anything
that 1s spiritual, authentic, or sublime, thus pursuing the transformation of
humanity into some sort of a living mechanism that they can operate and rule
daccording to thelr own will.”
I was depressed. A helpless rage was devastating my belng and [ couldn’t
[ind the antidote for il Percelving my inner state, Cezar spoke with great
kindness.
"You are right in what yvou sald, Unfortunately, people become like “robats,’
listening only to the orders that are piven and obeying them precisely, You
must reallze that the power of good Is immense and that any action in this
respect can prove (o be extremely efficlent. There's always hope. You only
have ta know how to feed It with great falth and purity. This will sharpen
your attention and it will help you to act in the adequate way. Be aware that
even Lhe Masons have thelr own weaknesses.”
“1 was just about o ask you,” [ replied. “In the past months [ tried o
document this subject, and [ surprisingly noticed that there are disagreements
between the Masonle Iodpes throughoot the world. IF this 1s troe, this means
that they themselves are divided and powerless.”
Cezar smiled sympathedcally and made 1t clear [or me.
“One of the greatest farces of the Masondc elite 1s leaving the impression that
two or more Masonlc lodges are fighting against each other, The reality is
that, on top of thelr pyramidal structure, the great Masonlc maslers are
getting together very well. At the base of the structure, however, they appear
to be enemtes. The jdea 15 to create confuston and to mislead because it is
wall known that these tactics can fool the commaon people’'s vigllance. In
fact, it is just an ev1] force. The one who falls for it, because he wasn't
warned, will not choose one of the ledges, thinking [t Is not the rght one.
Instead, he will choose another ome, the one he belleves Is the good one. It 1s
like thal only in appearances because, in reality. the Masons are and keep of?4
belng the same, no matter the iricks they wse to fool the common human
belngs,”
"¥ou have ta have falth and to persevere In your beneflclal actlons.
Eventually, even the evil forces are subordinated by the good ones. It s a
great universal mystery the way evil forces play thelr occull role In respect 1o
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evolutlon; spectflcally, the way in which evil comes Into place In creation’s
aconomy.”
I was amazed and silent. Like most people, 1 knew that white is while and
black 15 black. Mow I was being told that, In fact, there 15 a meaning and a
correlation even berween these extromes.
“What do you mean? That even evil has a purpose In our Ufe?” [ asked.
“A very Imporiant one.  To comectly understand this aspect, you have (o
have an open and prejudice free mind. Fanaticism, especially the religious or
ldeological type, doesn’t go along with spiritual evolution.”
I silently agreed, T was all eyes and ears, prepared to listen to all of the
viluable Informatlon thal Cezar was offering.
“The fact that we have both good and evil in the universe, as you can see for
voursell, is an elogquent encugh prool that attests (o the existence of [reedom
of cholce, a way 10 iIndividually exercise free will. In other words, acting out
of ignorance, the human being chooses to self-destruct, demying himself in
this way, This is why, with a more thorough analysis, choosing evil means
choosing to flght agalnst yourself which, in the emd, leads o self-destruction.
This deepens the mysterious way good and evil relate because 11 involves the
fact that evll forces have a hidden purpose In the undverse as well as In the
HFe of every human belng.
“1 don't know to what extent you are lamillar with the ideas about the
meaning ol existence and spiriiual progress, but | will let you know that
human evolution primarily means the refurn to the primordial, purely
spiritual source from where one came
"Imagine for now that this orlgin Is liself the eternal reallty of a sublims
happiness that every human being wishes for. This return of the being to
spiritual origins must be fully consclous and free of any inferfor temptation,
of anything that could mean illusion, constraint, and prejudice. If you
correctly understand this aspect, you can say vou understand why evil Is
necded In creatlon.”™
I was a little confused because | was not getiing to the essence of the
problem vet. Cezar continued to explain very patiently.
“TIf el didn't exist, vou couldn’t realize the necessity of your return to the
source; and you would endlessly wander through who knows what cormers 1
the unlverse. This way though, evil’s role o the creation of the universe has
the maln purpose of testing human beings. This 1s how e level of
knowledge, spiritual evolution and capacity to love of every individual is
tested. In connection with the choices one makes, it can be determined 1f one
passed that Ife test or mot.”
“Simillar to the exams In unlversity,” [ observed.
“Exactly. The sarme as those or the ones in the professional field. The only
_difference is that while these first ones are illusory and ephemeral — being
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part of a llmited space-time domaln - Iife’s tests or exams have splritual
meanings and reprosent steps of great importance in our personal evolation.
Successfully passing one of these kinds of Lests can mean an important
victory In the struggle of dominating the inferior nature of human beings;

and this victory can materialize in an increased capacity of understanding
certaln subtle aspects of lfe, resulting In a gradual awakening of spiritual
maturity and discernment or In a multitude of other beneflcial and positive
aspects.”

Cezar took a short break to leave me some time for thinking and reflecting. I
wanted to make sure T understond,

“What Is precisely tested and how can we recognlze these tests?” [ asked,
paying great attentlon to the new direction this conversatlon was taking.
“Most of life's exams test your falth and judgment. Bul often, because of
thelr ignorance, people lake these tests as greal misforiunes, as a terrible
thing or harm done to them that makes them stagger on thedr feet, In these
cases, the evil manifests tself mainly for the testing and purification of the
human beings. During thelr evolution, o one can escapes from life’s
different kind of tests. lessons and exams. Practically speaking, these lesis

are our own controntation with the torces of evll that are part of creation’s
demonlc and satanlcally subtle plans. This Is valid for Individuals as well as
l'or a couple, a community or even a nation.”

“But,” I sald, “we are often helped by others when we [ace difficult times or
when we ask for thelr advice in a very complicated ife problem, YWho Is then
passing the test: us or the ones who help us?”

“You must be aware that to help doesn’t mean to force. Someone can be
advised and gulded in the right direction. but that someone sill has his own
ree will. Nevertheless. exercising your free will and having the possibdlity Lo

choose implies that the human being is aware and responsible of thelr
freedom. A buman belng can be helped, supponed, prodded, but beyond all
this les the freedom of cholce betwesn the options avallable. IF that person? 18
would be forced (o follow a certain path, even if profoundly beneficial, then
hisher freedom is actually cancelled. This is why it 15 very important for the
human being to be given the right to choose, but that cholce will be
Influenced by the degree of consclousness and discernment that |5 possessed
by that baing.

“¥'ou now know enough about the Masons Involvement at a global level, and
youu are aware of the terrible battle berwoen good and evil on this planet. In
spite of all this, you are free at any moment to choose on whose side you
want to be. If, thanks o your Inner structure and as 1s obvilous already, you
choose good, then you will continue to act In this direction and you will
persevere In your fight against the Masonic plans. The same applies (o all
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other people; only most of them don’t even know the truth about what the
Masonic plan s In reality.

“More than that, the way evil Torces act 15 so perverted that It infllirates
anywhere it finds a “fertile’ place. anywhere a weak or contaminated enough

consclence appears, Such a weakness and contamination manifests when
someons comes out loudly with the theory that we are surrounded only by
dltacks, consplracies, manipulation and backsiage plays when, In fact, none
of these exist and evervithing 1s fine and golng according to the natural laws.
The reality is that behavior ke that is typical for a person who is tortured by
multiple demonlc influences which force them to play by thelr rules, IF that
spectfic person belongs to an intellectual elite or If he 15 a sclentlst, writer or
columnist, then all the better for the Masonlc plans. The unfortunate oplnion
of a person of this kind - that can be sakd 1o have a cerlain intellectual
authorlty - can greatly Influence the conceptions of all those other people.
“You probably know, however, that one of Satan’s greatest farces is to
convince human beings that there 1s mo devil, that Satan himse1f doesn't
exist. This Is about the same way that Masonlc organlzations function,
leaving the impresslon that they do and wish only good. Everything 1s. in the
end, Just a mask because, In reallty, they are more or less out In the open as
belng agalnst pood, rellglon, Falth and splirituallty.”

“1 don't understand how 11 1s possible Tor uman beings o Bve In this huge
consplracy and not (o be aware ol iis existence]” 1 exclaimed.

"Why are you surprised? Even yvou, untll not long ago, used to live without
even knowling about the Masons and thelr terrible plans. You probably saw
that a Iod of things are not right, bul you didn™t approach the matter ina more
rmature way. Mow, you know the truth and vour nature that is very good
makes you wanl (o stand up and share (his informatton with ethers, You 1/

already have the extraordinary chance to do 16, publishing what 1 have thus
Far told you.

“The [rsi step to be taken Is to gel the public’s attentlon over the
surrounding reality. It is Hke when you toll the bells on a Sunday in a city
that 1s asleep. People will start to gradually wake up and then ask for more
detalls, Baut even more impartant than that is them paving Increased attention
to what 1s happening around them and even around the world because they
then already have strong resources of information. Thedr vigllance Is a first
and very hard blow for the Masons because a vigllant being 15 much more
difficult to decerve. manipulate or control. Afterwards, an entire current of

the same opinton will form. In this way, most of the Masons™ plans and
Initlatives will be destroyed even before they start "

Cezar stopped and looked at me keenly to see If | understood.
“People’s reactions seem Lo be very wealkl.” 1 satd. “and 1 even wonder how
we are golng to accomplish what we have planned.”
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"Muost prophecles say that, In the end, the good forces will prevall. On the
ather slde, the fght is extremely difficull. The Masons, as a horrible hydra,
are (he ones that conduct all these demonic orfentations thal bear on all
people on this planet.

“In Eomania, for example, especially lately, the Masons act as they please.
The poor people are kepd Ignorant and manlpulated. They do nol even
suspect the reason for the tragedy that they are living. If this hydra was
defleated, then we could wilness a very [ast regeneration of the entire planet.
“Unfortunately, the huge majority of people from the VWest are not paying
any attention to the Masons™ ways of manipulation — some of It really
obvious, Listless and selflsh, most of them rather 1solate themselves n a
sirange urban "hibernatbon,” mistakenly thinking that they rule their own
lives. Even il they [ind oul about the Masons devilish actions, they choose o
deny it or o rely on others taking measures in thedr place. More than Usat,
they Ignorantly participate in certain demonic orientations that are
continuously fod and supported by the Masons through unleashed rock
muslc, drugs, alcohol, tebacco and through a materfallstic outlook. In these
conditions of gradual but certain degradation of the human being, who in this
way loses thelr own will and determination, it I1s easy enough for the Masons
to fulfil thelr plans.”

Cezar suddenly went gulel It was quite a long break in which both of s
remained with our hidden inner thoughis. Eventually, he started speaking
agaim but T could feel a slight tinge of sadness 1n his voice,

"Unfortunately, the situation 1s the same In our country, People are 113
‘sleeping.” They are nod awake, lucld. Even though some fundamental

elements aboul the Masons and thelr world plans have been published,
people’s dramatic ‘sleepiness” and inertia — which 1s also correlated with the

‘sleep of reason” - has been 50 much amplified that there are very fow who
at least belleve what bs sabd about the Masons to be tne. This, In fact, 1s the

terrible reallty.

“Everything seems so awlul and unbellevable to them that. acing under a
subconscious impulse of fear and self presarvation, they would rather beljeve
that maybe the situation 1s not as worse as it seems, Maybe this kind

of Information only denigrates actions of some staggering forces mastered
by who knonws what reasons.  Therefore, they rather lock themselves In thelr
own shell and continue (0 remaln in the state of Inepdiude that embraces
them. “This state 15 even worse then when they hadn't any clue about the
Masons' demonic plans because to know and still not to react is a groat
cowardice and a blg deviation from the most elementary moral code. Ina
sltuathon like that, It 1s not the one who doesn’t know but the own who
knows and doesn "t acl accordingly who is the fool. This is why the frst and

most important stapge I1s the awakening of the people’s conscience from this
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awlul sleepiness. If they don’t become [uchd, they will never understand why
thetr life standards are s0 low or why s0 many unusual things take place
every day. This also happens because, In most (imes. Lthe essence of the
Masons™ actions s well hidden in occult symbols.”

This was one of the “weak points™ I wanted to clarfy with Cezar becausa
I"ve already made some connections of my own, bat [ still needed some
further explanations. | took advantage of this opportunity and [ asked: “Do
they use certaln symbols in their rituals in order o Inflluence the results of
their demonic plans?”

*There are indeed some Masonic symbols that are very well known such as
the compass and trowel. Others, however, are much more occult, For
example, the pyrambd with lts “all seelng eye’ at Its top 1s not accldentally on
the one dollar bill.

“Mext (o symbaols, the Masons” mottos are very important for the followers
of the Masonic Iodges. but these are less well known by everyone. For

example, on the same one dollar Bl is the Latin motto E Plurtbus Unum
which in a rough translation means through chaos, to order which can
sug@esl (o you many more connections.

“If yvou coherently analyze the way things are poing now in the world and
also In Eomanlda from the soclal, economical and political perspective, you
will eastly realize how this chaos 1s structured to gradually ensure the selils!]®
up of the Mew World Crrder that 15 not called The New Masonde Order — just
s0 the lgnorant ones don’t know who are It's actual creators — but only The
New Order,

“Another principle strictly carrled out by Masons, especlally within the
lodges and thelr ‘brotherhood,” 15 the imperative “All for one and one for
all." It may seem strange, bul you must know that thedr obedience confers
upan them a state of unlty as well as a conslderable force and tenacity. From
this podnt of view, | must confess that f the people of Eomanda or any other
part of the world would demonstrate the same tenacity, the same force of
action and the same systemalic connection as the Masons — but ol course
directed profoundly beneficial and positive - then the present situation of
Mankind, or at least a part of it, would be completely different,

"Baul...and this next aspect Is also very Important...while the ordinary human
belng abways has the possibility to choose, there are profound demonlc
Torces behind the Masons that imprint in the members of thedr organization a
certaln state of terror, an attitude of subordination like in the army. This

makes the ones who act [n these Masonic groups or lodges o be almost
Inexorable in thelr decislons. A Masonlc order Is not o be discussed

because, In the Inltlatory moment, when they are accepted Into the
organization, they are sworn (o a terrible oath and they go through a perverse
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ritual In which they oblige themselves (o todal surrender and obedlence,
accepting to be killed iF they act otherwise.”

“This means Lhat, beyond thelr actions In the physical plane, the Masons also
apply ceraln oocult methods and rituals that are deeply malevolent.” 1

ascartained,

“These are parl and parcel of thelr practical and ldeologlcal system bul only
from a certaln level upwards. 50 you can understand bedter, the malevolent
rituals and Invocations are realized only by those members that reach a
certain very high rank or position in the lodge they belong to.

"Usually, the Information that 15 released about the Masons does not contain
the subitle or paranormal tmpact that the huge sphere of Influence of this
malevolent group has upon those who joln L. That's exactly why, for the
common pecple that find out only certain truths about it, the Masons are
nothing else than a group often resembling a gang of crooks. Sull, joining
the Masons has strong occult negative effects that put one In resonance

with the distinctive features of the group. In fact, the merging of all these
energles as a result of one’s adberence lo a Masonlc group will create such
profound negative changes in a person’'s aura that comparing 1 (o his
proviows state will force him to admit the malevolent nature of Masonry's 120
orlentatlon.”

“How do you then explain thedr amazing power In conlemporary 1ile's basic
[Helds ke economy and polities? 1 asked.

“Truly, the Masons are now one of the most powerful groups, T could even
say that 1t 1s the only occult group with political purposes, All these other
groups or ocoull organtzatlons usually have spiritual purposes. They don't
strive 1o make politcal statements because, In thelr view. these things are
ephemeral. However, where the Masons are concerned, the situation is
different.

“They Inskst greatly on this polltical Involvement In crder to make those wio
Join them drop al this level In connection with the Influence and power they
have upon a larpge number of people. This demonic action leads o so called
‘spul breaking” for those who enter thelr groups. “Amyway. it is natural for

the Masons to act in this way because the accult indtlations they offer do o
pursue any development or sensibility In the soul of the one jolning. 1F the

soul of that speclflc person would awaken, he could not then be manlpulated
and made to realize numerous actions that are obviously malevolent and
demonic any mofe.

“From this paint of view, fealings lke kindness. affection and compassian
are completely unknown (o a Mason because, with these feelings, he could

noit ohey all orders. Through the oocult Inltlatbon ritual, the one that enters
the organization §s ‘deprived’ ol all these [eelings because he then does a
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sort of a pact with demonic forces. Unfortunately, In mast of the cases, the
being 15 not even awara of this terrible sethack that is taking placo.

“When the Masonic elite promote a member of a lodge to a very high and
Important position within the organization, it has certain subtle criteria that
‘sayv’ If that person has changed enough In the demonic direction.

“1 myy=alf later found out for myself — after my frst meeting with Signore
Massinl — most of these truths about the Masons, 1t 1s almost unbellevable
how much hman misery can be at the wop of the hierarchical pyramid. But,
everyithing is gilded and made to look shiny and noble through their
extracrdinary wealth, connections, influence, and contral all over the world.
“Eegarding the fact that they are experts in testing those who come (o them
ar thase they promaote Into very high positions in thelr erganlzation, | was
nalve 1o believe I had managed Lo decedve Massinl, making him think | had
accepted his proposal of adhesion and co-operation without any further
Imquires,

The old man was very canny, Even the amazing information he let me know
regarding theilr methods and actions were part of the lest or, better said, 121
‘trap’ they were preparlng for me, Most probably, e already knew — well

betore mesting me — that | will never accept his proposal, Indeed, | wasn't
anywhere near thelr spul rodted standards, and 1 already had a strong enough

spiritual Torce and discermment Lo reallze the awlul truth about therm without
belng templed by thelr offerings. Mevertheless, as vou will be able to see, the
card they were plaving with me was far more Important and they had to take

the risk, but they did it In a very complex way

"Masons are no fools. On the contrary, they possess a greal Inlelligence, bul
It has a perverse and even demonic nature because they use it in fullilling
their maleviolent plans. More than that, at the top levels of thedr hierarchy,
they often use nature’s occult energies but anly those ones that are evil or
very low and inferfor. Not accldentally, the Masons are - as [ already iold
you — the only ocoult group with political interests.

50 ey are no [ools; bul 1n certaln extreme siluations, they can pretend Lo
be 50 1f it suits them in pursuing their purpose. This was the case in my two

meetings with Signore Massinl,
s VETY prnhahln that the venerable one, even before seaing me, mpntall}'

projected all the talking that took place — and 1 am now referring to our flrst
meeting. In fact it was hds talking., more of a monologue, which suppors my
theory. He knew exactly what to tell me. how to behave, how toe propose for

my cooperation and how o tempt me In order to accept, But above all, he
knew how to make me bellieve | had decelved him, letting him think [

agreed. So, he knew [ was lyving only | wasn't aware of that. After a few
weeks, | was puzzled to [ind out the truth through some secret information
and espionape channels of the Romanian Intelligence Services, [t seems Th%/
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Massinl egotistically bragged about his meeting with me o certaln highly
positloned political personalities from the European hlerarchy: and this way,
it dawned on me the real reasons behind our [irst encounter.

“The situation still romained very complicated. IF he knevw [ was Iving to him
and pretending to be on the ir side, why did he keep playing that masquerade,
even lelling me he was going o visit me for a second time in order to let me
know something terribly important? The role he played at the first meeting
had been brilllantly performed. Telling me all those staggering truths about
the Masons, he practically forced me to use the ‘e strategy’ that he was
expecting, It was necessary for me to be convinced that he bought the lie of
me appraving his plans. However, what was his very complex amd ocoul
plan? What were the Masons so Aercely pursulng that they were ready to
gamble on a false aliltude from my part? This meant that thelr goal was 122
really important and that they wouldn't have spared any effort 10 achleve IL
“One of the first concluslons T drew was that, in a way, | was the main pawn
in this very mysteriowus issue that 1 knew nothing about, Tt was obvious that if
they continued to ask for my help, they couldn’t rely on anyone else excepl
me in the matier they were concerned about, But, what was that matter?
“Liue to the nature of the actbvity | had Implemented for 5o long In
Department Lero, 1 suspected that thelr Interest was related (o the
exceplional and paranormal which was interfacing only with the
department's operational teams of intervention, teams that I myself lead.
Logically speaking, that implied that they wanted to gain access to a state

secret that even [ wasn't aware of, bat to which they knew [ was the only
way because of my special place in the department.

“These were the only conclusions that could be related to the venerable
Massind's attitude. It was clear thal, in order 10 achleve his poal. he was this

time willing to go all the way, to risk evervthing. But what was it that caused
the world's greatest Masons to turn thelr focus lowards Romanla with such
great Interest?

“1 already knew aboul some very occull prophecies made at the end of the
last century by twio great Christian saints. They are about the future of
Romania in the context of the entire world's future, T also found out abour
the strictly secrel existence of a very valuable scroll from the great llbrary of
the Vatkcan that “speaks” about the same matter regarding Romania’s
territory, an inconcelvable situation for the mentality and ego of the world
powers. In the secret archives of the history museum of Vienna there 1s also
a very old document that describes the remote Future of the fabulous
historical civillization that inhatdied Romanla®s territory In thaose Hmes. Sa,
all of these are different sources, two of them very old, that refer fo, more or
less, the same issue. Therefore, 1t 1s hard (0 belleve we are dealing with a
hoax. Besides. there are many more aspects that connect,
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"For example, the prophecles say that It Is only a matter of a few years untll
the unleashing of the signs that will draw attention upon this terdiony. Yoo
rmust also be aware that the Masons pay very greal attention 1o Romania
because they have known for a long time that thelr biggest problem 15 here.

They know very well the prophecies regarding Romania’s near future and
that most problems will ocour Inthls area. This s why they are very
Interested in what happens with and In our country. In this way, thelr behind
the scenes actions can be explained in Romania’s economics and politics, o
ensure thelr control and to create all sorts of strange groups that they suppot#d
and often finance with huge amounts of money. Into these organizations they
have lured and are still luring nalve peaple, weak in character, wishing for
easy money, that are willing to sell thelr souls to get themselves a place In
that so-called high soclety among the rich people.

“The main purpose of these mind-organizations 15 o obstruct any atlempt of
spiritual development or soclal and economic normality of the people,
creating at the same tme the false impression that thelr activitles are focused
especially on solving these Issuss. For these reasons, when [ foumnd out the
astuteness of the plan conceived by those from the Bilderberg group elile, |
correlated all of these aspects bocause the sltuatlon seemed obwvlous.
Additionally, [ also knew a few secret elements regarding the future of this
natton Ueat 1 found out [rom Father Arsende Boca more than Neen years
ago. One who has a mindmum of common sense, & ludd judgment and a
cortaln intuitlon finds it practically impossible not to notice the often
amazing and complex way mosl prophecies come troe,

"Basad on whal [ already knew amd seelng the persistence of Massinl's
actions in this case, [ intuited thal the stivation was extremely important for
the hMasons as well as for the entire country. However, I didn’t have mmuch
choice excopt to walt for my next meeting with the venerable one in order to
uncherstand what the Masons wanted from me. Practically, it didn’t matter at
all 1f T was Iying to them or not because they wouldn't have kepd

thelr extravagant promises amyway. For thermn. 1l was really important that |
would give them access to something that. at that moment. I didn’t even
know anything about, Yet, it seemed that the issue was very dellcate if they
couldn’t afford o Intervene with much more highly-posliloned people with
greater declslon making power, llke politiclans and Influentlal people within
the stale's power. LT they were requiring discretion and secrecy, even [rom
those with whom they were plotting most of thelr intrigues and plans, this
meant that the situation was extreme and recelving maximum security., |
must say, 1 was much Intrlgued wpon this partloular aspect, but at that point |
didn’t know anything else.
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“Although I was supporting my theory only on logical deductions. intuition
and the secure informaton I recelved, the second meeiing would come (0
conflmm my susplclons. The state’s polltical power had been eluded.”

“I was actually asking myself why the venerable one didn’t choose to
intervene in this matter through very high diplomatic channels,” I said. *1
understood that the Masonic elite wanted to avold publicity regarding their
plans; but on the other side, a direct order, coming from very high above,
would have spared all the complications of meeting Signore Massini. In yolé4
case, they couldn’t even be sure what the final result is going to be: while in
the eventuality of a direct government intervention, they could have had
access 10 what they wanted very easy and fast.”

“Your observations are correct, but don’t forget that even they have certain
limits of political influence, different from country to country. They
probably considered (his way as uncerlain in Romania's case although,
obvlously, It would have been much easler. If they would have chosen this
option, they would have had access but no control over what they were
interested in and Signore Massini, during our second meeting, was very
precise about the terms of our cooperation. He told me that they are going to
have there their own people, with whom | had to work closely, following the
rules set by the Masonic elite. If they would have had involved politicians in
this, things couldn’t have been the same because of people's vanites or of
unprediciable reactions of the state power. Therelore, L was quile clear lor
me that, In this respect, they dldn’t want to rlsk anything. From this, I drew
my concluslon that what they were malnly Interested In was total secrecy up
to the highest level.

“That's why they chose the harder and more complicated option of
contacting me, trying to convince me and then co-opting me amongst them.
They used the diplomatic channels just to reach me very fast and in order to
avoid

any questions coming from other high ranked individuals.

“Anyway,” [ interrupted, *their influence and involvement in the country's
politics is great enough for them to direct or even block any rumor or news
they don't find convenient — it this is needed.”

“Even more than that " continued Cezar, “they have all the interests to
maintain this natlon at an almost unbelievable level of poverty and
ignorance. You know that venerable Massini himself said that. Nevertheless,
their politics became quite obvious., especially lately. Actually, they almost
stopped trying to hide this. appearances being maintained only through
hypocrisy and lies which only shows the unlimited deflance and lack of
respect for this natlon. Thelr very unusual and shrewd polliics serves malnly
to economlcally suck dry the Romanlan people and to bring them to that
totally addicted state, imposing at the same time external help loans that
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create attachments and obligations. They do their best to maintain the people
in this state and sadly, in mosit cases, (hey succeed.

*If the sltuation contlnues developing In the same way and an awakening of
the responsible people does not occur, it |s possible for these things to go on
and even amplify in the next perlod of time. This is exactly why I was tellifl2>
vou that it is very important for people to find out the causes that determine
this situation in the country as well as in the warld. Then you can be sure
that those who have a certain openness will be capable of ‘awakening' the
others. It's like the avalanche effect.

When after reaching a certain critical point, approximately 5% of the
couniry’s people, 1is development s almost exponentially the same as the
snowhall rhar is small at the beginning: and then, as it staris rolling,. 11
accumulates more snow and becomes big very fasi.

“In thelr lack of knowledge, many people involuniary act in consent with the
Masons' dlrections without ever suspecting that in this way they are just
playing the Masons’ dirty games. These games, using interlopers, are very
virulent and treacherous. The method of interlopers — that are then like
cannon fodder - is very old and often used in the Masonic way of
accomplishing thelr goals. hrough this they can deny having any
responsibility in case things don’t go as planned.

The intermediate source will be blamed.”

[ breathed in deeply and stralghtenad in my armchair. This information
seemed almost unbellevable, but I couldn't deny that there was an obvlous
iruth wiihin. I thought that, stlll, there must be a way Lo viciory, even when
the suffering Is overwhelming. That's why I keenly asked Cezar the
followling,

“Things are quite clear now, but I wonder what will be the best ways of
neutralizing the Masons’ malevolent force and demonic plans?”

[ could feel that Cezar was pleased with my attitude.

‘It is a good start.” he told me smiling. *The most practical way, in the
present context, is first to reveal the Masons® evil actions to all the other
people: either through face to face discussions or by publishing it, as I
suggest you do, with everything 1 told you. This way, a common front of
those who are not involved in the Masonic groups is created which will
cause a lot of the Masons™ plans and actions to be exposed. [t is obvious that
their actlons were and still are, very Insidious, mainly orlented towards a
blockage of any brilliant ideas, any extraordinary inventions, or of any
discovery or progress that might improve the quality of people’s lives.
“They are the ones that give all the direciions for counterpoising the
inventlons as well as to exasperate the Inventor and to bring a total state of
morass, stress and Impotence. That's why many will rather leave the country

and use thelr Intellectual potential In other parts of the world. In a way, this
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15 a paradoxical situation that I don't think you've met anywhere elsp in 126
other countries. Though the Masons (ry, generally speaking, (o promote non-
values and to annlhllate or even ellminate any speclal human belng, I could
say that In our country this plan Is very close and too well applied.
Furthermore, the political and economical situation proves that the Masons
act exactly as I told you. They do their best to promote mastly 'scarecrows,’
corrupt people and even to create a general state of corruption so as to ensure
the success of their dirty games.

“Imagine that if stubborn people and people of good will were placed in key-
positions, these people would refuse to participate in the Masons® intrigues,
games and hackstage miseries which, as you very well know, take over the
politics and economy of the country nowadays. These good people wouldn't
follow the Masons™ directions anymore: and shortly, a great change would
take place in everybody's life. The [act that things aren’t going this way —
desplie different trlals, changes, reshufflings or commitments taken and
promises made — Is enough to show you the truth about the Masonic
influence which deliberately maintains a tense state in the country through
lies and hypocrisy.

“I'he quicker the people become more lucid and aware of the Masons plans,
the sooner they will oppose its dirty games. Afterwards, a public exposure of
thelr evil plans and intentions 1s needed. Exposure 1s a very uselul (ool in the
Mght against the Masons. Already, most of their actons are obvious [or
everyone. If Is Just that they are yel not connected with Masonry.

“Even If I glve a single example, the one of the [ntelllgence exodus from
Romanla, It will be enough to get some attentlon upon the way the Masons
manipulate the people. There are many more that noticed this exodus that
wrote, expressing their concern towards this phenomenon, but they still
don’t know the real cause, the real reason of these intellectual ‘runaways’
over the borders.

“Knowing nothing or almost nothing about the Masons, they explain this by
the reason of poverty and the desire to get rich of those with great
intellectual abilitles that go to work abroad. Though, when a situation like
that lasis for many years, it is necessary to analyze the problem from a
different angle. The reality is that the Masons often lure people with
exceptional intellectual capabilities into a tempting easy life, with no worries
for iomorrow in Western institutes or research companies. In this way,
hundreds and thousands of gifted "brains’ from Komania leave and the
Nasons manage to finally fulfill their evil plan of annihilating the spiritual
awakening

that needs to take place In this country, to which those very "smart” that left
would have had a conslderable contributlon.
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“This spiritual awakening 15 very useful because it allows people to become
aware of their life’s meaning in these harsh clrcumstances. It even gives
people the strength to bear certaln changes lmminent to the period through
which Romania s going now and to remaln where they are in order to help
the others to awaken as well. However, through the exodus of these special
human beings, the spiritual awakening might be delayed. A gpld alloy is
more valuable depending upon the greater the quantity of noble metals, gold
in this case. If this quantity is decreasing than so is the material's value and
even resistance is decreasing.”
“¥ou are saying that, in the end, it is possible for the Masons to win?” |
asked, slightly worried.
“T just sald that the spiritual awakening of this nation might be delayed for a
while, but 1t 1s without doubt that 1t will take place, even If the Masons”
Merce effort tries o nullify it. The spiritual transformation is imminent, even
Il some sceptlcal people resonate with the Masons® negative Ideas and
express their doubt and even their bellef that we will never win.
“This subversive politics, diabolically maintained by the Masons, 1s
primarily to create an evil resonance with people’s lack of hope and lack of
trust in the extraordinary and beneficial forces, making it possible for the
whole nation to lose their entire hope. Yet, when a mass of people has a hope
that 1s enthusiastically maintained and fed, thinking of 11 in a creative,
posiive way, this hope creates a giganiic current of spiritual force that
greatly accelerates the fulllllment of that common aspiration. This Is why 1
am telllng you that If a profoundly beneflclal and splriiual Idea 1s embraced
by the masses, It generates a huge energy wave that can be the key polnt of
this natlon’s transformation. This aspect Is valld for any other natlon in the
world.
“One of the most important beneficlal 1deas would be that people need to
wake up from the ‘deep sleep’ imposed by the Masons and become lucid to
firmly act from a totally different perspective, with a superlor understanding
of the general situation. From the opposing position, it is awful when a
negative idea is embraced by the masses. The resonance principle is the
same, but the nature of the energy that is then excessively amplitied is
profoundly destructive and harmful. [t glves people a state of morass, lack of
hope, lack of confidence; and what 1s worse, it {5 strongly contaminated,
generating a state of indolence. laziness. and lack of positive engagement.
“In a situation like that. it is obvious that the Masons™ evil games can be
easily played according to their will. This explains why they react extremely
stromgly and with maximurm determination through mass-media channels 12¢
whenever cerlaln people or splrltual groups are revealing the horrible truth
about thelr plans and thelr actlons to the entlre world . In these sliuatlons, the
~most senlor Masons are irylng to destroy, by any means, those people or
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organizations, taking advantage of common people’s naivete that can easily
be manipulated.”

“Yes, | was also amazed by thelr slyness and treachery In manlpulating
people, especlally after you told me about venerable Massinl's complex
plan,” I commented. “It is stupendous what a demonic intelligence can come
up with,” Cezar agreed; and because the time he had available was limited,
he started telling me of the discussion he had with the venerable Mason.
PANIC AT THE PENTACON

“My second meeting with Signore Massini balanced the situation in a certain
way. Though he continued his game trom the first time, | was now at least
aware of the venerable one’s real intentions, only he didn’t know that. It was
frue that my small advantage didn’t change much, but it still allowed me to
be a lot more vigilant. My actions had to be very clear so as not to alter the
slluaton’s [ragile balance.

*“If, for example, [ would have showed myself to be Indignant and threatened
to expose everything at the highest level of state, I would most probably
have been immediately removed from my position. This would have made
for unpredictable results with regard to Masonic purposes and even could
have cost me my own life.

‘Practically, you can say that [ don’t even exist in this country. My only flle
is the one In General Obadea’s olfice. I don't have any political connections,
diplomatic relations, Mnancial businesses or social obligations. It 1s a very
speclal sliuatlon that has many advantages but It Involves certaln risks as
well.

“The advantage 1s that I can have access to the most Important data and state
secrets that regard certain special discoverles or evenis that take place In the
country. By “special discoveries,” | mean those situations that belong to an
unknown domain, at least from today's sclence or common conception’s
point of view.

“The disadvantage is that I don't have any other support except Ceneral
Obadea who is now approaching pension age. I don't have any enemies
elther because the department is very well hidden and kept a secret, but it is
still a "territory” that can be claimed by Komanian Intelligence Services.
Only then, it can mean problems.

“50, a scandal wasn't the solution. I am interested in helping this country,
not in missing the auspicious opportunities that 1 am offered, It s quite 129
probable that it wouldn't have been oo difficult for Massini to get to my
replacement — in spite of General Obadea’s opposition — but that would have
mearnt more agitation, uncertatnty, and would have been most unpleasant [or
the Masons, making for an Indeflnite delay of actlon. It seems that thils last
possibllity bothered them the most”
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“"Why were the Masons In such a buwrry and for what?™ 1 asked, obvlously
wery interested in the matter.

“1 will tell you immediately but please be aware that netther 1, nor those
from the Masons” elite - at least from what I understand - know much about
it,”

“As far as | understand It," [ sald, "It seems that they accepted a compromise
solutlon. They don't llke waorking with you though they tell you the
opposite. bul they're not willing o complicate the situation and risk a
genuine scandal by removing vou from your position elther.”

"Yes, It 1s clear that they could have brought thedr own man in my place by
now, This would have completely and Immediately solved thelr problem,
But, In splte of the fact that they can cause my removil from my position, 1t
seems that they siill miss the power Lo replace me with whomever they wanl.
They decided 1o use this compromise solutlon that they need to adjust as
they go along.”

"Who 15 in charge now with the position changes in Department Zero?” 1
Innocently asked. "If we know the diplomatic channels, 1t shouldn’t be too
hard to discover the real backstage games and who's playing It
Lintortunately, mv positioning In the Government doesn 't glve me access to
this kind of informatlon.”

‘The room filled with a heavy silence. Later. Cezar answered In a low voice.
“Let’s leave these things as they are. The [act that the venerable Massini's
Influence didn't guarantes solving the problem the way he wanted shows us
that nod all people are corrupt. This 1s 3 pleasing thought,

"Probably afler our first confrontation, when he reported bds results to the
Bilderberg group, Massind proposed going on with the Inidal plan which,
though 1t was quite risky for the Masons, still had the advantage of guick

passiblities of action and of my being misled, Howewver, T meanwhile found

oul about the venerable one’s games and 1 changed my initlal plan.

“If, at the first meeting, | consldered playing thelr game and apparently

accepted their proposition o cooperate with them, 1 would discover al the

second one, already knowing their treacherous intentions, what they wera

really interested In and then obstruct their access to 1t by revealing the matter

al the top level of the state. This was exactly the risk that they exposed 730

themselves to but which, as [ told you, they put 1o one side.”

“As a way of putting it the cards were deall on both sides,” I said. very

Interested in what Cezar was telling me.

"You're ght.” he answored smiling. “When 1 was told. a month ago, that

the venerable Massinl was going to vislt me again, 1 knew that this was the

peak of it. These people never do something without a reason or a personal

Interest. This is why [ expected Signore Massind to Mnally reveal to me the

problem’s "hot spods.” The fact that they again anmounced thelr visit told me
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that, at the top, thelr decislon-making people had chosen to go on with the
apticn thal invoelved me directly after having already prepared their
‘territory” al the first meeting. Also, the fact that the venerable Mason
himself was this time the host in the luxury villa of a foreign diplomat —
where the security systems were perfect — reinforced my conviction that
what I was about to hear was very Important.”

Quivering with anticlpation, 1 begged Cezar to reveal me the secret. Slightly
amused, he continued talking,

“The meeting didn’t last long, mavbe a little less than an hour. 511, T must
tell you that the Information [ got from Slgnore Massind left even me
perplexed. 1 could once again see the Immense power the Masons have In
aven the highest state organlzations, infilirating themselves deep and having
acoess 10 Information of an overwhelming importance for humankind and ils
safety. More than that. the Masons want 1o control and manipulate this ultra-
secret Information in order to fulfill their plan of control and domination of
the entire planet as fast as possihle,

"I met the venerable one at the villa; and after a few minutes of small polite
talk, in which time I made sure 0 reconfirm my willingness o jodn in thedr
elitist organization, Slgnore Massind pot stralght into the subject

In accordance with his specific style. He then told me he had ultra-secret
Information that comes stralght from the Pentagon and that the tnformation
refers 1o a certain place tn Romania.

“He confessed that the Bilderberg group has representatives in the most

Important of the political, economical and defense organizations of the USA,
including conmections to the presidentlal chalr. Beyond the influential
positlon of the American president, there are still a few occull groups with
great power due to Lthe complex connections, interests and relations between
them and certatn top people. state leaders and bankers at an international
level. Finally, even bevond these very powerful Masonic groups, there are
three elite Formations that supervise the unfolding of the sclentific e and 147
technology on the planet, the orlentation of the world's economy, and the
seitlement of the political currents and trends in different areas in the world.
Above all these is the Bilderberg proup, and within it are three people that
have supreme decision making power over the most Important actions and
Ideas that are golng to be carried into effect all over the planet,

"Here, [ notlced a slight uncertainty In Slgnore Massinl, llke he was
pondering whether o tell me something or not. I felt that 1t was an extremely
Imxportant aspect that might kave revealed 10 me the fundamental secrel of
the entire world's Masonry, After a short hesitation, venerable Massinl gave
up on his intention of revealing that aspect, continuing to talk about the
ultra-secret data from the Pentagon. He then told me that anything that 1s
discovered on e plamel widch has a certain importance is immediately
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brought to the attentlon of those from the world's ellte. This was also the
case of the secrel discovery in Romania's territory.

“T'he Pentagon 15 simultaneously runmng several secred military and
gendesic esplonage programs into which it has invested huge amounts of
money in a technology that clearly surpasses modern scientific knowledge,
The source of these Fabulous technologlcal capabdlitles, approximately
twenty years ahead of current technology, the Pentagon owns several
geostationary satellites that have precise tasks of observation.”

“In 2002, one of these satellites that is basad upon bionic and wave form
technology, spotted a particular structure that is located inside a mountainous
area of Komania; more precisely. In a certain place In Bucesl, At first, 1t was
belleved to be a strange karstic formation. Slgnore Massind revealed that the
specialists from the secrel data analyzing depariment. however, later
Informed their superiors that there are three elements that raise big question
marks conceming the registered data from that area In Bucegl.

“First of all. the empty space that was Identified inside of the mountains had
no connection with the exterlor, bat iE starts from the Inskde of the
mountalneus formatlon at a certain distance from s slope. Secondly, 1L had

the shape of a tunnel that, from the registered data, seemed to be very regular
and suddenly turned towards the conter of the mountaln at a 26 degree angle.
O tovp of that, the trajectory of the tunnel was perfectly level. In relation to
the base of the mountain, used as relerence poinl the nnel started at about
one third of the distance but it continued in a perfectly horizontal plane, The
third element, however, was the one that puzzled the Pentagon’s staff the
mast. The satelllte scanning of the mountaln highlighted teo major
blockages of the structure Inside the solld store that limited iis beginning 132
and 11s end. The venerable one then showed me a pholocopy of the
compater made diagram of the wedrd structure from the inside of the
mountain, a scheme that was checkered and covered In numbers and data.
The Mocked zones were marked with red and he explained that it simply
rejected any kind of probing or analysls, lHke they were protecting
something.”

“We might be talking aboul some anificial energy blockages.” [ sald In one
breath, amazed by what 1 was hearing.”

"It Is the same conclusion they arrived at,” sald Cezar "after they eliminated
all of the other possibilities one by one, Including passible Interferences,
melals or other composites. But, this made them constder a much more
dellcate issue..."

“FProbably who made the ontire structure, 1sn't 1?7 1 quickly querted.

“¥os, they were quite shaken by the data and iImmediately raised its securlty
level to maximum. The first energy blockage, the one from the beginning of
e wnnel, was plidn and upright, ke a wall obstructing Uwe acoess 1o the
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tunmel s entrance. The second energy blockage, however, was lmmense, as a
dome or sermd-sphere siluated at the opposite end of the tunmel, close o the
mountain's center.

THE SCHEME OF THE ENICMATIC STRUCTURE FOUND IN
BUCEGT, ROMANIA

mountain's brow the semispherical
b energy barrage (weir)

e T ———tunnel entrance

moantain’s B R %
base plane — % el energy bart

The venerable Massinl told me that, obvlously, there was something
extremely Ilmportant (o which the tunnel was leading but which, at the same
time, was also very well protected. [ will also draw you the diagram I saw,
but much stmpler. s0 vou can have a clearer image of what was found
there,”

I was sllent with amazement, watching Cezar drawing with preclse moves
the approximate dlagram of the strange structure found In Bucegl.

“The people from the Pentagon couldn’'t understand wity the tunnel turned in
a sorl of Zigzag pattern towards the central zone of the mountain, nor the
significance of the twenty-six degree angle of the construction. The structure
was in a parallel plane with the ground and the semi-spherical energetic
blockage was sltuated on the vertical cormresponding to the ridge rocks called
Babele. Aciually, as our measurement based on the Pentagon data showed,
the vertical was coming out al approxmately forly meters from Babele.
between it and the Bucegi's Sphinx.”

Om another plece of paper, Cezar then drew the design of the structure,
"Slgnore Massinl led me to understand that the elements of the Internal
artificial structure from Bucegl would not have partlcularly attracted the
Masonic elite’s interest had 1t not been for the fact that their representatived 2
from the Pentamon had noticesd that the semil-spherical blockage had exactly
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the same [Tequency and shape as one from another secret underground
slructure that they had discovered just a few months bafore, somewhers noar
Baghdad. Due to reasons I don't vel know, which the venerable Massin
hasn't revealed to me, the Masonic elite was extremely interested in the
secret data the military esplonage satellite had regisiered In conmection with
the strange energetic structure fromm Irag s undergrouncd.

THE COMNECTION EETWEEN THE BUCEGI'S SPHINX, BABELE
AND THE INSIDE STRUCTURE

the Shnx tram o 40 m Bdula
Bucegi Mountaing — o S

the vertical

mountain’s brow " __from surface
r

"

“Shartly after the discovery, the war started and the Americans, with otal
secrecy, had access to that area while the Iragis didn't know a thing about 1t
Massind sald that no matter how hard they tried. they couldn't penetrate the
energetic wall but he didn’t give me any more detatls. The whaole operation
was top secrel. He stated thal whal was there was connected with our
planet’s mysierlous past, but In a cerlaln way, with the history of thelr
organization as well. [ intulted then that Signore Massind had some other
Information, documents or proofs regarding these aspects which he wasn't
willing to share with me.

“The [act that the Pentagon Investigation notlced similarities of data between

the underground structure near Baghdad and the structure from inside the
Bucepgi Mountains stirred the Masonic elite greatly. As far as 1 could see, a
big part of this apitation occurred because the structure, much bigper and
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more complex than the one In Irag, was on Romanla’s territory. This fact
lsell sepms quile strange, bul connecting 1t with cerlain aspects regarding
Romanta's [uture which we've already talked about, you will be able 1o get a
clearer picture of what the Masonic elite had to worry about. No matter how
much they are trying to conceal It, their actions and Intentions show
the contrary. Thelr nush In solving the problem, the risk they've taken, and
the express deslre to have access to and control of the structure are just a fow
elements that retnforced my inner belief in this respect.
*5ignore Massinl gave me all of the secret reference data of the location in
Bucep, Including the easiest and fastest way towards the mannel. It was a
great mystery with regard (o who managed (o bulld 1l 5o as to create the
structure and the volds stiralght in the middle of the mountaln without any
connection with the oulside, We both assumed (hat i1 was made as a
maximum securily measuge in order (0 protect the structure agalnst any
eventual disclosure. The only explanation of the technology they used would
be that they somehow covered the main entrance of the tunnel after they
activated the protective energethe blockage. This, however, would have 134
Fiuggilved an immense amount of stong, not 1o mention he equipment needed
Mgl dgokHike that.

an& Massinl gave me a map lo ged o the unnel &s calculated by the
Pentagon's specialists. The closest access could be made through the front of
the mountain in a mos! advantageous direction. The starting podnt was
situated on the mountain’s slope, somewhere around 60-70 meters from the
first energetic blockape found Inside. Although this was the fastest way,
there was an Inconvenlence: they didn't know If the energetic blockage at the
tunnel’s opening could be breached. Even IF It didn't have the same
Irequency as the big semi-spherical one, we still couldn't be sure 1 we
would be able to get bevond it or not. Going around 1t was possible but this
wolild have caused more difficult technological problems, The second option

was going through the mck; byt this time Hited, somehow above the tunnel,
In order to get behind the blockage.

THE 5PHINX - BUCEGI MOUNTAINS
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"The h-m‘jn;g distance was bigmer because it was needsd to maintain a certain
breaching angle, but at least there was a chance to avold the energetic
blockage, 1 was quite sceptlcal towards this solution because 1 could Imagine
that those who bullt that structure thought this might be tried amd took some
precautions about it The venerable one, however, puaranieed the ulira
sophisticated technological support of the U5 Army would make avallable
an amazing device for drilling the rock extremely fast, This device utilized a
very powerful plasma |et and a rotating magnetic field. Using this, we could
get to the tunnel’s wall In less than two days, Including the predrilling
preparations.

“The whole operation, however, had (o be performed in the moslt secret way.
If the venerable one was offering the technological means, we had to
organize the rest so that everything looked no different than a routine
mission of Department Zero. More than that, one of the essential terms

Impased by the venerable Mason was that this action was to be erronecusly
reported 1o the President and the Romandan Intelligence Services merely as
the discovery of a karstic structure,
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“Signore Massinl also wanted to bring a speclal team from the U.5., along
with a few members of the Masondc elite, 1o join our team all te way
Uhrough. 1 didn't agree with this request, pointing oul that 1 could nedther
assure the securlty nor information leaks to the outside, but I did propose for

these teams to join us immediately after the breaching of the tunnel. The
reallty was that it wouldn't have been a problem to ensure strict securlty,

even with the U.5. team present, but | Inlentlonally exaggerated

the possibility of the secret belng uncovered because | knew that this was (125
Masons” weak point in this matter. I of course, didn’t want them to get
Inside of the mountain at the same time &s T did as T wanted first to see for

myself what it was all abouwt amd what [ would find there before making a
decislon. The situatlon was golng to be very tense with too many varlables.
This 1s why it could become unpredictable and even dangerous for us at any
Ume. The important podnt, however, was Lo get into the tunnel and then 1o
the seml-spherical energetic blockage.

BABELE - BUCECI MOUNTAINS

“For this, It was necessary 1o leave Lhe venerable one with the impression
that 1 was open and collaborating because he was the one who could help us
with the very important technical needs, His pressure s quite signiflcant, On
the other hand, his actlons are limited due to his desire for absolute secrecy,

Apparently, none of us knew what was down there; but as 1 already told

vou, 1 got the impression that the venerable one had essential information
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that he wanted o control exclusively. This s how [ explained his Insistence
en boing there al the moment of breaching into the tunnel.”

1 Telt like | was dreaming. Something exceptionally Important was aboul (o
happen vet 1t sull seemed lke everything was almost surreal.

“Have you talked with anvone else about this?” 1 asked Cezar,
"1 spoke face to face with General Obadea,” he answered. "He Is the only

one who knows all of the Ins and ouls of the slivation. We both arranged to
postpone announcing this situation to the superior political structure. I we
did otherwise, the Masonic elite’s reaction could be terrible. We didn't want
to take any risks, especially when we needed the very advanced technology

that they were willing to offer us, This 1s a matter of natlonal security; and

depending on whal was going to be discovered there, It may be the greatest

slate secret ever. We Lherefore can't alTord (o act foolishly.”

1 was watching Cezar. The very strange destiny of this man was making me

seriously analyze the complicated gearing of the human relations and

Interests in the world. In the end, we all are like different sorts of relays,

mawe or less sophisticated, correctly or Incorrectly transmittng 1fe’s

“information.” The complexity of the situation, with particular regard to the

crucial moment of discovery, was making me feel unexpected shivers of a
pse emotlon all over my body.

B is (he actlon at now? " | asked.

P was secrotly hoplng that [ would possibly get to see the

% structure after it was revealed, Observing my thoughts, Cezar 136

are In the middle of the preparations and | need (o direct 1t
initlon. First, | ensured the security of the area that, leckily for
el 1o and relatively unpopulated. T also asked for military help.
£ a mini-camp outside the perimetor that was 1dentified and
and my speciallst team. [ already ensured a clreular guarding
v bringing In almost two hundred soldlers. A small access road
Lhe zone was surrounded with barbed wire.

ed over thirty guard booths. Inside. I set a second security ring

partment’s third team. There are twis access barriers on the
ad with control poednts in between. This time, the loglstics are

plex because everything can last for several weeks. General

are 0f Lhe relations with the Admiralty and asked for their

SUppORL.

Military camp tents have been brought in and communication relays are
mounted. I wanted to make everything [ook ke a milltary mission. The
entlre operatlon 1s probably going to be ready sometime in the next few
weeks. Al the end of July. the plasma drilling equipment 15 coming. Aller
that, there 15 nothing else to be done except getting Inside the mountain.
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“Although no one enters the perimeter without the clearance of General
Obadea or mysell, 1 will make it possible for you to see what we are golng 1o
discover there, This, of course. 1s I everything 1s going as planned. There are
some other detatls, but they are not that iImportant. You now know the
essentials,

"It Is planned that the first extorior drilling will start In the last days of July.
Untll then, we won't see each other agaln because the events wlll take a
straight line and their specific nature require my continuous presence there.
But, as [ promised, I will call for you as soon as everything Is safe and well
prepared.”

With these [inal words, Cezar rose from his armchalr amd sakd good-bye, We
separated, hoping we would soon meet agaln under extracrd inary
circumstances. 1 preferred walking home. My thoughis and deductions were
Invading me with a multilude of possibilites and the complexity of the
Intrigue almost gave me a headache. That night 1 fell asleep thinking of the
mysterious clvilization that bullt that structure inside the mountaln, They
were proven to have owned or to own Incredible lechnologles. Who were
they? I'rom what anclent Umes were they transmdtting thelr message? 1,
howewver, wasn't even close 1o suspecting the wonderful and immenss
surprise that had been walling For tens of thousands of years to be revealed.
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Chapter 5 — The Great Discovery =

After that meetng with Cezar, my mind was mostly preocoupled on dealing
with the mystery of the structure that was identifled in Bucegi. [ wanted to
be able to participate in all of the preliminary operations and at the moment
of breaching the tunnel, but [ was aware that would not be possible, T had to
be happy with the chance of having access for a short time to the place of the
great discovery, I the events did not become complicated.

Far a month and a half afer our last meeting | walted 1n a feverlsh state for
Cezar 10 contact me. I was inventing all kinds of scenarios and imagining all
sorts of possibilities. Practically every moment was filled with an intense

deslre to get to that place in the mountains. | completely trusted Cezar and
knew he would do everything possible to [acllitate my access to that area.

| was also very aware of the tenslon thal must have been upon him and
Ceneral Obadea due 1o the very complicated backsiage play that had to be
kegt In a very Nine balance, What was happealng In the mountalng was roally
an excepllonal sliuation. lis Imporance was nol only targeting natlomnal
security but also the situation of the entire humankind, pardcularly if we
consider the huge Interest that the world's elite Masons were directing
towards .

The operations and Cezar's plan were also made more difficult to canry out
by the fact that he had to simultaneowsly deflect the vigllance of Slgnore
Massind with that of other Masons as well. To this was added the dangerous
pressure of all this hecoming known to the state’s top structures, In a case
like that, It was less likely for the situation to be effectively controlled.
Cezar's plan Included Informing the politlcal leaders bul only at a very well
defined moment.

THE SECRET BASE FROM THE MOUNTAINS

The much expected moment finally arrived a little after the middle of

Augzust, On a sunny moming, [ was contacted through the usual channels
although [ noticed that the securlty precautions were much stricter. 1 will not
g0 Inio deladls as they are not oo interesting,

A little after lunch, 1 arrived al one of the secrel mililary bases located at the
bottom of the mountains. From there, T was taken by Department Zero®s
helicopter, accompanted by bwo armed military men dressed in a speclal
uniform. Even from Bucharest, none of those escoriing me sald a word,
Tollowing the known dispositlons of thelr dutles. Changes of U vehicle and
guards were accompanied only by short and relevant orders. The whole
action was proving to be fast and precise. Althowugh I knew well theses
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aspects and the reasons for maximum security, 1 was still a bit surprised by

the striciness of the safety measures thatl had been taken. Seeing them as a

bit exagpgerated, 1 soon realized that [ was nol the ene to evaluate the stake! 2

of the entire operation and that I had to consider myself lucky to be offered

this special opportunity, T was taking part in what [ considered to be
prabably the most Important discovery of modern tmes. The fact that 1 was
called by Cezar and that the securlty measures were so limpressive was
glving me the convictdon that something of a tremendous Importance had
been discovered. I was reflecting upon the fact that while the majority of
people were still Iiving thelr everyday mundane lves, this discovery could
radically change everyvbody s conceptions in a very shorl time,

Smiling cynlcally, 1 was thinking that in the clrcumstances of the present

world, my ideas were probably too idealistic. To make such a big change

happen, it would Involve an honest analysis of humanity's past as well as the
profound meanings of life. Fine diplomacy, full of intelligence and noble
virtues, wodld be needed in order to manage to sneak around the numerous
mental, psychic or even material obstacles to such a change.

Deep in my thoughts, | almost failed 1o notice the hellcopter descending as it

prepared to deposlt us at the new millitary base that was bullt in the

mountains. My thoughls suddenly vanlshed when | saw what was laying a

lewy Lens of meters under me. Although 1 was sort of familiar with tactical

military operations and the technology used on such occasions, whal 1 saw
was bevond any Imagination. Firstly, T observed a great number of American
troops, It was abvious they were Amerlcan due to deslgnations an thedr off-
road military vehlcles and also massive structures hidden under tarpaulins
bearing the L5, Nag.

I could also see the only viable road. quite wide, that came [rom the woods.
There were also two military rings that were securing access to the base.
They looked lke some sort of very wide borders, each one almaost

completing a circle around a blg entrance In the mountaln’s wall. Between

e wo securlty rings, there were military trucks, a few off road cars, and a

few vehicles whose shape and purpose [ could not readily identify. I

estimated that there were approximately two hundred soldiers within those
two rings. The ones from the Inner ring had a special black uniform and the
ones from the outer ring waore a regular uniform. Each ome had an automatic
gun and the distance between them was only a few melers.

I saw that soldler booths were placed between the securlty rings and those of
the spectal team were right behind the second ring, The road was blocked
with double massive barrlers for each ring and double control guards on each
slde. | would say that between the rings was a distance of about fifty meters.
It looked like the activily was frantlc because there were conlinuous comings
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and polngs to and from the two headguarters, especlally Inside the focal
perimetes (o the entrance cut tnio the mountaln. 133
My general observations were Interrupted by the helicopter landing inside

the maln pertmeter and beyond the second security ring. I got out and was

immediately framead by two soldiers, this time Amerlcans. We walked only
about twenty meters from the hellcopter with two from the speclal team In

front and the two Amerlcans behlnd me. | was iold to stop and all five of us
were lell standing there Tor about an hour. They were obviously walting for
orders to take me over.

Only then did T really start to see the proportions of the operation that was

taking place and to become aware of 1ts exceptional importance, Initally, 1
was puzzled by the way they were treallng me; not because [ felt offended

bul due to the almost unbellevable striciness with which all the actons in the
base were happening. | was watching the four soldiers thal were framing me
politely but very firmly. They had not moved, relaxed nor talked and almost
did not even blink for the hour we had walted, Completely unmaoved, they
were leaving the Impression of robots rather than human belngs. MNot having
any other cholce, 1 also stood still between them, moving sHghtly from time

to time 50 as not to et numiks,

I trled 1o find oul the reason we were waltlng, but 1t was |ike talking to four
statues. [ then realized that the orders were extremely severe and strict and
stopped asking questlons, resigning mysell (0 stand or a long dme in the
same place. T used that as an opporiunity to ohserve what was happening
around e,

The emotlons that | had felt since 1 lefl Bucharest were now even maore
amplified. 1 was basically less than 100 meders away from the atm of my
dreams, hopes and suppositdons, from a phenomenal discovery that could
have walted for thousands and thowusands of yvears to be revealed, The
myslerious alr of the base gave everyvone an enlgmatlc and Inner-focused
state of mind.

In front of me and a e to the right was the large entrance of 2 wnnel
through the mountain. I could see the modern illuminating system that had

been mounted at the entrance and continued through the length of the tunnel,
Unfortunately, a blg tent and two ultramodern modular constrections were
abscuring my view. In the same area as me, there were several American
Jeeps and vehicles. At my lell, there were two huge struclures, each covered
with a tarpaulin, the shape of which seemed to indicate big chests with an
unknown content. The entrance to the tunnel was hlocked by a wide medal
barrier that was guarded on each side by two American soldiers. Thelr
unlforms suggested that they were elite Marines.

Something that got my attention in particular was a huge hangar, dug into

the modintain, to the right of the guarded tunnel, Tt was absolutely huge,
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measuring around ten meters in helght and as far as 1 could tel], 1t was about
fifty meters in depth. It was perfectly made with fimshed walls and a 140
laultlessly curved vault. I was wondering what technology they used 1 they
had managed to bulld everything I saw in just one month. Later, I would find

out that the drilling of the hangar took just one day,

Inside the hangar there were many plled up boxes. On the other side, thers
were three special structures that looked ke long moms that were probably
used [or tests and research. [nside the hangar, 1t was guile animated and [
could see many people in white coats going in and out of those laboratories
while carryving different objects or papers. Both in the middle corridar of the
hangar and outslde, close (o the unnel’s entrance, 1 could see a few small
maotorzed vehicles that some peaple there were using to travel aroumd
Inside.

MNeither the wnnel nor the hangar had gliding doors, prebably because of the
construction difficulties and because they were nat yet needed. The hangar
did have, however, a "curtain” system made from a semitransparent material,
bt 1t was lowered for only one quarier of the entire helght of the entrance.
The flluminating systern was Taultless and I nediced two blg generators

functioning somewhere on the mountain’s lower slope, They were betwean
the two securlty rings and the control guards.

Al a certain distance from the big military tent on my lefl were several
modern booths in a row: and bebind those more medium milltary tents which
surely must be night shelters for the soldiers and the research personnel.

Sl 1 hadn't seen anything resembling a canteen or a place for preparing
foodd. I concluded that It was brought there dally by a truck, probably under
extreme securlty. Later, | fourd out that the kitchen was a few kilomeders
below and that a group of soldiers from Department Zero’s special team
were bringing the food for those in the camp with dally truck runs. This
solutlon was chosen to limit the peripheral movements of the personnel amd
solve the securlty Issue. Every group of soldlers was eating separately In
thedr booths. 1n the [ecal perimeter. food was served In the big military tent
for the Romanian and American soldiers as well as for the research teams. |
discovered that the Americans broaght their own food and cooks but they
were sent Into the kitchen at the botiom of the mountain along with the
Romanlan ones.

The two semispherical constrections were the residences of the Bomanian
and American staff. Later on, Cezar told me that In one of them. the smaller

one, ved he and Ceneral Obadea, In the ather one were two geperals from
the Pentagon and a counsellor on national securty lssues from Washington.

Thesae very ergonomic bulldings looked more ke research statlons from
other planels and gave a pleasant eeling of comlon and great salety. The
material they were made from was white and bordered with hexagonal
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shapes. Close to the top was a strip made out of a dark-blue materlal. On th8!
sirip were some sort of huge light bulbs. 1 was told thal when they were Hi at
might tme, they created a very calm and beautiful atmosphere. For a while, 1
waiched the activity at the perimeter. Everyone moved fast and seemed to
know exactly what they had to do. From time to time, a jeep was coming or
golng. Some soldlers were unloading something from the chests under the
tarpaulin. Unfortunately, the distance and the obstacles did not allow me to
gel a clear look al the objects that were moved. I was stlll puzzled by the
relatively great number of Americans because Cezar led me to understand
that there was going to be just a team to maneaver the plasma drilling

e uipment.

Exactly as | was starting to make different assumptions regarding this aspect,
one of the Romantan soldiers in front of me putl one hand to his right ear,
listened carefully and then said a few words. Right alter this, we started
moving towards the dark entrance of the tunnel which, as we came closer

and closer, looked bigger and threatening. We stopped In the same formation
next to one of the two semil-spherical buildings, just a few meters beslde the
lunniel. My heart was beating strongly. Deyond the wide barrier. guarded by
two Inflexible American soldiers, might be the maost terrible mystery on the
planet. What had happened In the one and a half months since my last talk
with Cezar? What had been discovered there?

I then noticed that in [ront of the tunnel and inslde of it. on a two meter wide
streak, was a stripe of fluted rubber on which a few electric American
vehicles wore lned up. 1 could also see that the inslde of the tunned was
discreetly 1t by nean Installations placed on the celling and the lateral walls,
bt the tunnel turned lefl alter only ten meters so | couldn't see more,

Cezar then appeared. He came [rom Inside of the tunnel, driving one of the
electric vehicles. Mext to him was an older gray-halred man with firm and
declded features. Both were serious and sllent. As Cezar got off next to me,
the four soldiers saluted and discretely left. I met General Obadea who
looked at me sharply for a few moments. He shook my hand powerlully and
after a few polite words. he left towards the semi-spherical building. It was
obvious for me that the General knew everyvthing about me from Cezar and
that be had agreed for me (o be brought there. This move was probably pan
of thelr plan for unvelling the Mason's actions and they fell | needed to be
there oo, Even IF 1 Tell just like a small cog in this immense gear of
mysterious eloments, aspects and intrigues, I was very happy to get this
extracrdinary chance and ready to take all responsibility for the task [ had
taken upon myself.

THE CREAT CALLERY

“T'he situation 15 quite critical,” Cezar (old me, very preoccupled. = The
relationship with Sipnore Massinl becomes tenser, but what 15 more serjoud 12
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I5 that everything Is known by the top power In the state. We expected It, but
nd this soon. Our intention was o present all the data sometime in the Rature
but in a more favorable moment. Now, things are tenser both Internally and
externally. You do not know a lot of what happened in the Jast month. Come,
I will acquaint you with the maln story while we go through the tunnel,” he
sald, going towards the entrance.

We dldn’t take one of the electrlc vehlcles. This way, we were saving some
tirme as Cezar could 1l me in on how everything had unfolded lately.
Furthermore, T had the opportundty to see everything closer and in more
detail.

The tunnel was “paved” with thick rubber flooring. On both sldes of 1t and

up to the sione walls of the mountaln was Just rock. At the entrance and
another few melers beyond were water infiltrations but after the tunmel
pently turmed lell, at aboul len meters from the entrance, everything was dry.
[ was amazed by the precision of the drilling and especially by the wall's

finishing that almost looked grinded. The white light wondrously lined ot
the varlous colors of the different geologlcal formations, discreetly lighting
the inside of the wnnel in an unreal play of light and shadow, The sound of
our footsteps was muffled by the rubber floor and there was an enigmatic bt
very excliing atmosphere. It was a blt cold for how [ was dressed, but Cezar
tobd me that this situatlon would not last for (oo long.

“Imitially.” sald Cezar, “the machine drilled following a weird deviation of
the magnetic field. Shortly, we noficed the error so we corrected its
trajectory. Look, right here.” he sald as he stopped In the bend towands the
left of the tunnel.

[ stopped as well, admiring the elegant way in which the gallery was
continuing, After the curve, it was perfectly level for about [ifty meters In a

very similar way to an underground metro tunnel although mavbe a bt more
wide. Al the end of this distance, in the heart of the mountaln, [ sae

something resembling a huge gate that looked llke It was gliding towards the
Left, taking up now less than a quarter of the gallery's width. There were two
armed soldiers and the place all around the tunnel was very well Lit.

Before the big entrance in the other gallery, T could also see another recess,
narrow bul quite long, on the fght skde. This entrance was guarded by the

huge gliding door. | realized that here was the beginning of the adventure, of
the greal discovery thal had been made. [ remembered the scheme that Cezar
drow at our last meeting and I realized that it was exactly as what [ now saw

In front of me, at least as far as what was related with the placement of the
mysterious gallery Inside the mountain.

“1 was amazed by the technology the Amercans brought with them," Cezaf 43
told me. “The plasma drilling machine wasn't big, but it needed speclal
equipment for thase around It and for the drilled material, Tt is something
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similar to antl-stomlc radiatlon equipment. [ also wore one of those speclal
costumes, and | watched the drilling very closely. What you can see [rom
behind the lenses, containing a special protection fluid, is almost
unbelievable. It looks 1ike the rock is melting under the plasma jet, but in
fact it is just made very flexible, close to the flowing point and it 1s
Immediately modelled In a circular shape by the pressure of the magnetic
fleld which also directs the plasma |ed. There 1s no dust, the debrls 1s gulte
negligible and the drilling speed 1s luge [or a job like that. The distance
from the entrance to the soldiers you see there was covered in just five hours.
Afterwards, everything looks 5o clean, like 1t 15 has been polished. The
rubsber floor and the lghting equipment were already prepared at the

entrance before the drilling machine was even laken out of the tunmel.”
While we were going towards the big gallery, Cezar told me that, at the
beginning, they drilled in another area of the mountatn in order 1o avodd the
energetic barrier at the entrance to the main tunnel. A higher place on the
slope was chosen, at about three hundred meters from where the camp was,
and they drilled For a couple of days because the distance (o the funnel was
bigger and the breaching was nod in a horizontal plane which made the

technical procedures more difflcult, They tinally got to the tunnel s walls,
but any efforts of breaching It were useless. It didn’t yleld to the plasma jet
or the magnetic feld. Therelore, tey had to glve up on that option and Lo
cover the entrance of the gallery they had just drilled. They went back Lo the
beginning and started the plan of breaching the mountain’s wall ta the
energetic barrker.

“The drilling was monltored at each and every moment and correlated with
the distance (o e energetic area, A few melers belore the energellc area. we
gol Lo the beginning of the gallery vou see now so0 all that was lefl (o be done
was to link the two tunnels,” Cezar explalned.

Meanwhile, we arrlved at the entrance that was guarded by the two soldlers
belonging to speclal undts. From thelr uniforms and what was written an
them. 1t was obvious one was Romandan and (he other was Amerlcan. The
soldiers saluted Cezar who went towards the booth a few meters to left. The
American soldler entered the booth where he probably had a command
panel because, In a few seconds and from a nlche Inslde the structure, a
medal arm appeared bearing a complicated device at s emd. The anm was
arliculated. Cezar lifted 1t 1o the level of his eve, and after another few
seconds, a short access sound could be heard.

“Wi took all the necessary precautions,” he sald as he came back next to pkdt
"My Irls print was analyzed and stocked as code-Information. The securlty
system doesn't react unless a laser beam reads my or General Obadea's Irls.
MNow, [or example, the very complicated laser sensor system thal was sel up
here at the entrance was deacthvated. It is invisible, but If we woald have
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gone siralght through, 1t would have automatically started the alarm Inskie
the base. We refused to imprint the irises of the American generals and
Insisted that we are the only ones having access (o the Great Gallery. It was
thon when the first problems appeared,” he thoughtfully saild.

I noticed the booth had an extension beyvond the gate in the Great Gallery
which also had an s reading device. Cezar told me that one was for

returning from the Great Gallery. 1 also found out that he could also
deactivate the securlly system simultaneously with the iris reading by
placing his palm in a special slot. This method was used when they had to do
many transfers throwgh the Great Gallery. Cezar walked for a few more
meters and then started to explain to me,

“The energedlc barrler was about here_in this area. It was essentlally an
energetic projection. bul we couldn't understand how it was made. We also
couldn’l see how il was possible for that barrler (o continuously extst for
thousands and thousands of years. We don't know 1ts source or the
technological means which created it, Basically, except for the fact that we
managed (o ged bevond I, we aren’l clearer in any way. Getling beyond 1L,
however, involved a raglc incldent.”

| was behind Cezar, looking at the gallery's celling where the link with the
great tunnel was made. Actually, there were a few meters of gallery In the
mountaln's rock which were larger than the tunnel built by the American
plasma device. In this section, the walls weren't findshed butl were erratlc
with many peaks, Maore than that, this area of the gallery that was about six
mexters konge and was nod clroular bat sguare. The connection between the bwao
gallerles was made only at ground level. It descemnded slightly In a slopling
Tashion from our gallery o the anclent and bigger one.

The difference between the two levels was aboul one meder and was very
noticeable In the ceiling area where the two tunnels joined. The drilling was
almost concentrlc with the anclent gallery, but no ome could explain how 1t Is
possible for this tunnel to suddenly start from the inside of the mountain. It
was obviously an arificial structure that appeared (o be handmade. 11 was
Impaossible to believe that the entrance to the gallery had been covered for a
distance of about sixty meters because the massive stone siructurs was
ldentical to the one surmrounding it. | asked Cezar whal happened when they
gol Lo the energetlc barrler.

“Al that moment, [ was talking with General Obadea and with the generals 145
from the Fentagon about some camp security issues. We were Informed that
the breaching and linking of the two galleries had been done. Before we got
there, the soldiers staned to take the plasma device out of the gallery. Three
people from Department Zero’s first team sneaked Inside to see the new
gallery. That was a big mistake because they ignored protocol. They jumped

over the one meter level gap between the two galleries and started
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Investigating the four meter perimeter they knew was safe and ust before the
Invisible energetic barrier. Unfortunately, no one could explain what
happened next Most probably, the three came (00 close Lo the barrler
because, a few seconds later, a welrd but powerful nolse was heard, 1ike a
short circult, We found them collapsed at the Interlor base of the

Invisible energetic barrier with thedr bodles strangely contoried as being
enclosad by the precise side of a wall. All three were dead. This created
some pantc even though we tried to settle the incident.

“As ['was very soon going to realize, the panic was more intense among the
American staff and this was due to the fact that their initial fears were

starting to come true, Indeed, at that moment we practically had no chance of
accessing the anclent gallery. The lateral drilling falled because of the

unknown material that resisted all of our attempts (o breach it and the
energellc barrler was now proving o be an irresistible obstacle.

"Slgnore Massinl was present too and asked for myy opinion, At that time, the
American commando team hadn't arrived yet. There were just the specialists
dealing with the drilling devlce, a team of researchers, bwo generals from the
Pentagon, the Prestdential Counsellor and Signore Massinl's representatives

who, by the way, are stlll here,
“1 am nod even sure that the President of the USA was notfled of this

operation. It was obwlously an internal back slage affair [rom which they
iried Lo ged all of the benellts possible. The venerable one knew more aboul
the orlgins of this discovery, and as far as [ realized, also knew about at least
one element that was In the Blg hall, but we will get 1o this soon encugh, The
Mason's Impatlence was resiralned but flrm.

“Al that moment, 1 could have asked for thein 10 leave the perimeter but that
wouldn 't have solved a thing except to complicate the events even more than

they already were, Signore Massind's influence could have eventually led to
the replacement of General Obadea and myself on the grounds of conducting

an operatlon that hadn't stlll been brought up In front of the state’s pollilcal
power. We obviously had all the justifications and extenuating

circumstances needed. but it was better for the information to come from us
and not from foreigners,

“Desplte all this, a iotally unpredictable element completely modified the
sliuation and directed It lowards a very tense and dangerous development 148
that 1s stlll threatening, 1 hope, however, Lhal these lenslons don't go beyond
4 certaln point because it's then poing to be very difficult to say what might

come next.”
Cezar wenl closer to the hugn- stone gate 1k gusrded thir entrance in thae

Great Callery. He got closer to the left wall of the tunnel where the gaie
glided and spoke 1o me.
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"Now you are exactly In the area where the enecgetic barrler 1s when It 1s
activated. Do you see anything on the wall next to me?”
I looked carefully and noticed a very big square section In the uneven rock,
perfectly finished, that scomed encrusted Ln the mountaln’s stone. The sides
of the square were about twenty centimeters long sides. On it, there was a
preclsely drawn equilateral trlangle facing upwards.
“This Is the "key” loft to us fromm those who bullt the structure. Without It, we
would have been completely helpless. After the death of the three soldiers, |
came to exactly where you are now. Carefully looking around the place. I
noticed this very well finished stone square with the trlangular symbael on It
Back then, however, the gallery was blocked by the huge stone gate there,
The problem was that 1 was standing very close to the energetlc barrler,
aboul two meters In ront of the gate, the same as where you are now. As
you can see, the polished square encrusted in the mountain's rock 1s placed
between the huge stone gate and the energetic barrier, Naturally, I supposed
that its functlon was o open the gate, But how should 1 reach it If my way
was ocked by the Invisible energetic barrler?”
I was pugzled. The two soldiers had leng since retreated into the booths
leaving me and Cezar alone at the entrance [n the anclent mysterious
corrldor. I was deeply marked by the emotion of lnding secrets thousands
and thousands ol years old gradually unfolding in front of me. Due o the
excitement, my body seemed lghter and Cezar's words were mulTled In my
ears, In spite of all this, T had an extraordinary lucidity and intuitively
undessiood everything very easlly.
"It was a vibratlon frequency problem,” 1 sald, amazed by the calm with
which I had spoken those words. Cezar looked al me surprised.
“Exactly!™ he confirmed. “Looking for a solution, T closed my eves and
focused upon the energetic barrier, Shortly, [ felt that It actually was “alive’
but In a very speclal way that | couldn’t explain to those present. Only the
venerable one could have probably understood, but he was the one | wanted
Lo keep away [rom the mysteries | was conlronted with.”
“I felt that between me and the barrier's energy was a certain "compatibility.”
something like a rc*u:lpn:u:ﬂ] sympathy and that T had successfully passed thd 47
‘persomal vibratlon test.” 1 couldn't stop asking myself what kind of
excepllonal technologlcal and spiritual development had those who had
established this genuine ‘[frontler’ of energetic checking which present
scloncoe can't even concelve of, novor mind about actually achieving, I then
took a fow stones from the groand and threw them towards the invisible
energetic bamrler. As soon as the stones touched the energetic barrer, they
were transformed Into a fine powder that fell on the ground forming a
siralght Hne. 1 asked for other objects made from metal. plastic wood or
leather, The conclusion was clear, Everything made from amorphous
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subslances was I.EI."ilEnL':lI'I-L"lEIIJSI.}' Turned Inlao F-I:IWI:I.E-I’ amnd -E"'r'-EI.'_'r'll.'I:II'.IE that was
organic material was rejected; undess it had a certain individual high

vibratlonal [requency. 1 senl the powders 1 the lab to be analyzed and then
lighily touched the invisible surface of the energetic barrier with my hand. 1

only felt some fine shivers on my skin, very pleasant, so I went forward with
all my body, going through to the other side of the energetlc barrler. It was
approximalely one centlmeter thick.

“1 was now looking at the amazed laces of the American officials and a few
members of my team who were still on the other side of the barrier. I went to
the wall and pressed the triangle from the perfectly finished sione square, the
one yoi are looking at now . Actually, It was enough Just to touch it because
it doesn’'t move. It's fixed. Cnly Its surface |s carved in the stone. The gaie,
Irom which you now see just a part, immediately started (o ghide smoothly
and almost without any noise unil 1t siopped in the position it 1s still in. That
was the moment when all of us saw, for the first time, the Great Callery, It
was a moment of intense emotion. We were shocked that It was LIt just as
vou see It now but without actually contalnlng any 1lght source, at least any
convenlional Hght source that we know of.”

Cezar took a short break. T was flabbergasied. looking inside the Great
Gallery and only then realizing there was no light source. Too absorbed In

what Cezar was lelling me and in my own observations uwpon the linking
between the two gallerles, [imagined that the Hght from the Great Gallery
was also coming from the 1llumination system that had been installed along

It, llke In the newly drilled tunnel. 1 became aware, however, that that Hght
seemed to have no source although | was tempted to say that It came from

the extraordinary matertal that covered the gallery's walls. This light was
less intense than the one in our unnel but very pleasant and gave a relaxing

and tension-relieving state, hoth mentally and physically,
“There was a very complex and profound feeling created by the skze of the

contidor, the color and the pattern of the materlal that it Is made from,” Cezar
continued talking. “You can hardly see iis end from here, but I can tell you!#2
that the munnel suddenly turns right after about three hundred meters. You

will see for yourself shortly, but let me get back to the energetic barrler, |
touched the polished trlangle agaln and the gate glided back and closed the

access 1o the Great Gallery. Only after 1 reopened the gate, passing thorough
e barrler's area again, I realized that it had been cancelled. So, the undque
command remaoved the energetic barrler and at the same time opened the
stone gate that was blocking the access to the Great Callery,

“Later, 1 did more experiments, especially after we preclsely marked the area
where the energetle barrer acted. Ceneral Obadea came and touched with
only one fnger the invisible surface of the barrier; and even If nothing

sprious happened to him, he s11ll had a feeling of vertigo and nausea. The
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Presidentlal Counsellor was violently thrown to the ground even though the
contact between s skin and the bareler was very light. He rocovered from
his experience later under a doctor’'s supervision. Alter that. no one else
wished to try going through the energetic wall. The three soldiers who died

probably had a simultaneous contact on a bigger surface of theidr body that
was lethal for them. The problem is that people cannot stay In the Invisible
barrier for too long. This Is the Invisible barder between the closed gate and
the energetic wall. Those who can’( go through i can't stay there [or oo
long.

“We tried with a few soldiers and, after we closed the gate and activated the
energetlc barrler, they told me that they felt like they were suffocating and 1l

became mare and more acute. We therefore had to leave the energetic barrler
as well as the gate open, but as you have already seen, we placed two guards
and we Installed an alarm 1o prevent any unauthorized access o the Greal
Gallery. The irls identiflcation svstem resets itself after five seconds which is
enough o cross the entrance line into the gallery and bevond the gate's
gliding system. Come next to me. | want to show you how the gate works.”™
Cezar Hghtly touched the stone square. The huge gate, about thirty
centimeters thick and the same height as the Great Callery, over six meters,
was gllding very smoothly due to a gearing system | could ned ldentify.
When the gate completely coveraed the entrance, 1 could see that 11 was
perfectly Hndshed, polished, and without any inscriplions on 11s sucface, It
was only an immense stone wall, almast shiny and probably weighing more
than two tons, What made It move so easy and dellcately though?

While | was looking for the answers (o my questions and carefully looking at
the base of the gate, | started having breathing difficultes and my head was
spinning with nausea. Cezar, walching me closely, opened the gate and the
symptams disappeared as suddenly as they had

appeared. He read the question In my eyes. 140
“I dom’t know what determines this speciflc effect. It Is probably some sort
of interaction between the gate’s surlace when 1018 closed and the enerpetic
barrier that affects any organisms found in this intermediary space. We also
did not manage to decipher the gate’s gliding mystery. If vou look carefully,
you can see that when It glides right, It pushes this stone slate thal covers the
space of the gate’s thickness. When It glides towards left, the slone slate also
glides, strongly atlached to the gate's side. [ don't belleve this is a primitive
technology because everything is too smooth and quiet. It must be a totally
different technoloay,

“The Amerlcan generals proposed that we should smash the stone threshold
bo see what 15 underneath, but we would not accept that. [t seerned a childish
solutlon.”
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I carefully looked at the gate’s gliding path. The |ointing was extremely
precise amd very well Anished. Nothing could ged through it and you coubdn’
see anylhing underneath. The precisely modelled gate was simply “coming
out” from the gallery’s left wall and glided until it reached the right wall
where It fit perfectly,

“While dolng these experlments and observatlons, afler we had already
deactivaled the energetic barrler, one of the soldiers on duty came to let us
know that the American techmdclans were requesting our presence al the
base,” sald Cezar. "They wanted to tell us something special.

“Ceneral Obadea and one of the two American generals went outside where
the data analysls center was. They returned and told me that, after the
deactlvation of the irst energetic barrler from the Great Gallery’s entrance,
the huge sermi-spherical shield from the other end suddenly activated,
strangely going to a supertor level of vibratlon and emitting a great light
radiation,”

Saving this, Cezar went towards the soldiers’ booths.

"Let’s gonow,” he sald. "It Is time to enter the Great Gallery. You will be
able o convince yoursell of everyihing 1 have told you,”

Cezar did the Iris recognltlon procedure again. This way, we could pass
bevond the gate, stepplng for the fArst time on that strange and very special
material of the ancient tunnel. Behind us, the two soldiers ook thedr guard
places in sllence. There were two electric vehicles at the entrance of the
Creat Gallery, but we preferred to walk so that Cezar would have the
necessary time to tell me what else had happened.

While he was talking, 1 keenly studled the gallery. From a superficlal Iook,
you could assume thatl the walls and floor we were walking on were made
[rom the carefully polished stone of the mountains. Moving close o the left
wall and towuching it, T ohserved that it was covered with a material thar 150
looked synthetlc. At the same time, however, 1L left the strange feeling that it
had something organic in It It had the color of petrol, but its reflectlons were
often green or even dark blue. There was also a watery [eeling | experlenced
which came from the irregular stripes that were everywhere and in every
direction. Tt was also amazing that when we moved, the stripes also changed
positlon, width and color; bt that happened very smoothly, leaving the
Impression It was Just 4 relative effect of our movements related to the wall.
The color nuances had a profound relaxing elTect upon the mental state and
modified the way you could appreciate distances. When I said that to Cezar,
he spoke.

“We also notlced the same aspect. We had to measure the (otal distance of

the gallery and on different segments and even to pul some marks on the
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Indeed, on the right side of the gallery vou could see milestones that told the
distance in meters and yards from the entrance in the tunnel. | also noticed
theat the materlal was rough to the touch and it could not be scratched or benl
Cegar told me that the material opposed any attempt of breaking, breaching,

scratching or cutting, no matter how sharp was the object used, More than
that, and strangely, the flames of fire or torch were absorbed Into the

materlal. Fire could not burn on It for practical sake.

“T'he American researchers can'l say anyihing about this material because
they have no sample of it The only thing they could tell us was that the
material Is a strange combination between an organic and Inorganic

substance, but the way It 15 organized In Its Inner structure 1s stll a desp
mystery for them.”

AL the milestone thal indicated two hundred and elghty meters, the gallery
suddenly urned right in a sharp angle. The reason for this rajectory cowld
not be deciphered. Much further ahead, 1 could see a blue light shining lke a
star. Seeing my emotlon, Cezar smiled and spoke to me,

"There Is the end of our journey. Bul In a centaln way, It 1s also a beglinning
Tor something even greater acoording (o the data 1 have untll now, The
technolopical means through which we were shown this data s colossal; but
unfortunately, you can’t have access (o it. Y ou will understand better when
we will get 1o the Projectlon Hall, as we decided 1o name 11."

“T'his means that the Americans gol there, wo.” [ sald.

"As so0n as | managed to solve the problem with the first energetic barrler,
Slgnore Massind wanted o enter the corridor and get to the hig hall. |
Inwvoked the Increased risk Issues that also determined the death of the three
soldiers as well as the necessity of a severe system of securlty and alarms
that had to be mounted at the entrance of (he main corridor. He didn't Hle 157
but he didn 't have much of a cholce,

"I was trylng (o galn as much tme as possible bul especially so that I oould
manage to get to the big hall without being accompanied by any Mason. |
didn’t know what they wanted from there but 1 hoped (o reallze it as soon as
I entered the hall and examined its contents. The satellite data showed the
existence of a huge space at the end of the gallery, but this was also
protected by an energetlc barrler.

"During an organizing break, taking advantage of the absence of the
Americans and of Signore Massind from the tunnel, 1 1ok an electric vehicle
and I went alone through this corridor, a corridor deserted for more than fifty

thousand years, to the light yvou see further down in front of you, What you
see shinlng 1s just the reflection of a part of the huge energetic profective

shield of the Immense hall. As you will notlce, at the end, the gallery takes
another sharp turn.
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"I was secrelly hoping that 1 could pass this barrler as [ dld with the first one
but when 1 god there, 1 was overwhelmed. The gallery we were crossing now
suddenly openad into 2 huge hall right in the heart of the mountain which
Included an Immense seml-spherical energetic shield. This shield enclosed
the Projection Hall and evervthing it contained, The structure’s grandeur is
Incomparable, but exactly when [ was getting ready to find the most sultable
way to gl Inskde, 1 was urgently called to the base. The news [ was about Lo
get would complicate everytidng, This was a crucial moment that 1 had not
foraseen.”

GREAT DIFLOMATIC TENSIONS

"I gt back to the base as fast as | could and enteresd the Americans’ room
where | was also recelved by General Obadea,” Cezar continued to tell me.
“An unpredicted element occurred thal rulned all plans, ours as well as
Slgnore Massind's. The venerable one was seated on a chair at the back of
the room, deep in his thoughts, He was probably making new plans and
reconsidering his position.”

“The Eomanian press leaked something?” 1 guessed.

“It was something even worse than that, Do vou remember that the venerable

one told me about the discovery they had made next to Bapghdad? That there
4s well was an energellc barrler that couldn’t be breached but was kentlcal
with the semi-spherical shield that surrounded the big hall from here?”

I nodded. The American’s discovery was not accidental but followed certaln
Indications from the same military esplonage satellite that also revealed the
data for the approximate map of the structure Inside the Bucegl Mountalns
Coezar continued.

“Well, the American counsellor on natlenal securily issues got an ulira seci\?
[ax in which he was informed that the energetlc shield from Baghdad
suddenly activated and started pulsing at a great frequency. The amazing
Informatlon was that a hologram appearsd In front of it gradually showing
Europe; then the sputheast of Europe; then Homanla’s territory; then the
Bucegl Mountains: and (inally. the location of the inner structure within the
Creat Callery’s corridor and the semi-spherical energetic shield that was

strongly pulsing, It was obvious that the two energetic semi-spherical shields
were directly but mysterlously connected amnd that the activation of one of
them led to the activation of the other one. Who knows, maybe there 1s a
network of these kinds of underground structures all over the world.

“The bad news was that the 1.5, Presidency was Informed of these events
and made diplomatic contact with Romania through the secret services. In
Just a few minutes, the whole operation had been uncovered. The Imminent
arrlval of a state commisslon from Bucharest had been announced to come
and evaluate the sltuation.”
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[ was so absorbed in listening to what Cezar was telling me that I had not
even realized that 1 had stopped walking. We had aboul another hundrod
meeders before the last lurn and the light from the energetic shield. reflecting
on the Creat Callery’s wall, was now much stronger.

"D they want to take aver at a political level?” T impatienthy asked,

"I think this was the Initlal order but things got even more complicated when
they actually saw what this all was about. My fears came true because our
politicians, the ones thal had the right 1o be made aware of these aspects,
panicked. It was obvious they couldn’t face the events and that the decisions
were golng to be made under an advanced state of siress.

“General Obadea was called to Bucharest, It was a critical moment which
put at stake even the existence of Department Zero, or at least of lis
Independent structure. The General had 1o justly the eluding of the political
power. Belore leaving for the caplial, accompanied by those Irom the
commission, General Obadea talked with me and we both decided to reveal
all the aspects, intrigues and plans of the last vear, including mv relation
with Signore Massinl. The most difficult problemn was o find exactly the
right people 1o make that cruclal important report (o because, olherwise, all
our intentions and plans would have been revealed and the repercussions
could be fatal as far as the well belng of mysell and the General was
concerned. The same could be sald for natlonal security. Meanwhile, 1 was
sluck at the base, all work having come (o a halt.

“The American team had been iselated in a tent and the tunnel’s guarding
was tiken over by the army's speclal Intervention troops, The diplomatic
tension was rising because Washington pressured to have conlact with the 153
Pentagon's generals and with the Presidential Counsellor,

“Back then, no one knew what was in the big hall that was protected by the

energetic shield. Any initiative or research operation had been stopped. No
one was allowed Inio the base except for the guard patrols. The new sltuation

was coordinated by two top generals from the Romanlan army who
permanently maintained contact with the highest political structure of
Romania. In this entire extremely tense situation. the only one who managed

to 'sneak’ outside the base, following a very speclal order coming from
Bucharest, was Slgnore Massinl. | haven't seen him since then, bul belleve

me, 1 fully felt his Influence in the way things unfolded afterwards. And [ am
referring here Lo Uwe mute but very Nerce ight between the Romanian and
American diplomats as well as to the nature of the political decisions that
were taken in connection with the operation from here, Everything happened
very fast; Just elght days passed since those events.”

Listening to Cezar, | was puzzled by the way things turned but especlally
because | was still there, as I nothing [ was hearing aboul had really
happened,
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“IF 1T am here and you, as far as [ umderstand, managed o get Inskde the
Projection Hall, this means that General Obadea was successful in
Bucharest.”

Cezar mysterlously smiled.

“Mostly, the answer 1s affirmative, The success was mainly bringing
evervthing to the right people’s ears, people with a great moral Integrity who
are also ankmated by a profound patriotism.

“The NDSC (Natonal Defense Supreme Council) asked [or an emergency
meeting. Most were shaken by what they found out. An intense wave of
approval towards the General and his activities was then spontaneously

created, They Immediately declded to continue the research under the
exclusive command of the General and me. However, the diplomatic crisls
had nod been resolved yet. The Amerdcan military were allowed to leave the
couniry the following day: but the leam of researchers and speclalists, as
well as all loglstics and devices, were kept here. We then thought that things
were seftled. and 1 was almost glad they had happened the way they did.
That way [ did not need to pretend or give In, more or less, to the venerable
member of the Masonic elite. Unfortunately, thedr force of influence and the
pressure they exercised through diplomatic channels was huge.”

We had reached the end of the hall where It tumed left suddenly, this Hme
T'or four meters only. The sight in front of our eves was truly grandiose. The
gloante arch the energy shield formed was a splendid radiant blue.
continuously crossed by Intense bright white flashes.

Although Cezar had mentioned that the Projection Room was Isolated frond =
the exterior by a gate, like the Blg Gallery, one still could nol see anything
Inside through it The hall ended suddenly in a huge room. dug Into the
mountain like a hemisphere. There was no more than seven or elght meters
from the end of the hall to the energy shield, In that space, four electrical
vehicles were Hned up.

The arch created by the ensrgy shleld was Included In the hemispherical
cavity, but I noticed the area behind was common to te rock wall. |
estimated the level distance between the shield’s arch and the room’s cedling
was about ten meters, The magical light produced by the energy shield was
belng reflected In wonderful sparks and shades on the rocky walls of the
mountaln. The beauty and the grandeur of that plcture seemed extraneous
and my teart startled with emoton and joy.

“How did you manage to get inside?” [ asked Cezar, affected by the Intensity
of the feeling that the Image gave me,

It Is much simpler than you would expect. The ones who planned the whole
assembly probably consldered the first energy shileld fo be a real “touch
slone’ Tor the possible entrants, estimating it was enough Lor the whole
structure’s securlty, T have to admdt they were right. Nothing could pass the
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First energy shdeld unless It was a superior and profoundly beneficlal
comsciousnoss. Even in case of an atomic combustion, the assembly was very
well prodected by the mountain. hMaybe that was the reason the Big Gallery
started suddenly, deep inside the mountain. T cannot say though how they
technically created It

“When [ recelved the new orders from Bucharest, 1 was very happy. [ sensed
the fight was Just starting, but at least 1 had important politlcal support and
[rom the leading politcians, wo. The same day 1 enlered the Projection
Foom you see in front of your eyes. [ was alone as I found out the terrible
mystery that had remained hidden for fifty thousand years. You can hardly
Imagine the feelings 1 had In those moments, There are some aspects |
cannot tell you though.”

“¥ou mentioned this number of years before,” | interrupled Cegzar. “How can
wou lell that this is the right period of dme since all of this bas been here?”
"It was the result of further sclentific examination of some data “they’
offered that you will also see after we enter the room. All of the events 1
described to you have occurred sice last week. Many of them happened
wery quickly and the changes of situations were dramatic sometimes. | shall
tell vou everything here before we enter the room as vou will be thrilled at
what you see.”

We stopped al the line of demarcation between the Big Gallery and the
gigantic hall inside the mountaln that held the hemispherical energy shield.
Fascinated, T was lstening to Cezar while T was watching the exotic spark] 452
on the blwe surface of the hemisphere,

“Alter the declslon (o continue the research under Department Zero's
management, 1 entered the Projection Reom several Umes and catalogued
everyihing, working together with our team of specialists,

“The next day, however, the first contradictory signals appeared from the
political powers. The orders that followed one after the other, revoking each
other, were elther sirong or evastve and showed the existence of a blg
lenwsion. | suspected thatl there was Lthe drama of a real battle. | ad already
sent over a secure phone line the results of our discovery in the Projection

Room, Apparently, that was the spark that lit the 'bomb.”
“General Obadea told me two days ago, after e came back from Bucharest,

that the members of The Suprems Council Ffor Protecting the Country were
ln a contlnuwous meedng and keeping in toech with us. Alter talking out the
1ssu@ beforehand. they decided to make this tremendous discovery from
Romania’s mountains known all over the world. Ceneral Obadea was part of
The Supreme Coundcl] for Protecting the Country's structure and s word
counted a lot In favor of the declaration that Romania was to make to the
whole world. He told me there were some mermbers of The Supreme Council
for Protecting the Country that were strongly agalnst it, but they were in the
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minority. The emotions got so high thatl, at one polnt, those people stood up
and left the room. The Presidont’s advisors were continually coming and
going. ransferring informatlon from the External Diplomatic Relations
Office to The Suprems Councll for Protecting the Country meeting,

“When the American diplomats were informed that Romania would make an
International announcerment of cruclal Importance for the whole world,
averything tumed to chaos. The General told me that he had never seen such
a rush and panic among diplomats. Nobody knew the cause bul everybody
suspected something very serlous and important was happening. At one
point, the Romanian president was called to have a direct phone
conversation with the White House, That was a4 very speclal and top secret
discusslon. He did not come back for a long time after that, bat he Informesd
everyone that a iop American diplomatic delegation was already on its way
10 BucharesL.

“The Information spread very fast, All the transactions and deals between the
Romanlan state and international financial organizations were blocked Ina
couple of hours. The declaratlon of a slate of emergency In the mountaln
area was expected any moment. The Ministry of Delense gave an order of
general alert for the ottlcers, There were moments of great panlc and even
terror among those Involved In this operation as no one knew the real cause
creating the current lension.

“The discussions between the American officlals and the Romantan officia %5
took place without an interpreter. They were 50 violent that they were many
maments of crists when the diplomats velled at each other as lowdly as they
could, utterlng multlple threats with measures of retallatlon. The good part
was that the other states of the waorld had not found out about that problem
vel. The Americans knew very well there were other powerlul countries that

wnild take Romania’s side in sustaining 1ts declaration,”

“What did they want to declare?” 1 asked curlously.

“Mainly, It would have contalned the most Imporant data of the discovery
made in the Bucegi Mountains, glving evidence to the whole world such as
plctures and other essentials elements in order to clarify differont aspects
connected to this structure from inside the mountain, The greatest scientists
would have been invited to study and search and all the resources would
have been moblllzed to solve the numerous enlgmas we were confronted
with. Bul the most important aspect would have been the discoveries
regarding the extrome ancient past of humankind and the real history that
was almost entirely fabricated, Furthermore, there were other very delicate
elements that [ can only reveal (o you partially.”

“But, where did they know all that from™" | asked.

“You will see immediately. Have a little bit more patience. The Americans
reacted violently as the declaration would have shattered their planetary
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Influence in a second. Even more, it could have thrown into chaos the
aconomy of thetr country, maybe even the economy of the whole world.
Actually, that was the main reason they involked strong-arm tactics. They
wanted to avoid the panic and disturbance of all the people on Earth.
However, they did not suspect that the possible social anguish and disturbed
condition might have appeared as a direct result of the Hes and
manipulations the ruling classes, especlally the Masonle organlzations, have
been maintaining all this tme.

“Through a very special diplomatic channel, a personal Papal approach was
recelved, advising tonvards preat temperance before making this fundamental
step for humankind. The Yatlcan had already besn Informed by the
Amerlcans as 1t was consldered by the latter a possible ally In blocking the
revelatlons, Strangely, although revealing these aspects (0 the whole world
would have reduced considerably the Vatlcan's power and its influence upon
Christian believers, the Pope did not take a firm position against it, bat he
urged instead for an efficient balancing of pros and cons before presenting
the declaration. He even communicated he would put at the Roamanian
State’s disposal certaln anclent documents from the Secrel Archives of the
Fapal adminisiration that are very important for Komania and support the
proods of the discovery In the mountalns. 154

“Finally, after twio hours of discussion and corsultation, a final collaboration
agreement was reached. with precise terms that balanced the Interesis ol both
couniries. [ cannot tell you these terms but [ know the Romanian state’s

positlon was that of postponing the revelations or of presenting them o the
whale waorld gradually In the future. The next day, after things had calmesd

down a liitle Mt and according to the collaboration agreement between the
two countries, an American commando team arrived promply with all the
necessary logistics that you already saw Inside the base. The two generals
and the natlonal securty problems advisor came back with them, probably
having very clear tasks. According to the understood prodocol. the strictest
securdly, prodection and surveillance measures were (aken that were
developed in the following days. That is why vou will not have access in
some areas in the Projection Room, but T will tell you shorthy what has been
found there.”

THE PROJECTION ROOM

Cezar old me to step forward. The Big Gallery ended suddenly in a glgantic
room inside of the mountain. It was about 30 meters high and approximately
100 meters long. The Projectlon Room. which was practically enclosed by
the energy shield, had smaller dimensions than those of the mountaln room.
[is helght was about 200 meters, maybe even more. I8 appeared large to me.
There were aboul seven or elght meters strajght from one end of the hall 1o

the energy shield. This distance was edged by two borders of the same
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materlal that wrapped the hall. The borders went ahead and up to the shield
which was as wide as the hall. Four electrical vehicles were placed on each
shde of them.

Exclted, 1 stepped out of the hall onto the short track area edged by the
borders. This seemed to be the moment of truth, T was to get Inside the heart
of a mystery kept for tens of thousands of years and thus be one of the few to
have had access to the revelatlon of Its enlgma.

“The energy shdeld's role Is to divide the room, ke a wall, from the rest of
the cavity in the mountain and also to protect from exterior bad influences,”
sald Cezar, making me return from my thoughts. “Tt has only one way of

uncondltloned access, ke a door, right In front of you.”
Indeed. As soon as [ god closer to the energy wall, the part of the shleld that

was limited by the two borders became transparent and then disappearad
compledely, thus precisely marking the contour of an entrance of almost [ve
meters high. T stepped Inside the Mg room, followed closely by Cezar,
Behind us, the shield became compact. Cezar explained to me that this was
the only way of access Into the room.  In any other part of the shield they
trded, 1t would reject any penedration altlempt, el, any organic or inorganic
matter that would touch It would nefther pet damaped nor be able to go T30
through It. The shield was llke a perfect holographlc projection but its
consistency was pure energy, leaving the same impression of life like the
malerial that wrapped the hallway. Inside, the surlace of the shield was no
langer blue but polden-white, reflecting a clear and bright light that would
nod Hre the eves at all. [ notlced that, unlike the big room In the mowniain
thal contalned it the Projection Room was almost clrcular. 1 contemplated
the huge space which appeared 1o me 1o be as glgantc as the cosmos due 1o
a sirange optical efTect, The ground was covered by the same material such

as the one In the Big Gallery, but here the special light made wonderful
turquolse shadows reflect Into 1L T had the feeling 1 was In a different world.

Almost nihing | saw corresponded to the usual values and dimensions of
the civilization | lived In and was used to.

The area behind us was diametrically opposed to the place we were and had
caught my eye from the beginning. Half of its circumference was shared
with the rocky mounialn wall. The energy shleld would not touch the groaund
Just [ke al the enfrance but curved ke an arch untl] ten meters high from the
ground and ended hall way. Thus, the Projection Eoom had the back half of
the circumference covered by the rocky mountain wall,

SICHT FROM TOP OF THE MOUNTAIN ROOM
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SIGHT FROM TOP OF THE MOUNTAIN ROOM

In that heavy rock wall of ten or twelve meters high, [ saw a display of three
huge tunnel entrances: one right In front amd the other two symmetrically on
each slde. They were vaguely it by a green light. From that distance, | could
not clearly notice the detatls although [ saw other devices were around each
of the three unnels. 5tll, I noticed each of the tunnels was guarded by twio
soldiers 1ike at the entrance in the Blg Gallery, Puzzled. I turned towards
Cazar.

"I yvou Install securlty systems here, too? Why? Where do these tunnels
go?”

“T'his is the area to which you do not have access. It is strictly forbddden
through the secret protocol signed between the Romandan state and the

United States. [ can ghve you some general information about this, but
certaln things should remaln secret, at least for some Hme from now. Let’s

start [rom here,” Cezar said, polnting somewhere at my right.
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| turned and saw a line of huge T-shaped tables made of stone and lined up
against the wall, following {1 curvie. None of these tables were shorter than
two meters high.

TRANSVERSAL SECTION OF THE MOUNTAIN ROOM

the hall from the inside of
the mountain that includes
the Projection Hall

mountain’s rock

,' the entrance | y
i the Projection| Hal

1 i, ] _'1'_ i

\--—-—thﬂ exit out of the Great Gallery

Different signs of an unknown writing that looked like ancient arrow-headed
characters were cut three dimensionally into the thickness of the table top.
There was only one such line of signs on each table’s widih. The writing w1a?
complicated, bul It also contalned general symbals Hke triangles and clrcles.
Although the signs were nod painted, they would sill be noticeable due 1o a
sipht luminous radiation, differently colored for each table.

There were five tables on each side of the room. On some of them [ could

spe different objects of unknown use, They looked ke technlcal tools for
scientfic use. Several white translucent wires descended from many of

them, gathering in rectangular boxes situated oulside the table and on the
ground. The boxes were made of a shiny silver metal that could not be
scratched. 1 tried to move one of them but it was too well anchored in the
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ground. The dellcate cables were extremely [lexible and light, and Inskde you
could see small beight impulses thal would “slide™ along thelr whole length.
‘Two ol the tables were empty. coverad by a thin layer of orange dust. Cezar
told me they drew samples from it that had been sent for preliminary
analysis ta the lab inside the base, but they had not recedved any results, But
the real surprise was the distinct element thal made the research team glve
the name “Projection Room” o that huge mountain room. When | passed by
d lable. a holographic projection, presenting aspects [rom a certain sclentific
domain. was simultanepusly activated on its surface. The three
dimensionally colored Images were perfect and very blg, almost two and 3
half meters high.
Because the tables were tall, I could not see where the source of the
hologram projections was. 1 found out from Cezar that the rectangular
surface of the smooth stone (ables had a tght opening in the middle thal was
eral centimeters long and parallel to the longest side of the table, The
'%wgmphﬁ projections appeared from there,
“The technology used was great,” sald Cezar. “The projectlons appear by
themselves, but al the same Ume, they am Interactive and depend on the one
who watches them and touches the surface of the table,”
I went to a table that had some three-legged steps brought by the base teams,
and [ went up a couple of steps until my body was above the table. It was
almost Nve meters long and one and a hall meters wide. It was covered by a
fillm made of a glass-like material which was not transparent but dark.
could see my head and my body reflecting as in a mirror on the surface of
that shiny, dark and blue smoky film.
The fllm was split Into several blg squares marked by stralght horfzontal and
wertlcal lines that Tormed a kind of a frame. The cays that formed Lhe
halogram went out the central slot in a perfectly coherent beam. Apparently.
Its domain was Mology as Images of plants and animals scrolled in front of
my eyves, some of them belng todally unknown to me, [ slightly touched one
of the squares which was the biggest, and the hologram began presenting 150
anatomical structure of the human body. Actually. [ soon realtzed it was my
body because of a certain mark [ had on my arm. Although 1 was not
moving, I saw the holographic images of certain areas of my body, spinning
continuoishy and belng presented from different angles. If 1 1ifted the finger
off that square, the Images of plants and animals would reappear. 1 [ mowvesd
the finger instde the square, the image would read the inside of my body,
thus ofTering the projection of my intemal organs according o my Inger's
positlon on the surface of the square. T notlced that moving the finger ina
cortaln way magnified the examined area.
My amazement was boundless as [ zoomed Into extremely tiny dimenslons,

passing over Incividual cells, thedr nucleus and reaching the molecular area, |
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thought 1 was dreaming but I really saw a molecule that was part of my own
liver and was shoown In a huge dimension. In a few moments, [ had gone way
beyvond even the most dared dreams of the modern sclentists. The image
presented a kind of cloud of energy that changed lts color continuously.
prohably because of energetic changes that took place in real dme: bt In Its
different palnts [ notleed a kind of condensation, linked by a kind of bridge
that vibrated continuously. 1 thought that maybe those were the molecular
chains. When I zoomed into the nuclear area, the image caught one of the
atoms but it became unstable and blocked. I then saw what I thought te be an
atom as a vague energy mist with a very small bright center/heart.

Amazed, | touched other squares. Each tme | touched one, the square [t In
orange and signs of the unknown writing appeared tnside of it Fascinated, |
went over several squares, walching the incredible projections of life on
other celestial bodies. I notced that 1f 1 simultaneously touched two surfaces
of two different squares, the holographic image would render a very complex
scientific analysis, presenting the DNA molecules of those beings and the
compatible possibllities between them. The Images were accompanled by
sideways vertical lnes of What strange writing which were probably
observations, commenis or indications regarding the analysls made. | hese
were dynamlc and presented In a serles as the possible phases of mixing the
two Hle forms. In the end. the most probable mutant form appeared as a
combination of genetic data.

I went down the statrs shaking. My mind refused to think coherent]y.
Strange thoughts appeared In my mind, llke 1 was belng set up or everything
was a dream. Heallzing what was happening to me, Cezar gradually
clammed down on my paranoid tendencles that had been riggered by the
very strong shock I had felt as a result of the advanced technology I had
accessed In such a very short period of time. After a couple of minutes, I
recovered. “You can spend years bere without getting bored!” T exclalmed 157
“1 almuwst cannid belleve they reached such an

advanced lechnological level. Who were they? Y'ou must know.”

When Cezar answered, he was very sarlous,

“Nao matter how welrd It would seem to vou, we have had no clue up to this
mament. It 1s as I they wanted to leave us this Invaluable treasure but did
not want us o know who they were. The only aspect we can suspect 1s that
they were probably very tall. We cannol otherwise explain the gigantic
dimenslons of some objects In here. You can be proud though that you have
been the first to thoroughly Investigate the "biology” table for the last fifty
thousand years.

“1 was Impressed by the crossing method. It s interesting as our researchers
have not found the method of stmultanecusly wuching two squares vel IL s
il,gu true that we had to do a lat qr lhlng§ In a very shnlrlt"pﬂlm:l .‘.:'f time. In
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the end, there have been [lve or slx days since we gol Into this room and only
three days of actual studying.”

We went [urther. On each side of the room, hall way, there were flve huge
tables situated seven meters away from the energy shield. I passed over each
quickly as Cezar told me my presence there was limited, Besides, the fact
that [ was there was the resull of a really speclal request of General Obadea
that even Cezar could not have made.”

There were [ve Romanians and three Americans in the Projection Room.
The three giant tunnels from behind the room were each guarded by a pair of
soldiers while two officers secured the over all survelllance of the room.
“The Instruction Is that they do not touch or move anything when they are
alone,” Cezar explalned o me.

“All right. but what are they protecting here? Betler sald, Irom whom?" |
asked.

“This is prodocol. In addition, as I told you, there are some elements 1 cannot
tell viou bart they are linked to these secure measures,”

I continued my rapid investigations over each table. There were projectlons
from physics, cosmology., astronomy, architecture, technology. religion. and
a domain representing the characterlstlcs of several races of intel llgent
belngs that did not look entlrely human. | qulckly understood the
Information was so vasi thal many groups of researchers needed several
years 1o study 1t continuously withoul fear of finishing 1L Everyithing seemed
to be a great library of the universe, brilllantly synthesized by an enigmatic
civilization that was extremely advanced technically and spirttually,

[ then went towards the center of the room where a two and a half meter high
kind of platform stood. There were [ive steps 10 ease the access Lo s surface,
The whole butlding was made of the same material that could be found in 154
the big gallery, T climbed up the stairs together with Cezar and we reached a
device that looked like a shielded circular cabin that was made of a
transparent materlal. It was three and a half meters high and omne and a half
melers wide. Actually, it was hall' of a cylinder with several complicated
Installations inside. A kind of platform bulged out from its wall a third of the
way up from the base and some metal wires with sensors at the end were
placed higher.

“We have come (o the conclusion that this represents a mental emisslon
Installation,” satd Cezar. *A possible thought amplifier or true “mind
machine.” It 15 clearly structured according to the dimensions of its bullders,
The metal sensors vou see higher up would fit perfectly on the head of a
three amnd a half meter high man that slis down on the platform.
Unforfunately, [ have nol had the possibility of understanding how It works
yel. Certaln adaptations must be made, bul several American transporiation
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vehicles will arrfive soon that carmy the latest technology and teams of
spectalists who can begin to systematically research the whole place.”

“Dio you know the purpase they used this for?” 1 asked with great interest. “1
think 1t was very Important since it 1s in the middle of the room.”

Tt 15 true, but we canmot know its true use yvet, It is likely that the person
who connected io these sensors Inside of the cylinder was capable of
controlling great mental energles and conducting them cormespondingly, bud
11 15 imxpossible [or me to be sure of the tanget of those energles Tor now.”
We got off the platform and went further on, leaving the stage behind. At
about fifteen meters away on the same central line, T saw what could be
called a control panel. It was ol very blg bul was square with a skde of aboud
one meter and was sustalned by one central leg coming oul of the foor. 1
could not see very well whal was on Lop of 1t as It was prelty high. Lilke all
the other objects in the room. 1t was a Hitle bit above my head.

Utilizing another three-legged stalrway, [ went up a couple of steps. 1 was
amazed by the way things had been pat togother, Tt was very complicated,
leaving the Impresston of a projection netwaork of compater plagues.  YWhat
wi call buttons were represented by differendly colored geometrical symbols,
| notleed mostly triangles, squares and spirals. T'wo parallel slots were
sltuated In the middle of the panel. Coming out of the slots were two bwenty
centimeter long metallic levers that could be compared (o two handles. They
were both in (e down position at the base of the slots and it was clear they
could slide up and down. What really caught my eve was a hig square placed
on the rlght slde of the board towards the bottom cormer, A red “button,”
representad by a clrcle and much bigger than the rest of the signs on the 163
board, was placed in the middle. With a dlameter of aboul ten centimeters,
the so-called button was surrounded by a series of complicated signs that
sepmid to be part of the same unknown writing, It was the only area on the
board that contalned such a slgn.

Cezar, who was waltching me from downstalrs, asked me (o avold touching
anything on the board. especially te red “button,” but he did supgest
passing the palm of my hand over the square containing the circle. I did what
he asked me right away and a huge holographic image appeared in front of
me. It was about two meders away from the board and represented the Earth
viewed from about twenty-flve kllometers away In the atmosphere. [ was
touched when | recognized the Carpathian mountain chain and its specific
curve, but I was surprised to notice a flow of huge quantities of water
towvards plains and fields untll, eventually, the ground became clear. Then,
the prajection of the silver square with the blg red button on it overlapped
the holographic Image. The button blinked aliernatively while the signals on
the side changed Fast with varying colors. | saw how big streams ol waler,
like glant rivers, appeared from everywhere Inside of the territory that now
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Includes the entirety of Romania, a blg part of Hungary and the Ukraine,
Nowing towards the mountains and the Transylvania Plaiform.

The image then zoomed in and [ saw how, in a briel period of tdme, the
whole of Romania became practically a new sea from which you could only
spe some mountain tops or small pleces of land as islands, In that moment,
the projection of the red button square settled on the Image of the hologram
without blinking. Immediately after that, the projectlon of the two central
slots with handles from the board appearad on the left, the handles sliding
down slowly. I was simultanecusly watching how waters started to back out
from the territory of our country, Strangely, they went sowth towards one
point only and that | located somewhere (0 the Betezat Mountaln, most
proebably in the Godeanu Mountalns area. The whole quantity of water
drained into the ground there and Romanta's territory looked dry again with
the geological formations we know today. Still, in the curving area of the
Carpathlans and at a certain distance from them towards the east, in the
territory known today as Vrancea, I noticed a dark area of about thirty
kllometers but could not understand what it represented. In addition, the
Danube Delta did not exist anymore and also, instead of the Glack Sea, a
huge platform lald towards the Middle East.

In that moment, the holographlc Image disappeared as suddenly as 1l
appearad. Astonished, [ looked at Cezar.

“They even lefl us an ‘instruction bookled " didn’t they?" he sald lauphing,
“The procedure 1s similar for all the other buttons and commands on the
board, but T particularly wanted you to see what could happen when the red &4
button was touched. Apparently, however, there Is a securlty system.

The research team has ldentifled a serles of three complicated steps that need
to be completed on the control desk so that the pressing of the red button
produces the flood and the disaster you briefly watched. The way "they’
teach us is very practical, easy and Intultive, We suspect these devices
madntaln, Ina way that Is totally unknown to us so far, the essentlal energedlc
balance of the tectonic area of Romanla. You have just seen the disaster that
can happen if this equilibrium 15 alTected.”

Astounded. | nodded. We then went Iuriber and towards the end of the room.
There, 1 saw some tall metallic devices placed on the sides of the room
behind the T-shaped tables. They looked lke antennas as there were
different metallic branches with complicated shapes emerging laterally from
them. Cezar (old me that nobody was aware af the use of those giant devices.
Woe reached a very big square thal was bordered by the floor material and
was about ten meters away from the control desk. The side of the square
measured three meters and 15 almost smooth surface was polden yellow, In
the middle, there was a small dome of about fifteen centimeters high with a
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slot on top. A vessel llke an anclent amphora, about balf a meter high, was
in front of the dome.

“T'he content of the amphora represents one of the strong points of the
discovery.” Cezar explained.

“Personally, I think this 15 what the venerable Massinl wanted so much for
him and the Masonic elite.”

The amphora had nelther patterns. nor inscriptions. It was made of a speclal
reddish metal and did not have handles. The elegant lid did notallow the
contents 1o be seen. Cezar lifted it and then, bending forward, I could see a
very fine white glowing dust Inside. Curtously, the interior walls were

discretely 11t by a blue lght that e mphasized the almast maglcal fashes of
the white dust.

“A sample of 1t was analyzed.” explained Cezar. “The Amerlcan researchers
were puzzled (o discover that 1t represented an unknown crystalline structure
of monatoemic gold. This is a derivative of pold which is bright white and the

atoms are placed In a two-dimensional network as opposed to common gold
which Is yellow amd has atoms placed In a three-dimensional network. The

monatomic gold dust 1s very difficult 1o obdaln, especially in a very high

purity, as is described In some ancient texts and the fow genuine alchemy
references from the Middle East. Practically speaking, modem sclence has
niod been able to obtain the extraordinarily pure monatomic gold dust. Even
s0, Incredible therapeutic effects, especially regarding regeneratlve capacity,
have been noticed on living tissues. That Is why there are still a few sourcel==
of information concerning the technolegy for obtaining the monatomic gald.
An Amercan sclentlst told me that NASA was very Interested In that and
huge sums of money had been Invested Into researching it.”

1 had never heard about monatcmic gold wp to that moment and 1is use was
not very clear to me,

“But why are some persons 5o Interosted in this dust?” T asked Cezar, "Did

you tell Signore Massind about the existence of the gokd dust?”
“The venerable one knew about it before entering here_ [ do not know how

and [rom where (he Masondc elite had such sources of information. but they
surely heard about it before this discovery. I mysell wonderad why Signore
Massinl was so interested 1n gotting 1t T talked with bath our sclentists and

the American ones who seemed to know something aboat it,”
THE INTERIOR PLAN OF THE PROJECTION ROOM
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“They told me that, in s pure form, it strongly stimulated certaln energetic
Hows and exchanges at the cellular level and particularly at the neuronal one.
In other words, it produces a much accelerated rejuvenation process, They
sald that, thearetically. one could live in the same physical body for
thousancds of years 17 one consumed a well determined quantity of that dusi
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periodically. It Is mind-blowlng and almost unbellevable for the condition
and mentality of the present individual, bul this explains many enigmatical
aspects in humankind's history, aspects about the incredible longevity of
some important figures; and 1t also clarifies the hidden intentions of the
Masonic elite,”

Surprisingly, my tongue falled me. I was sticking fast and walting for further
explanations from Cezar.

“Modemn technology does not allow us o obtain the purity of the monalomic
gold dust which is needed to start the general energetic process of
rejuvenating the body, Furthermore, the lab results of the sample have shown
that the gold atoms lay In a flat network bat are also combined with the
atoms of another element which Is unknown on Earth. This complicates the
sluation even more as we cannol know what other characteristics the dust
has besides the ones mentioned in the anclent texls that Lhe researchers
totally ignore.”

Cezar told me to step on the surface of the square and In front of the linle
dome over its middle.

“II' you think something can Further invpress you, this will be one of the
areatest surprises vou can have In this room, " he joked.

[ then witnessad a huge hologram with moving elemenis projected from the
slot of the dome. | quickly understood these projections were main aspects of
he extremely anclent past of humanity.

Although it was a brief rendition of our ancient past, it Inclsded Information
concerning the hidden orgin of Mankimd, 1 clearly realized the mistake of
Darwin’s theary of evolution. Its fundamental error was nod the enforced
ldea but the ignorance. Precise elements happened on Earth so long ago,
elements that I saw rendered 1n an exceptionally intelligent and profoundly
Intuitive synthesis, My legs sank under me with emation and 1 kneeled as 1
watched the true Images of the most Important events In Man's history,
Including Its real orlgin which creates so many disputes to this day.
Unfortunately, 1 was not allowed to write in this book certain essential
aspects of our planet’s past that I had watched in a compact version. These
events were rendered exactly the way they happened tens and hundreds of
thousands of years before. This was the conditlon Cezar asked me to keep In
order to respect the terms of the top secrel mutual agreement between
Romania and the United States.

I honestly confess that, according to my judgment, ninety percent of what is
officially known today on the history of humankind 1s fake and fabricated. I
Is truly unbelievable thal what Is consldered to have really happened s
maostly a lle. Un the other hand, the myths and legends that 11 the story
books. considered by most people 1o be a product of bubbly imagination, are
almast true in many respects, This strange *inversion”™ has caused many
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problems and disputes between people throughout time. The majority of
archaeologists” and researchers” ldeas and suppositions are wrong even
though various prools are sometimes so obvious that they should change
their misled opintons. Some of thedr “fantasies.” such as the hilarlous theory
of the dinosaurs’ disappearance 65 milllon vears ago or consldering that the
old continents of Atlantls and Lemurla are a myth, are now completely
shattered because | saw very clearly, then and there, how things really
happened! Bul for many researchers, 1t Is probably more comlortable (o
soundly “sleep” instead of accepting the challenge of the unknown and
admitting thelr limits,

From time to time, the holographic projection held the image of the event
when an Imporiant moment In Hme was reached. In the background, the map
of the sky could be seen and the posiidons of the maln stars and
constellations of thal Ume were marked. Cezar explained that the stars
proved to be a very simple method of historical determination. Aldl that the
savants needed to do was then overlap the positions of those stars on their
actual ones and thus ascertaln the perlods of Ume when those events actually
happened,

I'he problem was that the time perfod covered by the holograms was huge:
several hundreds of thousands of years. The Earth's precession cycle of
25,920 years brings the constellations. in their relative positlon Lo our planed,
Lo the same spol at perods of Ume that are a multiple of 26,000 years each 157
The kev was to follow the holopraphic projection from beginning to end and
then caleulate how many “platonic vears™ (of approximately 26,000 vears
each) are thus marked oul. For example, we could draw the conclusion that
the construction in the Bucegl Mountains was bullt about 50-55,000 years
ago because the image of the Greal Gallery and of the maln room was
prajected, with all the ohjects Inside as we found them, having on the
background the pasition of the constellations towards the Earth. Aller that,
the Image appeared one more tme, as a gulde, representing the passing of
two precession perlods of the equinoxes.

The “lessons™ were easy and yet extremely upsetting due to their content. I
saw the truth about the Egyptian civilization and the way the big Egypiian
structures were bullt, truth that Is todally different from the stupldities
clalmed today by Egyplologlsts. | saw what really happened during the Big
Flood as well as the germs of the human civillzation that followed it and
how they later populated Europe. Asia and Africa. I have not been alloveed
to disclose these aspects yet as they imply realities much too shocking for
the mentallty, ldeas and knowledge of the contemparary man.

At firsi, 1 thought that the holographic projection would show only the past
of humankind, starting from its origins until the moment thal the
canstruction In Bucegl was made, I then saw the projections presenting the
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maln historlcal aspects of the evolution of different races on our planet up to
the Filth Century A.D. That meant either that the glants who bulll the whaole
structure inside the mouniain were good masiers of accessing the dme
cliches or — and this situation looks more probable due to the huge period

of time covered by the holographic projection — they mysteriously
“updated” the source of holographic Information. Apparently, the last such

update took place around 500 A.D). No one knew, however, the reason why
the historical Information stepped at that time.

[ saw, in a dramatic course of images, the life of Jesus and His crucifixion,
denied by some even nowadays. 1 have to say that a lof of amazing things
happened then, things that are much mare astonishing than what the Gospels
present. The projectlons also revealed many of the persons who attended the
crucifixion of Jesus on the hill, people who were nod from thal tme bul who
came there from other historlcal perlods. Those human bedngs. who had the
same clothes as the Jewish present there, had totally different features and
that was the reason why they wore hiding thelr face under the flow of the
Clothes.

‘The hologram also sequentally prosented the lives and spiriual misslons of
certaln exceptlonal persons who truly proved to possess amazing divine
gifts. These persons were from the anclent past. 1 thus saw the deads of 16H
great splritual relormers from 18-20,000 vears ago that we know nothing of.
Back then. the soclal system and the distibution of people on the whole
planat was totally different to what we know today. Archasolopgists,
anthropologlsts and historlans should strongly reconslder thedr [deas and
conceplions aboul those Hmes.

There were s0 many elements that 1 witnessed, and they were presented In
such a compact manner that I surely would require hundreds of pages 1o give
an approximate description. Still, the holographic projection lasted an hour
and a half only. The two offlcers who were protecting the room and the slx
soldlers who were standing at the entrances of the tunnels were all
astonished as they walched the tmages. even 1T 1t was nol the first Ume they
had watched them. After the hologram disappeared, I remained still. staring.
Later. Cezar told me it was time 1o go back to the base as my access time o
the Projection Room had reached its Hmil. 1 looked stralght ahead. The glant
amd almost scary entrances of the three enigmatic tunnels in the mountakn
wall were e only areas lefl o explore beyond the square | was still standing
on. They were about twenty meters away. In front of each of them, at about
six or elght meters away, other control desks could be seen. They were
similar o the one placed In the middle of the hall but smaller than that

| asked Cezar what was the extraordinary mystery behind these three tunnels.
He explained thal be could nol reveal oo much concerning this aspect.

What he did tell me was that what they found out ahout the giant mountain
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tunnels was due to some holographic projectlons from each tunmels” control
desk. The only aspect he could reveal was that the three tunnels were
heading towards three different areas on Earth for thousands of kilomelers.
The left one connected to Egypt In a secret place under the sand. This was

next to Calro on the Giza Plateau and was located berween the Sphinx and
the Great Pyramld. It has not been discovered yed

The right one connected to a similar structure inside of a mountain placed on
the Tibetan Plateau. This one was smaller though and not so complex.
Secondary ramifications of the latter tunnel led towards an area under Buzau,
close o the Carpathlans” curve, and then towards a subterranean assembly In
Irag that Is close o Baghdad. The latter also had a secondary ramiflcatlon
that led to the Gobl Plateau In Mongolla.

According o what Cezar told me, the third wnnel, the one placed in the
middle of the Projection Room. represents a worldwide secrel Uat the U5,
wanted to keep stricthy for itself,

At that moment, neither Cezar nor General Obadea knew any new elements
af the Romanian-Amerkcan discussion. It was, however, obvilous that the
“exchange” was advantageous for both sides. Knowing the Masons' terribl159
political infleence and Signore Massini's relations with the political
structures of the bwo countries, we could suspect that there would be a
gradual attempl 1o “take over” the control of the base by factors thal were
exterior 10 the Interests of our government.

Cazar told me that there are very Important persons in our political and
administrative system who, quite fortunately, know about the abominable
practices of the Masons and are strongly opposed to thelr influence,
especially with regards (o taking over the greal discovery in the Bucegl
Mountains. He then told me that the central tunnel leads towards the interior
and even bevond the crust of the Earth but would not give further detalls,
Cezar notlced that the holographlc Images corresponding (o the glant
conrldor from inside the mountain were almost unbellevable but, at the same
tme, they offered a possible answer (o the origin of the struclure we were In
and of those who built it. Before leaving the room., Cezar told me that very
secret and Intense preparations for cerain expeditions were on their way:
first, through the tunnel towards Egypt, then towards Tibet and finally, the
big expedition Inskle of the Earth via the middle tonmel.

As a direct resull of the bilateral Romaman-American discusslons, 1t was
decided to fiorm a team of the best sixtoen men, six Americans and ten
REomanians, The leadership was assigned to Cezar who was thus advanced o
the rank of colonel. He explalned that the rank was important, especlally in
regard to the team’s psychologleal context. The depariure would be at the
end of September 2003 as the preparations [or the expediton were complex.
Cezar did not tell me anvthing aboat what was in those tunnels, bt their
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structure was ditterent trom that of the Great Gallery. He did not tell me
anything about the way they would move through the iunnels, taking into
consideration the fact that thousands of kilometers were 10 be lraversed.
Finally and unfortunately. he did not give me any detalls about the

holographic images that corresponded to every destination tanget. Even sa, 1
still consider that the elements presented here can lead us to think deep and

o prepare for the times o come.

I have purposefully and obviously omitted certain specilic data that can lead
to identifying the mountain area where the big discovery was made. A year
after my visit to that place, I stll vividly recall the overwhelming

Impressions 1 had during those several hours when 1 was In that surreal
environment created by the secret construction Inslde the Bucegl Mountalns.
Time's anclent mystery and the wisdom of those who managed to control 1t
hang over that place, patiently walting lor tens of millenniums (o the
monent when we will find out the truth. ..

The End

160
DOX.BG




Epilogue, Part I — by Peter Moon

You have |ust read a rather amazing tale that ends abrupdly for the reader. It
begs the reader Lo ask many more questions, and this is exactly how the
original Romantan edition ol the book, entitled The Enenty Within, ended.

It resulted in a rash of communications to the publisher from retired
Romanlan officlals who validated different parts of the story which they
knew to be true. Desplte the remarkable nature of the findings, this story has
remained largely unnodicod, particularly in Amerdca save for those with the
highest of securlly clearances.

If the above does not convince you that there 1s considerable veraclty to the

story, T invite you to do your own study and analysis of the diplomaric
relations bedween the Unlted States and Romanla. You will discover that the

two countries have become polltical allles where they were n before. Nod
only has Homania become a member nation of NATO during this perfod, but
ihedr country was chosen as tho slte for @ major NATO summit In recon
tUmes. None of this Is a colncldence. Romanla Is now center stage In the
most mysterlous of ways., To the average citlzen of Earth, however. 11 goes
unnoticed.

Into this environment. [ was invited 1o visit Romania courtesy of Dr, David
Anderson on behalf of the World Genesls Foundatlon, a charltable

organization affillated with the Unlted Nations that 1s dedicated to the
propositton that no youth in the world will go without opportundty.
A5 I mentioned In the Introduection to this boak, 1 was contacted by David

shortly after completing the negotiations to publish this book, T had not seen
David In flve years and, true (o his word, he was now ready (o work with me
again. Alter accepting his imvilation (o visil Romania and attend the 2008
Atlantykron Conference on an sland on the Danube Biver near the ruins at
Capldava, Diavid said that he encourapges his puesis to take a three day
cultural tour of Romania as part of the trip. All of our communication was by
emall at this point, and | accepted his Invitatlon. | asked him If | could get a
video interview with him and also visit with Radu Cinamar. David indicated
Ut these things could be arranged.

Eventually, In June, we had a rather lengthy telephone conversation, This
was the first time 1 had spoken o David In vears, Although [ had many
questions, this conversatlon was reserved primarlly for the loglstical aspects
of my upcoming trip. As part of tds, David asked me where | would like 1o
go and what | would like to see while in Romania. [ told hdm that [ was 17
eager 1o visit the Sphinx and also see the Hall of Records {the Projection
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Room). Dutifully noting this, he sald that he would have his people get In
touch with Hadu Clnamar.

This gave me an excellent opportunity Lo ask him I he was aware of Radu's
book which you have just read. He did not seem too sure what I was talking

about at first, but as T gave him more Information, he sald that he knew what
[ was talking about but had not read the book.

[ then asked him Uf he knew Radu. David was sllent for 3 moment. The
sllence was short butl dealening. He then indicated that he did not want 1o
talk about that on the phone. It would be better if we spoke about that in
Fomania as there are certaln presences that monitor phone conversations In
the United Siates

Davld then waxed nostalglc about the Danube and sald that we could have a
long conversation over a glass of wine widle sliting on the banks of the river.
He then stated that we have never had a real long and deep conversation and
that he was looking forward to such. Needless to say, this made the trip
sound very appealing, Tt was certainly more than I had hoped for,
Personally, 1 did nod really expect to see the Projection Hall as access to thls
area would require p securlly clearance even under the most routine of
circumstances, | had a falnt hope bat no real expectatlons, 1t was, however,
a very pleasant surprise (o hear that David was planning to be so
lforthcoming,

While hoplng that David could or would arrange a meeting for me wiih
Radu. we bath decided that T should write him a letter which Tdid. In this
letter, T invited Kadw to meet me at the Atlantykron conference, 1 was
already keenly aware that my publisher’s communlcations with Radu were
only by special courler of Romanda's secrel service. My publisher, Sorin
Hurmuz, has never met with Radu personally. T assumed and hoped that

David could forward my letter through a more direct means. David said he
would give this assignment o his people In order that [ could meet Radu.

All of the attempts by David's people to confact Radu led them back o my
publisher, Sorin, who was evidently the most direct way (o contact him. |
should point out, however, that these were David's people who were trying

to contact Radu and not David himself. In any event, T soon recalved a very
warm letter from REadu. It was to be the beginning of many dialogues.

Radu was pleased that I was publishing his First book In America, but he sa14
that e could not attend Atlantylkron for securlly reasons. He also

apologized that he could not provide more proof for his claims in terms of
plctures, As he works In the Occult Department of the Romanlan Secrot
Service, these matters are top secrel.  Although Cerar Brad approved his
letter fo me, he was advised that he should not silr things up too much 1F he
wanted (0 keep his job and to contime publishing his books.
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Radu also stated that he had read the Montauk books as early as 1996 and
that both he and Cezar spoliad a connection between those and thelr work in
Department Zero. This has 1o do with Ume travel to the First Century during
the life of Jesus.*

Personally, T found it fascinating that Cezar even knew who I was, They had
obvlously read the Momauk books long before the discovery In the Bucegl
Mounialns and the frst public presence of Davld Anderson in Romanla
which was in 19949 at Atlantvkron

Radu told me that he would send me an audio CD in an electrondcally
disguised voice that would give me further Information, This was sanctioned

by Cezar and Radu wanted an address to send it to. Reallzing that T would
be In Romanla in less than two months, | supgesied that be glve it to our
common publisher, Sorin Hurmuz. who was already coming o Atlaniykron
(o meet me. | knew (hat snail mail between America and REomania could
have taken longer than my expected arrival in their country,

When I next spoke to David on the phone, he suggesied that Radu might
show up at Atlantykron but In a disgulse. | had already consldered this
possibility, bul there s no indicatlon that he eventually did. As 1 danced
around with Lavid about Kadu, without having an actual comversatlon about
him, David sald that he thought something very Interesting was golng (o
come out of all this.

In order o have a video record of my tdp, David allowed me Lo (ake a
cinematographer with me. As local friends of mine could not go, [ was able

to get an out-of-town friend, Tantra Bensko, (o o with me. She has had lots
of experlence shooting and starring in short movies which are often qulte
comical. Tantra has also done some professional videos on the subject of
tantra. She would also come in handy as an interdimesional explorer who
can read auras and 15 very sensitive,

I heard from David again the night before our departure. He wanted to make
sure everyihing was arranged for our trip. This was all buslness excepd for
one polnt. The night before we ook off, my friend Penelope was buzzed 1173
three black helicopters that came right down over her house in Mew York

City. It was consplcuous and the whole experience was rather bizarre, She Is
very close o David psychically and once saw him appear “out of time” In

1875, In ordinary tlme, she met him on the same night {n 1999 when 1 did.
When | told David about ts, be Jaughed and said they were there 10 make
sure I arrived safely. He was making a joke. I mentlon the black hellcopters

as another would make its presence known in Romania,
Adfter a somewhal arducus trip by reason of unscheduled travel delays, we

arrlved In Bucharest, the capital of Romanta, just around mldnight. We were
given WIP ireatment as soon as we gol off the plane. Separated Irom the
other passengers, we were given our luggage and
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whisked through customs which also happened to be empty. We were then
greeted by a represeniative of Atlantykron and introduced to Dr. Joel
Castellanos who would be our travelling companion for our cultural tour of
Fomanla.

I was then put on the phone with our sponsor from the World Genesis
Foundation who s a partner of David's. He had armanged for a taxd to our
hotel In the moundaln town of Sinala and for a tour gulde the next moming.
Each one of us was then pul on the phone with David who welcomed us 0
Romania. It was all very exciting with great anticipation. We wera
scheduled to meet up with him at Atlantykron three days later.

As Tantra and 1 met our new friend, Joel, there was plenty of conversation
and the two plus hour drive to Sinala went by In no me. As 1 stated in the
prologue, this is where things began (0 go off the rails. Arriving at our hotel
well after 2:00 a.m., our rooms had been sold out from under us and we had
no place to stay, Phone calls betwoeen our very competent taxi driver and our
sponsor resalted In many excurslons around the town and visiting with one
af thelr contacts oulside of his house. All conversatlons were in Eomanian
#0 we had no ldea what was going on. Finally, 1 was put on the phone with
our sponsor whereupon I was informed, if [ accepted, that we would be
driven high Into the alps where we would stay Ina resort. It was the only
place avallable at that hour,

As a resull, we never had a tour guide and had a memorable bul very rough
and adventurous "cultural tour™ which really amounted to no cultural tour at
all. It was a struggle to survlve In a forelgn country. Desplie these
difficulties, we had at least one day to enjoy the cultural tour. This wasa 174
rellel because | would be able 1w achleve the main thing 1 wanted rom the
cultural tour: a visit to the Romanian Sphin.

In order to see the Sphinx, we learned that we would have to ascend the alps
via a cable car which would take us above the tree line. As Tantra has
problems with depth perception, It was deemed not a good ldea for ber o go.
Fortunately, my new Irlend Joel was up for the trip and he jolned me. 1
would have to serve as my own cinematographer.

Cetting to the Sphinx was challenging as we had to negaotiate how to ride the
bus to the smeall mountaln town of Bustenl., Once there, we had to wall
almast two hours 1o get on the single cable car which makes the trip.
Eventually, we did arrive and came (0 a magnificent setling. The hills are
filled with tundra grass reminiscent of where Julle Andrews stocd 1n The
Sound of Music, The area 1s filled with astonishing megaliths of which
Babele and the Sphinx are the most famous and are piciured elsewhere In
this book. Besldes these structures, there are other Interesting megallths as
well.
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As mists of clouds came over us and departed, 1 dedicated my First bao hours
I the mountains (o getting shots of various megaliths, especially the Sphinx
liself. Dwue to the clouds, there were alternating periods of overcast darkness
and beautiful sunlight. It was a day I will never forget due to the wonderful
energy of the place,

When 1 first came upon the Sphinx, 1 did not even recognlze it The most
unlgue aspect about 1t s that It only appears as a Sphinx from different
angles. Some angles are distincty different,

Looking at the right profile, 1t looks like a man with an ancient Dacian
helmet, If yous look at the left profile of the Sphinx, particularly with a
telescoplc lens, there are the distinct features of a cat or on, There also
appears (o be the etching of a Madonna like woman to the left of the cat's
whilskers. If you go up close, It is not s0 notlceable. [ have been told that
this is the genius of iis construction. [t has also been suggested (o me that
what remalns of this Sphinx are only remnants of a more artistic version,

Whatever the actual story of the Sphinx Is, including what role wind erasion
has played, It s the most vislied tourlst atiraction In Eomanla.

loel was extrernely helplul to me and also took an excellent photo of me
lining up my tripod and camera about twenty-flve vards away from the
Sphinx. Afler I got all the photographic angles 1 could of the Sphin, it wak/5
now Lime 1o play. [ was going 1o ask the Sphinx a question. For those of
vou who know anything about myths or te esoleric properties of a sphinx,
this creature represents the riddle of existence. 1 therefore went in between
what best represented the paws of the Sphinx amd offered 1t the foremost
riddle in my mind. In esoterlc myth, the area between the paws 1s the most
sacred and mysterious. The question 1 asked was very simple. What was the
connection between David Anderson and Radu Cinamar’s remarkable story?
I then went aboaut exploring the rest of the iImmediate area which Included
the other megallths. There are hiking trails that one can take amd even cabins
one can stay In, but they are about elght miles away. There Is also a huge
antenna statlon and a few other Installations. One person in the government
told me that the major ley line in that area of Europe runs within one
hundred vards to the west of the Sphinx and Babele. After a long and
exhilarating afternoom, Joel and 1 had to walt another hour or two before we
could take the last cable car back.

The next morning, all three of us were picked up by a driver who would take
us on a four hour drive to Capidava, an area of ancient rulns, whege we
would embark on a small boat that would take us to the small island In the
Danube where Atlantyron 1s held.

Before we actually went to Atlantykron, we were taken io a nuclear Faclllty
In & small wwn where we met our Homanian sponsor who s also David's
partner, He took us out to lunch at a sidewalk cafe. The most interesting
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thing he said was that black hellcopters had circled the Island on the first day
of Atlantykron. Although he worked for the Romandan government, il was a
mystery Lo him as there was no obvlous purpose. As he 1s well-placed in the
povernment, It was obviously not a regular or pollte maneuver as they could
or should have notified him,

It was at this meal where | experienced what was the funniest moment on the
trp. As our meals were served, flies began lo descend toward Joel's plate.
Swalting away the [Hes. he spoke.

“There were not all these flies in Transylvanial™ he sald.

"That is because REenfleld at them all!™ T replied.

The taxi driver, whao spoke halfway decent English, burst out laughing amd
did not stop for a while.

Renfleld, of course. 1s the character played by Dwight Frye in the original
Dracula movie. Once bitlen by the vamplre, Renfleld ate [les and this fac*7&
was exaggerated in the movie, The driver, as do very many Romanlans,

know this movie very well, Joel had never heard of Renfleld, and T had ta
explain why It was funny. 1 made the joke for the beneflt of Joel bul L was

the driver who got it

After our meal, we were taken to the small boat and ook the ten minute
Journey o the Nitle Island. After deposlting our luggage on a large bowse
boat, we wenl 1o an area of tables when David suddenly appeared. He was
ln the middle of a task, but he stopped by and sald hello. [0 was the first Gme
I had seen him in five vears and it was a wonderful reunion. He explained
that e would be maostly busy the next few days with a project so would nod
have time for any In depth discussion for a while. He was, bowever, around
al meal tmes and we olten ate dinner Logedher on the wpper deck of one of
the house boats.

Dairing one of our first dinners, we were talking about my Bulgarian
publishers who | had lovited o visit me while | was at Atlantykron. Davld
had Invited them to make contact and they consulted him on travel
arrangements and accommodations on the island. COn the subject of
Bulgaria, David recalled once being at a meeting with Preston Nichols,
mysalf and a Bulgarian at a hotel in Melville, Long Island. 1 thought this
was very bizarre as [ have never been with a Bulgarian at any hotel.

“Must be one of those parallel unlverses!” Davld sald, making a bt of a joke
of iL

There was absolutely no such meeting in regular reality. When I returned

home, however, and spoke to Preston aboat It, he said he had a vapgue
recollectlon of such a meeting. Perhaps this was a parallel reality slpping

through, and 1 would nod even mentlon It save for what happened later.
one of these dinners, | mentioned 10 David what his Bomanian
partner had sald about black hellcopters circling the Atlantykron festivities,
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David clarifled that several had once circled the Island on the st day as the
parly arrivals sel up camp. The next year, it was only three copters. This
year, (here was only one black hellcopter. Perhaps the psychic alrwaves
were lightening up. He had no 1dea what they were deing. I also learned
that David knew how to fly these helicopters himself but did not have an
actual credentlal to do so. Perhaps this comes In handy for flying them in
and out of parallel realties.

1 also mentioned to David teat | was particularly interested to meet one of 177
the V.LP. speakers who was going to be lecturing. This was a Romanian
general from Romanian Intelligence who was going to lecture on UFCs,

David mentloned that this general had cancelled at the last minute, and he
thought it had something to do with my presence al Atlantykron. It 1s very
Nattering that [ could spook someone who 15 supposed (0 be a grand spook
himsell. It is nol the frst Ume thal such people have run [or the bills in my
presence. It does, however, seem Mzarre that a person so well-credentialed
would even care aboat me, Although my presence was made known at
Atlantykron by a grand Introduction, the only stir that could have or mighit
have happened was on the subdle planes of existence.

Ihe tlrst evening there were festivities with a rather large Hireworks display.
an Intreductory video and an opening ceremony. Tantra took foosdage of this,
and 1 eventually plan to release a video with some of this. [ would, however,
like to Iirst visit at least one other area in Romanda in order 10 make It a more
complete story.

After the opening ceremonles, David introduced Tantra, Joel, and myself o
the audience as well as other speakers. Afterwards, [ was very warmly
greeted by certain professors and others who were very glad I was there.

That was about as blg a stir as I created as far my lecturing on the Montauk
Project or anything else, 1did speak again for a short time on another
evening, but every Hme I was scheduled for a seminar, 1 was never plcked up
In time. As the boat accommodations on the Island were full, Tantra and |
staved 1n apartments at (e nuclear camipus which was aboul twently minutes
away. [suggested that my seminars be scheduled for later in the day. but
this was never done. Almost every night. when there was the higgest
gathering of the day, [ was always Invited to say something for ten minutes
to the audlence. Sometimes | would. All in all, however, my capabilities as
a lecturer were hardly utilized at all. People were more worried about
“would It be all right with me” If they scheduled me for such and such a
time, [ was very accommodating, but in the final analysis, I did very little as
far as lecturing or anything else.

Mone of this, however, botherad me. [ expected to lecture and what not, but
1 was far more interested in what David had 1o tell me personally and the
_circumstances surrounding Radu Cinamar and his remarkable story. During
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my travels In Komanda, 1 met a few people who had heard of Radu's story
bt nene who had read 11, This was the same at Atlantykron save for one 178
man who was also named Radu. Ve both lawghed at the synchrondcity when
I told him that he was the only one I had met who had read the book and he
has the same name, Although Radu's book has sold very well in Romania,
most people seemed to be obllviouws to the events and thelr uliimate meaning.
That Is okay. | am used (o people belng asleap.

Part of the problems [ was experlencing were explained o me by David
befora they even occurred. He said that Atantykron runs on its own
schedule, Things happen as they happen. In other words, [t has a rhythm of
Its own, He also sald that as the conference develops, the subject of
Astropaleology becomes more and more prominent. In thls case,
Astropalealogy refers (o the study of ancient artifacts or stone monuments as
they refer 1o the stars. | will talk more about this later on.

As the conference rolled along, David had trouble with the project he was
working on and no discusslons were forthcoming, I did have time to remind
him, however, of a mysterloas postcard he had sent me a year or bwo earller.
Il was a short note he had written from Bethlehem, but it included a
mvsteriows message that was wrltten In code. | did not understand the code,
but It came to me just as 1 was about (o publish one of my quarterly
newsledlers, The Montauk Pulse. In hopes of breaking the code, [ included it
hat editton of the Pulse and asked if anyone in the reading avdience could
help. Hundreds of envelopes were placed in the mail, but only one person
would answer me and did so within twenty-four bours, More remarkably, the
response was from one of my readers at Maontauk who had glven the ooded
message (o her boylriend who broke the code and read it 1o me over the
phone, The fact that it came from Montauk was lronic 1o say the least. The
mvsterious cryptogram read as follows:

“In this world and Hme nothing happens by accldent. If It happens you can
bet 1t was planned that way.”

When I had recedved the decoded message. 1 sent what 1 had found to David.
but he replied with an even more cryptic reply. He sald that the code that
had been broken was a simple code bat that there was an even desper
message encrypied within the text If [ were (o look further. Despite having
some af the best cryptologlists In the Intelllgence community try and decrypd
IL they could not. David did say, however, that the encrypled text would
“load to information we would find remarkable and surprising, something I

believe vou have already anticipated, that will change many things we knod/3
and belleve today. The Informatlon Is already walting at a deslgnated poind,

but | cannot say more here other than the message will lead you and your
resders there.” All of the above sounds an awiul lot ke the circumsiances
that Radu is faced with in disseminating his information,

168
DOX.BG




When | spoke to David, I had orlginally planned to ask him about this when
wi had the opportunity (o sl on the banks of the Danube and have that long
discusston he had alleded (0. There was an Incident, however, that had
occurred that prompted me to ask him earlier. During the first couple of
nights, I had a dream about David and an accldent. As soon as [ arrived at
the camp the next day, I sought him out and found him on a boat where he
was wirking on his project. | merely told him about the dream and told him
to be careful and not to climb any trees like he was doing the day before. He
understood and said he would be careful. Later in the day. I saw him
partially up a tree working with an electronic box. T went over and spotted
him o make sure he did not fall.

As It turned out, my precautlon was completely unnecessary, bul It took me a
lew days (o fgure it oul. My dream stale was trying (0 remind me of
Dravid ‘s postcard wherein he used the word “accident” in his coded
message: “In this world and time nothing happens by accident.”

In any event, this experlence prompied me (o ask David about the postcard
right away. His reply was Interesting but much more cryptic than interesting.
“When | wrote that,” he sald, “that message was from my higher self.”

He had nothing more to sav, 1t was as If he did not even remember the
postcard! He obviously went (o significant trouble to write It, send It from a
lorelpn country and mark 1t so as (o confound securlly, and ten later made
another ceyplc comment on {1 It did not seem like he was pretending but
definitely hlocked on the communication. 1 would take it up later. This,
however, was the first clear slgnal that David might avodd amy direct
confrontation on the sub|ects that [ belleved | was there to discuss. 1 was
also there (0 lecture and assist the program, but the scheduling was so
confused that T was lefl idle. The next signal came soon afler,

There was some sort of misunderstanding between David and my Bulgarian
publishers about thelr accommodations. Adthough this was worked out, 1t
ledt to more trouble when they unwiltingly placed thelr tents next o a locale
that would break oul into an ad hoc disco after the midndght howr and a fg 187
threatened to break out. To smooth things out. T supgested that David meet
with the Bulgarians the next day and answer any questions they might have.
They were eager to talk to hlm as they had read one of my newsletters about
him.

While they interviewed him, | sat by and Tanira recorded the Interview.
David, however. made it very clear that he did not want to be on camera.
The first thing they wanted to know If there was still a time travel research
center In Bomanla (which they had read about In my publications).

“That Is out of bounds."” sald Davld.

‘The Bulgarians understood and then proceeded with soltball questions.

Everything worked out and all became friends. David later agreed to visit
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e atter Htlant_].rhmn abonat the F-I:I!-'.l-ill:l!lll].l' ol -EIJ:I-E'T!Ill'IH P & chapl-u-r of the
World Genests Foundation in thetr country. He also pledged to hielp them
with a book they are publishing. All inall, David was extremely courteous
with my new friends. He did visit them shortly after they returned home.

At the end of the Interview with the Bulgarians, it seemed obwvious to me that
David had no connectlon to Rado Clnamar. When 1 told him so, an
uncharacterlstic and highly noticeable smirk appeared on his face. 1t was
unmistakable. 1 told him he could have put the whole matter to rest if he
would have just simply agreed with me. His interaction with the Bulgarians
and myself confirmed not only that a time travel research center still existed
In Romanda [which 1 already knew anyway) but that he had a connection to
Radu as well.

As the days rolled by, It was obvious that David was not about 10 have any
long or intlmate discussions with me aboul such matters. Although this was
not completely unexpected by myself, it seemed a lost opportunity, Cne of
the reasons I have been able to get along with David so well s that T never
press him or act obnoxlous about securlty matters. | understand his plight. 1
was keenly already aware that such a situatlon might arise.

In Dianetics and Sclentalogy parlance, which maost of you know T am quite
Famillar with, David's response (o our encounter was what Is called
“rabbiting.” In other words, one hops away like a rabbit when forced o
confront an 1ssue that s bothering the mind or impeding 1t. He was clearly
going to avold the 1ssues [ was most interested in. This could have been for
his protection, my predection, or even someone else's, In any case, 11 was nhé
a pood response for my Investigation of these matters.

One evening. as [ stood at the amphitheater where we would gather every
evening, I saw David on (he other side. Somewhere, I knew inside of me

that he was not going to utter a word about these matters, ACCess was
denled. While none of this surprised me too much, my body began to react.

I felt a sudden and desp sadness which may or may not have been
ermanating from him. As Tantra and 1 went home 0 our apartments late that
evening, I discussed the situation with her. Tantra was very popular at
Atlantykron with her aura readings and psychic readings, They were quite
acourate. Before [ went (o bed that night, [ asked her to work on the
situation Interdimensionally while [ worked on It In my dream state.

For me. there was no dreaming. [ broke out in a heated sweat the lkes of
which I have nover experlenced. My bed sheets and t-shirt were soakoed.

Knocking on Tantra's door the next morning, 1 told her [ was too sick to go
In.

“You are under psychic attack,” she sald.

I told her that [ had already Ngured that oul In any event, 1 told her o talk
to David about what happened. This was the one day [ was hoping to show
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up for a scheduled talk, but the boat was over an hour late and would have
missed me even ' 1 had been there.

My illness might have started with something I ate at the 1FK airport. David
and a friend got food polsoned there and had a very rugged flight to
Romanla. I noticed something in my digestlve fract at the alrport in Poland,
but it did not bother me untll this moment.

When my Romanlan sponsor heard the news, he sent over lunch with a
driver and [ was asked 1T [ would like (o see a doctor. 1L was nol necessary o
spo 3 doctor, and I never did eat the lunch. I ate one health bar the whole
day.

At about two o'clock, there was another knock on the door and 1t was Sorln
Hurmuz, my Eomanlan publisher. He had sald that he would come (o
Atantykron and visit me on Thursday. When he arrived and 1 was nol there,
he made the drive (o the nuclear campus and visiied me.

Mot only was Sorin delightful, T could relate to him better than anyone T noed
in Romania. This obviously has something to do with the fact that he 1s also
a publisher, and we are publishing books of a simllar nature. There are no
oo many of us In the world. Just as The Montauk [Froject started my
publishing company so did the hook you have Just read start his. 182
Sorin stated that although he has never mel Radu, he belleves his siory (o be
true. One such conflrmatlon occurred when he was visiling a book
distribution facility. While there, Sorin encountered a retired official [rom
Romanian Intelligence, When the officer saw Radu™s book and Iooked
through it, he told Sorin that he personally knew moch of the book to be foe
because he could verlfy some of the accounts.

Sorin then handed me the audio CD that Eadu had promised 1o send me. All
of a sudden. my morale began to return. I felt much better.

The next day, [ was not quite one-hundred percent, but | was cortalnly well
enough to return to Atlantykron. David had told Tantra that be would set
aslde some time for me and we ended up spending maost of the aftermoon
together. David obviously Lell bad that his silence did or might have
contributed to my illness. Dravid then came through with what information
he could tell me, at least for the time being

With regard to his trip (o Bethlehem, Davld sald he could ot yet say what
he was dolng there when be wrote the orlginal postcard. With regard (o the
encryplion, he told me that his leaving the Time Travel Research Center was
a strategic move on his part. He was atiracting too much attention with his
cutting edge research. To take the steamy off, he turmed It over to others bt
never ceased his research. There was also a master plan In the works, and
thero was a planned announcement In late September or early October. This
concerned a new endeavor known as Anderson Multinational. a global
corporation that is on the cutting edge of future technology. He could mat
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elabrorate on the mysterlous cryptogram as that could compromlse
acquisiions and mergers designed to be a part of Anderson Multinational.
Several handshake and verbal agreements had been made, and they could
not be violated.,
I originally found out about Anderson Multinational because the logo was
displayed every evenlng on a video presentation shown at nightly events.
David asked me nod to mentlon it in leu of the above bul eventually said 1
could have an exclusive on i 'When Oclober eventually rolled around, there
Wwas no mention or announcement by him with regard to Anderson
Multinational. He did, however, announce it in January of 2009 and there Is
an entire website on I, 1 must say, however, that the cutting edge
technology s played down to an extreme degree.
All in all, there was not oo muech that David could tell me in Wew of his 183
mergers, acquisitions and handshakes. He did say, however, that he would
maintain communlcatlon with me In the future,
Further, he was very sorry that he had remained out of communication for so
long.
There was. however, stll the matter of the audio CD that [tadu Cinamar had
sent to me. [ forgot all about it during my conversation with David, It was
my Idea orlginally that he, Tantra, myself, and a host of other Eomanlans
wiould slt around and lsten (o the CD. This was not (o be the case.
Before | could Hsten o it, [ needed to dig up an audlo plaver which a fellow
Mew Yarker by the name of Norm provided. By the time I recetved It and

fgured out haow (0 work 10 1 was sliting all alone at a table on the deck of a
boat. Mo one else was around.

When I ran the audio, practically the first words thal came out of Radu’s
mouth were a request that no one else listen (o the CD. It was private and
for my ears only., As Intriguing as this might sound, the CD was mostly a
discourse on the events you have Just read about. It was Radu's personal
views about the clroumstances. More than that, It was a personal message 1o
me (hat these things really did bappen w him and there are many moe
bizarre experiences as well. There is no question in my mind that Radu is
very sincere. He also apologized that he could not offer proof beyond the
obvlous correspondences already mentoned. Once agaln, IF he stirs things
up too much, he will lose his job and his freedom to publish.

Al the end of the audio CDy Kadu then made a rather interesting comment.
He sald that there was one person he wanted me to play the CD to and that
was David Anderson.  He said that he had a definite feeling that David was

4 good person and that he trusted hdm. He would also lke to meet David
some day.

Omce 1 finished Hstening to the CD, 1 sought out David on the island. Before
I could bepin o look, our paths crossed immediately, and I spoke to him
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privately (o Inform him about what Radu had sald. David then sald
something that was both cryplic and very revealing.

“You know,” he sald, *many people have told me that | know Radu.”

This was very bizarre and It explained. to a degree. why he smirked when I
had earlier suggestad that he did not know Radu, There was some sort of
connection between the two Individuals. Radu, quite obviowsly, 1s not awart®4
of the connectlon or he would not have stated that he would Hke to meet
David. 1 told David that | would send him a copy of the CDy when 1 returned
home so that he could listen to it. David said that he would also be happy to
fly down to New York if Radu should happen ta visit me, When 1

eventually Informed Eadu of these events, he thought It was very interesting,
To me, the most signiflcant aspect of all of this has to do with my orlginal
question pul before the Sphinx. 1 had asked what the connectlon between
David and Hadu 1s. The answer, while nod an utterly complete answer, 1s
very revealing, There is a connection, but it is a mystical one. Both have
been made aware of each other In what might be termed our “regular reality”
but they seem to know each other from a parallel or hyper-reallty.

When I returned (o America, 1 sent David a copy of the audio CD bul never
heard hack, | have had several back and torth emalls with Liavid since
returning but whenever 1 mentton Radu or the CI3, [ never get an answer.
Shorlly before this book was fAnished, | kad occaston o alk 1o one of
David's asslstants. 1 simply asked her 1o ask David i1 he recetved the CD. 1
gof an answer the next day, He had a hacklog of mail he had not opened for
sbx months, While this might well be true, he thanked me right away when |
sent him a copy of my recend book The Montauk Book of the Living. It
seerms nol all mall 1s delayed.

In any event, I have given the matter considerable thought which s based
upon a significant amount of interactlon with David. He Is mysterious and
has worked at the highest levels of governments across the globe. This
Includes Intelligence agencies and the military. Davld Is one of thelr greatest
luman assels In terms of intelligence, capability and technology.

With all of these connectlons. it i5 no wonder that he 1s like a walking
security matrix with different access codes for different situations, Anyone
who Is forced to deal with so many different strata of lfe elther has (o be
comditloned or condltlon himself on how to respond to varlous people in
glven siluatlons.

I do belleve that. on one level and to a certain degres, he has released
himself from the security restrictions he grew up with in the military. This 1=
a result of his research Into the quantum realm of existence. There 1s a parl
of himself that came Into this world to usher in new Hmes. To a significant
degree, he has woken up o bis quantum self. This is why he has set me up!®
to help unravel the story with Radu as well as his own mysterious story,
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Early on al Atlantykron, | repeated what one of my psychic [rlends had sald
aboul David and mysell and that was that *our higher selves are in alignmend
and working together.” Upon telling him that, he agreed by saying “thal
resonated with him.” I also asked what he thought about me writing about
him. He sald he was neartral on it

Davld Is an agent of change. Like the rest of us, he exists on many levels
and In different dimenslons. That 1s a quantum fact. Because of his profile
with regard Lo being on the cuilting edge of sclentific knowledge and its
implications with regard to how we perceive the universe, his life is more
symbolic. Although he Is a very humble person, the threads of his life echo
across tme and that means many Ume lnes, 1t is no wonder that be would
be the one to facilltate my eventual collaboration with Radu.

I we Hken David to one of the colors on a Rublk's Cube, we can like Radu
o another color. 1t is apparently up to me to pul this metaphorical Rubik's
Cube back together. It is not a task [ sought out but one that was presented
o me through the principle of synchronicity. When 1 took the trip to
Romanla, 1 was hoplng that [ would have that long discussion David alluded
(o and that 1t would be something Like the discussions that Cezar had with
Kadu. 1'hat would not only have been much more tun and exciting, It would
have lald out everything on a platter for me amd the reading auwdlence. 1t
would be easy. Pechaps I could have visited the Projection Hall or David's
Time Travel Research Center. Indeed. maybe these things may happen in
the future. David has Invited me to return to Atlantykron on an annual basis,

As | stated earller, Kado bopes (o visit me In Amerlca some day,
While we can all be disappolnted that the revelations herein are Hmilted, we

can also consider the resistance as 1s represented In the character of Signore
Massind and his minions. A millennda of lies does not yield to the truth

orvernight, What has been opened here 1s a gateseay, It is therefore no
wonder thal a megalith known as Babele stands nearby the Romanlan

Sphinx. While babele Is translated as "old woman”™ In Komanlan, 1t clearly
meeans a gate in olher languages. In this book, we have all had a chance to
peer through the gate and see a bit of what might be inside. There is also a

bit more to the story as I have continued to correspond with Radu since my
return.
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Epilogue, Part II — by Peter Moon:

Between my Komanlan publisher, Hadu, and David Anderson, 1 have forged
an interesting although very absiract assoclation with the events in (s book.
1 have also had the opportunity to have many new Irlends that ane
Romantan, It is as if a seed has been planted and will grow over time, If T
continue to cultivate it, there will eventually be 3 harvest,

As 1 have continued my correspondences with Hadu, 1 have learned that he
has written twio other books which are sequels o the story you have just
read. In his sequel (o this book, Transylvanian Moonrise — A Secrel
Initiation in the Hidden Realm of the Gods, Radu addresses what I consider
to be 3 key missing element in the story you have just read. T do not know
about you, but when I finished this book, I wanted (o more about the
mystertous Dr. Xien, the doctor from Red China who showed up to examine
Cazar from tme to Ume during his yvouth.

When the OfgImal version of this Book was published in Remania, e
publisher was besleged with hundreds of phone calls and emails asking for
details aboutl Radu., Some were retired members of the secret service who
had been highly placed and confirmed some of the events. Newspapers also

published articles related to such, The detalls of these are covered in Radu's
second book.

One of these communlcations was from a very persistent person who wrged
Sorin Hurmrz (o contact Radu. Such a request would have been ignored
save for one important fact, The persistent individual, who is named Elinor
(2 masculine name in Romania), mentioned a particular detail with regard to
Tibet. This caught the eye of Sorln and consequently Kadu.

Clandestine communications were sel up between Radu and Sorin who have
sill never met each other face o face. Normally, they communtcate by
special courder of the secret service or though an emall address that 1s
continually modifled by Radu. In speclal cases, Sorin uses a prepaid phone
card to call Eadu at a spectflc number. The aforementioned detall aboul
Tibet was such a special case and 1l Involved the myslerious Dr. Xien.

A meeting was set up between Elinor and Radu at a villa where the two gol®7
to know each other. Elinor had possession of a myvsterious pyramid-shaped
device whose orlgins and alchemy-based existence po back hundreds of
yvears In time. Ellnor’s family saga s described In detall as well as the Fact
Lhat whoever possesses (he device can expect a life span of between 1,700
and 2,000 years. This 15 the result of perfect alcheny and the hstory of it 15
very well described,
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Desplte the amazing role of Ellnor, he 1s really just an intermediary between
Radu and a mysterious Tibetan by the name of Bepa Sundhd who 15 actually
Dr. Xien. Repa Sundhi actually shows up al the villa late at night and 15
accompanied by a terrifying croature known as a yidam in Tibetan whose

pratective and useful role proves to be very lmportant,

[t turns out that Dr. Xlen ks also a medlator. After a long conversatlon with
Fadu, he Invites him to take a small trip with an undlsclosed purpose. Fully
trusting his new comrades, Hadu accepts a irip to Transylvania (o visit some
very old and little explored mountains in the Chccidental Carpathians in
western Romania, There, an extraordinary event occurs whereby all three of
the travelers are projected, at Repa Sundhl’s will, to a rocky and deseried
land In Tibet. After a shorl walk, they arrive In front of a vertical wall. Hadu
proceeds through a narrow and tall opendng and finds himsell inside of a
mystertous cave where he is confronted by the overwhelming presence of a
goddess known as Machandi,

After a short conversation, Machand! presents Radu with a very old
manuscript wrltten and hidden In the cave by Yeshe Tsogyel, a disclple of
["admashambava, the greal Uluminated tantric who Hved in Tibet in GOU-700
A D, The manuscript contains flve Initiatory techniques that Radu hopes to
write aboul In detall In another book. The manuscripl was translaled by D
Xien.

The second part of this sequel takes place once agaln in westerm Romanda,
this time at a mountain peak named Cugu which 1s very hard to access, At
Cugu, a group of mystedous adolescents arrlve who are following the call of
thelr dreams whereln Machand! appeared and told them of this mesting.
Radu is already there with Repa Sundid (Dr. Xien). Elinor, and the yidam '#2
15 a fated meeting where Radu 15 Inftlated in a most remarkable way.
Although I have given vou a synopsis of the sequel, It s Important o point

oul that 1 have not read it as It has not yet been translated from Komanian
Into English. Based wupon the interest In Transylvanlan Sunrise, 1 hope (o
work oul an arrangement with Sorin (o publish the subsequent books in this
series. Sorin has provided me with the synopsis you have just read.

All of this information ks more than a little fantastic and places Radu into the
sphere of something that could be likened to a comlc book character. While
I do not mean that with amy disrespect, 11 1s mportant to codlfy these
experfences with how an ordinary mind might Interpret them. To people
who are skeptlcal, I should point cut that Radu is extremely coherent in his
lettars and various descriptions of ewents. He is often hesitant to say too
much as he does not want to sound too Incredible. Whether you belleve him
or not, 1t 1s obwlows that he has had some Incredible expedences. The dialog
1 have had with him Invites credibility even though we are dealing with
Incredible things. This brings us to the third book In his series.
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In this saga, entitled The Mystery of Egypt — First Tunnel, Ellnor leaves
Riomanta for his own security reasons and proceads 1o an unknown
destination. Radu 15 clued-in on Elinor's villa in Bucharest wihdch has a
secret alchemical 1ab in the basement. Kadu becomes the caretaker of this
property and is particularly interested in the Impressive library there,

After taking possession of the villa, Radu 1s unexpectedly contacted by
Cezar amd taken to Alpha Base. Dr. Xien Is wanted by the secrel service for
occull reasons that have to do with inside govermment connections, but he 1s
nowhere to be found. It is hoped that Radu can reestablish this lost
connection due to his relationship with Machandi. Tt Is a lost cause, at least
for the time belng,

Faddu then describes changes ocourring Inside the secret millitary base In the
Bucegl mountains and the particulars of the tunnel in the Projection Room
that leads o Egypt. He becomes part of a lve man team Ueat was assembled
to explore this tunnel. A fascinating account of this expedition 1s glven 788
accompanied by simple sketches, Cezar, who is also a part of the five man
team, supplies Kadu with a considerable amount of esoeric Informatlon.
This includes an amazing account from 10,000 B.C. which he learned about
in the Projection Hall but was not allowed to reveal unil] now,

The flve man party also Includes a computer genlus from the Pentagon,
Fiomanian Lieutenant Nicoara of Depariment Zero, and a Speclal Service
Lieutenant who ends up being unveiled as a USAP (United States Antarcic
Program) agent of the Secret Freemason World Government,

This party reaches the end of the tunnel withowt Inckdent and an occalt
chambser Is discovered. It Is accurately described In minute detall and

Includes the ollowing: an immense Hbrary full of tables which 1s the
obwvious produect of extraterresirial technology and contains a “history™ of our
own galaxy and the universe: an antigravity gliding device; and a virtual
replica of the enormous machine found [n the Projection Hall that is adapted
for human use. Cesar describes the latter as a Ume travel machine that allows
the consciousness of the subject o be projected in an ever existing tme
dimenston and gives full detalls of the true nature of time and of the akashic
recards. He also speaks of his time travel experiences.,

Towards the end of Volume [11, the author describes his attermpts (o make
use of the tme machine. Afer two consecutive fallures, he obtalns a quick
projection into a secret tunnel of the Greatl Pyramid of Cheops. Radu
suddenly realizes that the sclentiflc community does not have a clue about it
when he |s confronted with the vision of the real masters of the pyramids
from long forgodten Himes.

While these summarles of the books come from the publisher, | have also
been In correspondence with Radu who s releasing the fourth book in the
sefies just as this first volume is being released in America. This fourth
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volume Includes the manuscript Badu recedved from Machandi In Tlbet. It
contains fve Inftatory iechnigues that wers iranslated by Dr. Xien. Radu
himsell has nodced the frony of both of these books belng released at the
same time. He 15 also keenly aware of my vartous books and the element of%0

synchronicity that has appeared In miy life, He has also been confronted with
such aspects and has asked Cezar for further explanations with regard to

what this means. These discussions are included in Volume 111

Radu understands exactly what | mean with regard o the “comic book
sphere” which he terms as "transference from the mystical to the mundane.”
This 15 a challenge to anvone who penetrates the loftier spheres of existence.

Cezar Is an obvlous help to him o this regard, and he has emphastzed o me
that be has only Inclwded a very small part of the discusslons he has had with
Cezar as well as other people. We are talking about the tp of an iceberg. As
Radu wrote 10 me, “Fale gave me the extraordinary clance o be integrated
in a complexity of events and amazing discoveries, and this created an
almast incredible resonance for the ordinary man,”

Besldes the exploration of the tunnel to Egvpd, he has also travelled through
the second tunnel and wowards the center of the Earth. He returned from this
latest venture in Uictober UGS and sald that it was an Inconiestable success.
There were new discoveries which he sald would be hard for me (or odbers)
lo imagine. This might be included in a possible ffith volume.

The incontestable success he referred (0 in this endeavor includes whal he
called a “diplomatic” connection with the beings from the center of the
Earth, Cezar, he sald, will be leaving Department Zero and golng (o this

newly discovered locale (o serve as an "ambassador.” This saddens Radu
greatly as he will no longer have his mentor with him. There have also been
slgnificant changes in Department Zero.

This 15 the latest news from Radu. He has wished me success with the
American release of his book as well as my own new ttle, The Montauk
Book of the Living. | have sent Radu bwo coples, one for Eadu and one for
Cezar. | sent them by Internattonal priority mail in hopes that Cezar would
get it before his departure.

I readily admit that all of this Information s very far out, even for me. It 1S
true, howewer, that If one 1s going to penetrate the more secretive aspects of
existence, one s golng to encounter phenomena that ordinary people will 1%
dismiss in thelr ignorant states. Once again, [ will remind you that we are al
the threshold of new realities, new science, and new technology. All of this

stems from the ability to perceive reality (or dimensions) in a new way,
My Investigation of the Montauk saga led me to the history of Its anclent

peaple who were Pharaohs In the fradition of both Egypt and Atlantls, two
cultures which were based upon the proposition of an ancient Blue Race thal
maintained its continuity of consclousness through monatomic white gold
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which Is sometimes assoclated with manna from heaven or mummy dust
The white gold mentioned in this book by Radu Cinamar is nol only a
recurring a theme in my work, he presants a new twisl by sugpesting a (wo-
dimensional chemical bonding as opposed to three-dimensional bonding,
The themse of Atlantis Is also suggesied by the Romantan Sphinx and the
nearby Projectlon Hall which Is an anclent Hall of Records created by an
advanced clvillzatlon of the past. This 1s In keepling with the theme of the
Atlantykron Conference | attended, a main preoccupation of which is
astropaleology with particular regard to the ancients aligning stone “time
clocks™ to signal an awakening of ancient Atlantean culture in the future, We
i omly represent that future, bul we are further titllated by the adventures
of David Anderson who seems (o have a connection fo the future himse] f.
Theat these awakenings are ocowrring in the mountains in and around
Transylvania is highly symbollc. A land which has been vilified and
romanticized in popular culture as the home of Drracula, the king of the
vampires, |5 now beckoning us to a higher calling and awareness. Dracula Is
only a very small part of Transylvanla’s entire history, but such legends have
resonated with man’s lowest common denominator. More importantly., they

have taken attentlon off of the sacred past of a reglon which can now be
ldentifled as one of the most significant beacons with regard to man’s higher
and more redeemable aspecis. 1t signals the end of the vampire, a creature
which recolled and hid as the night receded and the sun rose. 1015 with
respect to these factors that 1 have chosen the name Transylvanian Sunrise
for the American edition, 15
Where all of this goes Is anyone’s guess. 1 did, hbowever, share a flash of
Intuliion I had with Radu. 1 told him that if he or Cezar reach Shambala or
some other such exotic realm and enter the secred ternple, they are likely

meet one of my friends there, Tam referring ta my Chi Gong instructor who
[ have writien about In my recent book, The Montauk Book of the Living.
He Is a Taodst priest whose name Is Roosevelt Galney and has announced
Ueal e tme of secreis §s over. He s now teaching martial arts and healing
techniques that have been guarded for millennia.

Roosevelt was infroduced to me by Artle “Red Medicine”™ Crippen, the
Medicine Man of the Montauk Indlans who Is a parl of the Pharaonle legacy
earller referred to. Artle Is the keeper of the Montauks' oral history and s
well aware ol the Atants theme. We are both two of Boosevell’s most eager
students, and I have given many detalls of these secrets in The Montauk
Book of the Living, T mention this aspect of miv wark and life for a very
speclific reason with regard to the adventures spoken of In this work. IF there
are such realms as Radu and Cerar have apparently travelled to, the
accurmulation of chi (Hfe energy, particularly that acguired through the
breath) 15 a very important factor, The accumulation of chi s accomplished
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through the practice of Chil Gong (Hterally, breath work) which will enable
anyone to more ably deal with any MNotsam and jetsam that might come along
with such exotlc encounters that Radu has alluded to. When it comes to
accumulation of chi, I do not know anyone who has more In his energetic

field than Roosevelt Galney., If 1 advance far and fast enough, Cezar and
Fadu might even meat me when they get to that enigmatic temple. While

this might spund fanciful, it s not. Life Is clrcular and operates Inan inflinite
stream of consclousness. [ one s making progress, one will periodically
arrive at points of famillarity as well as referential points of infinity. So.
while Cezar and Radu pursue the Inner realms of infinity by one means. T am
pursuing it by another through the practice of Chi Gong. It Is exclting to

consider we all might meet some day, and 1L s nice (o have frlends In exotlc
realms. It makes it a Hitle easler to deal with when you [nally get there. 93
I shviald also add a bit of advice (o all of you who pursue the exollc realms of
consciousness, When you find vourself In such a state or any type of
paranormal state of mind, Including awakening in your dreams, breathe
deeply and do Chi Gong. This will not only stabllize you, It will make you
sell-aware and [ree [rom any harm. Y'ou can learn many simple Chi Gong

techniques trom a hook at the llbrary, The more secret aspects you <an learn
Later.

In the meantime, 1 will continue to report on my Romandan adventures with
Fadu Cinamar and David Anderson. These will appear in my quarterly
newsletter The Montauk Pulse. In the relatively near future, T also hope to
publish the additional volumes by Bado Clinamar. As T am planning o revisit

Fomanla this year and contlnue my assoclation with David Anderson, |
would also ke to supplement these volumes with my lurther adventures and
possible Insights I might gain, just as I have done in (his book. As David
sald to me, *something very Interesting is going to come out of this.” He was
referring to my participation In these events, and 1 still hope to have that long
talk with him. Maybe that will happen this summer or perhaps when Eadu
pays a visit (o me In New York. Keep in mind, this s only the beginning of
what is very much a live investigation and an exciting adventure.

Anather Chi Gong principle that [ will share with vou is that the slower one
goes, the more effective and powerful one becomes. Slow and steady wins

the race. | fully expect to be deterred 1in my quest, but [ also am nod In too
much ol a rush o discover the deeper trulhs of tese matters. All will come
In its due time. It |5 already there...walting...for all of us. Thank you all for

belng part of this prand adventure,
Peder Moon

Long Island, New York
February 26, 2004
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F. 5. Now that you have completed this book, [ sincerely Invite you to read
1t again and again. There is much wisdom herein that you cannot help but
gloss over with one or two readings. The subjects discussed are not only
endless n their profundity. the events hereln are becoming more and more
the central theme In today’s world politics,
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